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OUR SERVICE OFFERINGS
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We stand out in the senior care sector with our
unique and ever-expanding range of facilities,
services and professional care offerings that
fulfill the various needs of seniors at different

stages of life.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B L8

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Pine Care Group Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Pine Care Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2021 (“FY2021”).

A TURBULENT BUT SUCCESSFUL YEAR

The past year has been a deeply challenging one for many industries, including
our own, but | am pleased to report that, despite all the hardships, our core
business remains strong with an average occupancy rate of 94.0% for FY2021
compared to 93.6% for the year ended 31 March 2020 (“FY2020”).

Excluding the effect of our adoption of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard (“HKFRS”) 16 Leases, our core EBITDA for the year was HK$53.8
million — a year-on-year growth of approximately 65.1%.

Our growth was mainly driven by the increase in revenue from our eight EA1
care and attention homes; Pine Care Place, our upscale residential care home
for the elderly (“RCHE”) in Yoho Mall, Yuen Long; and Pine Care Point, our
upscale RCHE specialising in dementia care in Shek Kip Mei.

SECURING OUR REPUTATION FOR QUALITY

Overall, | am delighted to say that we are making great strides in the upscale
segment. Now into its third operational year, Pine Care Place has not only
reached profitability, but has also secured its reputation for quality in the
upscale segment.

Buoyed by this success, we are also confident of increasing the occupancy at
Pine Care Point at an even quicker pace once the COVID-19 situation
stabilises. We believe that the demand for quality dementia care is seriously
underserved in Hong Kong and we are perfectly positioned to capitalise on
this opportunity. We have also extended our multidisciplinary care service
offerings to our residents to meet their specific needs.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
BN L8

GAINING MOMENTUM IN DAYCARE
We are gaining considerable momentum with our daycare services. Our first
daycare centre at Pine Care Place in Yoho Mall was well received and has
been a great success. The 20 daycare places were filled at the moment they
became available in June 2020. We now plan to launch our second daycare
centre at Pine Care Point with 35 places in late 2021.

A UNIQUE NEW SENIOR COMMUNITY

In terms of our expansion, we have entered into a tenancy agreement for the
lobby on ground floor and the front (or southern) portion of the first, second
and third floors of No. 1 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong — a total
floor area of approximately 35,400 square feet.

With this space, we plan to establish and operate an upscale and
gerontechnology-enabled, state of the art residential community for the
seniors with a wide range of services covering EA1 (Note), affordable upscale
and upscale residential care. Medical and professional nursing support will be
delivered by a multidisciplinary team including, but not limited to, nurses, social
workers, occupational therapists and physiotherapists.

The community enjoys a prime location on Hong Kong Island, within
10-minutes drive of five of Hong Kong’s leading private and public hospitals. It
will be staffed by health care professionals using a variety of advanced
gerontology methods and technology to ensure the highest standard of
geriatric care and well-being for the residents.

This unique concept in advanced senior care is in line with the Group’s
expansion strategies and we hope it will make a positive impact on the
Group’s branding, as well as providing the finest and most comprehensive
care for the residents.

Notes:

“Enhanced Bought Place Scheme” or “EBPS”: the scheme under which the Social
Welfare Department (the “SWD”) of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government”) has purchased residential care places (beds)
from private homes for the elderly since 1998, with a view to upgrading the service
standard of these homes through enhanced service requirements in terms of staffing and
space standards. This also helps to increase the supply of subsidised places so as to
reduce elderly’s waiting time for subsidised care and attention home places. Elderly
homes under the EBPS are split into two categories, namely EA1 and EA2, with different
space standards and staffing requirements.

“EA1”: one of the two categories under the EBPS. EA1 homes have higher requirements
in terms of staffing and per capita net floor area as compared to EA2 homes. As required
under the EBPS, the staffing requirement for an EA1 home with 40 places is 21.5,
calculated on the basis of eight working hours per staff per day, including relief staff, and
its per capita net floor area are 9.5 square metres.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B L8

REBALANCING AND REJUVENATING

Moving forward, we will be redoubling our efforts with regard to training and
development and strategically strengthening our manpower pipeline for
upcoming developments.

Among these developments, we are currently in the process of exploring an
asset light model that will enable us to replicate our business for different
market segments at a faster pace. We plan to extend our footsteps in the
Greater Bay Area, while continue to explore opportunities in Hong Kong to
strengthen our position in the industry.

Apart from leveraging our current resources to create sustainable long term
value for our shareholders and promoting the quality standard and
development of the senior care industry with more innovative initiatives, we
also aim to serve a wider spectrum of customers, include the active seniors
currently being served by our integrated wellness hub for independent living at
Patina Wellness, in Kowloon City, with a greater range of service offerings,
include the expansion of our day care facilities; enhanced respite care and a
wider range of residential care to encompass different age groups both in
Hong Kong and the Greater Bay Area.

OUR SINCEREST THANKS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders, customers,
bankers and business partners for their continued trust and support. In
particular, | would also like to express my deepest and most sincere gratitude
to all our staff members throughout the Group for their passion,
professionalism and diligence in caring for our residents and contributing to
the Group.

Without their commitment and ceaseless dedication, we could never have
achieved the success we have, nor established such a high reputation for
excellence in the senior care sector.

With our expansion plans in place and a team that is second to none, we are
truly excited about the opportunities and achievements that are still to come.
Tang Yiu Sing

Chairman and Executive Director

24 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BLLE W wi L T

REVIEW OF BUSINESS

The Group’s business in Hong Kong mainly comprises of eight EA1 RCHEs
and two newly developed RCHEs, the upscale RCHE, Pine Care Place, and
RCHE specialising in dementia care, Pine Care Point.

The Group’s revenue was mainly generated from (i) rendering senior care
services including the provision of residence, professional nursing and care
taking services, nutritional management, medical services, psychological and
social care, and individual care plans; and (i) sale of senior care related goods
and provision of health care services, in Hong Kong.

Total revenue delivered a year-on-year increase of approximately 13.0% to
HK$245.7 million in FY2021 from HK$217.4 million in FY2020. The increase
was mainly due to the combined effects of (i) the increase in average monthly
residential fee of our eight EA1 RCHEs; (i) ramp-up in the occupancy rate of
Pine Care Place; and (jii) full year impact of operation of Pine Care Point.

Respective revenue is shown as below:

EEIRE
AEBERBEENEB L2 RB/N\EF —AEERE
Bk mEZRNRhLER  ARimLER R
TS K BN R AR B IR 6 5 Uy 22 B B LR 45 -

AEEMPRRTIZELARER(VRHEEEEER
% BRERMERE BXEERRHRYE 28%F
B BERE  LIB R SRIEA REAEETE
Ko (i) $8 5 S8R R A B m S AR B R IE AR TS -

Wz 48 38 1 2020 Bf I F [ /) 217 4 B BB TR F 18
IN#Y138.0% £ 2021 BA I FE 8 245.7 A BB IT ° 7%
EMEZHERUTSENGATZE  ()ET/\MF
—REBLZERNFEHEAEBEEEM : () LRE
AFEREF  R(i)DREFE2FLEENTE -

BWREFIRAT

FY2021 FY2020 Change
2021 B F E 2020 BA AR 2 k)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
8 EA1 RCHEs NER—RERELER 214,465 205,169 5%
Upscale RCHE — Pine Care Place =i e Eb — R HESE
(2nd full year of operation) (F2F2FEE) 20,328 11,876 71%
RCHE specialising in dementia care BRRAE R EE N =6
— Pine Care Point LEf — B gEEt
(1st full year of operation) (B1E2ELE) 9,006 318 2,732%
Others HAith 1,907 - N/AZ3E
245,706 217,363 13%

Pine Care Place has entered into its third operational year with occupancy rate
as at 31 March 2021 surged to 80.9% as compared to 38.2% as at 31 March
2020, which contributed to the increase of revenue to HK$20.3 million in
FY2021 from HK$11.9 million in FY2020.

As for Pine Care Point, its revenue increased to HK$9.0 million in FY2021 from
HK$0.3 million in FY2020 due to full year impact of operation. Occupancy rate
as at 31 March 2021 approximated to 24.2%. It is expected the occupancy at
Pine Care Point will increase at a quicker pace once the COVID-19 situation
stabilises.
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AMAER EHZES80.9% 202043 A31HAlA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BYLE W i L T

For the Group’s investment in a joint venture, Patina Wellness Limited, in
which the Group holds 51% of its equity interest, the performance of its
operation, Patina Wellness, had been temporarily affected by the COVID-19
situation at the early stage of operation, which led to a share of operating loss
before interests and depreciation (excluding the impact of adoption of HKFRS
16 on its property rental and related expenses) at HK$6.8 million.

Momentum is gradually picking up in the last quarter of this financial year with
its occupancy rate as at 31 March 2021 approximated to 74.7%. The
management team of Patina Wellness is also exploring to leverage the
established brand and expertise of Patina Wellness for providing management
services to external parties, including property owners in Hong Kong and the
Greater Bay Area.

Please refer to the section headed in CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT for
prospects of the core business and new projects of the Group.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

The Group’s revenue in FY2021 was HK$245.7 million, with an increase of
13.0% from HK$217.4 million in FY2020 amid the challenges of COVID-19
situation which temporarily affect our new upscale RCHE under ramp-up
period. The core business of our eight EA1T RCHEs in Hong Kong remains
strong and stable despite all the hardships with an average occupancy rate of
94.0%.

Core EBITDA (our key senior care services business performance indicator)
increased by 65.1% to HK$53.8 million (FY2020: HK$32.6 million).

Revenue

LE

e Hks245.7m

245. 78 &5
N3.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BLLE W wi L T

The Group recorded a profit of HK$3.2 million in FY2021 as compared with
HK$13.6 million in FY2020, mainly attributed to revenue growth offset by the
increase in depreciation and finance costs upon commencement of operation

of Pine Care Point and the share of loss of a joint venture, i.e. Patina Wellness.

The reconciliation of Core EBITDA, EBITDA and Profit for the year is as follows:

Profit for the year
Finance costs
Income tax expenses
Depreciation
Amortisation

EBITDA
Share of interests and depreciation of
a joint venture
Other income and gains
Non-recurring government grant
for Employment Support Scheme

Excluding:

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 on
property rental and related
expenses on subsidiaries

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 of share of
results of a joint venture on property rental

and related expenses

Core EBITDA

Notes:

FERF
BURTDRN
FrSHi R X
e

i

EBITDA

R2021 MRFE - ARBEHFHEMNI2BEBT
2020 MIRFERI/1B6 AER T - T2 MY
£ RN EE R A S ERITE R B AIE N -
AR E—RA SR (AR A%) BEMEHE -

NEE RO EBITDA - EBITDA Ka N BV SER 0T

DME—HEERENE RITE

H Aol A\ R s

[MRELZE | FHEIMIFE Bt

T :

RMBEWHREEF 1698
B AR MEE S RAER

EEEIEZ

KRBV BIMELRFE 16574
DiheEbEYERS KA

RXmEE

#% /0 EBITDA

“EBITDA” represents earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

“Core EBITDA” represents EBITDA before share of depreciation and interest of a joint

venture, other income and gains and non-recurring government grant for Employment
Support Scheme, excluding the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 on property rental and

related expenses.

FY2021 FY2020
2021 BN B 20208 R [E
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FiBT
3,214 13,576
14,543 4,764
7,468 3,546
56,841 33,689
3,092 3,093
85,158 58,668
21,215 6,396
(477) (476)
(16,322) -
89,574 64,588
(23,558) (19,775)
(12,240) (12,240)
53,776 32,573
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BYLE W i L T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Please refer to the preceding sections for the review of the Group’s results
and business. This section deals with other key financial data.

Depreciation

Depreciation represents depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment which comprise right-of-use assets, leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and other equipment and motor vehicles. Depreciation
increased by approximately 68.7% to HK$56.8 million in FY2021 from
HK$33.7 million in FY2020. The increase in depreciation was mainly
attributable to the depreciation charge upon commencement of operation of
Pine Care Point and Zhejiang Pine Care Yada Elderly Services Limited.

Staff costs

Staff costs remained as the largest component of our operating expenses.
Our staff costs include wages, salaries, bonuses, retirement benefit costs, and
other allowances and benefits payable to all employees of the Group. Our
gross staff costs, before netting off with government grants of HK$16.3 million
(FY2020: Nil) under Employment Support Scheme and HK$11.9 million
(FY2020: HK$11.2 million) for hiring specialised professionals for our elderly
residents with dementia and infirmary, increased by approximately 5.2% to
HK$116.5 million in FY2021 from HK$110.7 million in FY2020, primarily
contributed by the commencement of operation of Pine Care Point. Gross
staff cost represents approximately 47.4% of FY2021 revenue and 51.0% of
FY2020 revenue respectively.
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Multidisciplinary fees and related expenses

Our multidisciplinary fees and related expenses mainly consist of medical and
professional fees incurred for engaging external visiting medical officers,
dietitians and pharmacists, and additional manpower of physiotherapists, care
workers and health workers through employment agencies.

The expenses decreased by approximately 16.6% to HK$10.2 million in
FY2021 from HK$12.2 million in FY2020. The decrease in multidisciplinary
fees and related expenses was primarily due to engaging less physiotherapists
and workforce through employment agencies.

Property rental and related expenses

Our property rental and related expenses primarily represent government rent
and rates and building management fees in respect of our leased properties.
Property rental and related expenses increased by approximately 4.3% to
HK$6.9 million in FY2021 from HK$6.6 million in FY2020. The increase was
primarily contributed by higher building management fees and government
rent and rates from operation of Pine Care Point.

Food and beverage costs

Our food and beverage costs represent costs of all food ingredients and
beverages used for the provision of meals to our residents. The increase in
food and beverage costs was mainly contributed by the increase in occupancy
of Pine Care Place and the impact of full year operation of Pine Care Point.

Utility expenses

Our utility expenses represent costs of water and electricity for our care and
attention homes and office. The costs remained stable at HK$6.9 million in
FY2021 compared with HK$7.1 million in FY2020 due to the offsetting impact
of the concessions on electricity charges during the year and the increase in
occupancy of Pine Care Place and Pine Care Point.

Supplies and consumables

Our supplies and consumables represent costs of medical consumable
materials used for our operation. The costs increased by approximately 12.5%
to HK$7.6 million in FY2021 from HK$6.7 million in FY2020. The increase in
supplies and consumables was mainly contributed by higher occupancy of
Pine Care Place and Pine Care Point and more procurement of medical
consumable materials and sanitation products to safeguard our care and
attention homes against the novel coronavirus.
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Other operating expenses

Our other operating expenses in FY2021 mainly consist of () advertising
expenses for digital marketing and promotions of our care and attention
homes and new projects, with an aggregate amount of HK$1.8 million
(FY2020: HK$1.6 million); (i) insurance policies for all of our care and attention
homes, with an aggregate amount of HK$1.4 million (FY2020: HK$1.0 million);
(iii) legal and professional fees, with an aggregate amount of HK$4.4 million
(FY2020: HK$7.1 million); and (iv) corporate expenses and various operating
expenses, with an aggregate amount of HK$3.7 million (FY2020: HK$4.6
million).

The expenses decreased by approximately 20.4% to HK$11.3 million in
FY2021 from HK$14.2 million in FY2020. The decrease in other operating
expenses was primarily driven by the non-recurring legal and professional fees
of HK$2.4 million in FY2020 for the preparation of the composite offer and
response document jointly issued by the Company and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing
dated 28 February 2020 in relation to, among other things, the unconditional
mandatory general cash offer.

Share of loss of a joint venture

The share of loss of a joint venture of HK$15.8 million represents the share of
operating loss before interests, tax and depreciation of HK$6.8 million, share of
depreciation on owned assets of HK$5.9 million and share of interests on lease
of HK$2.8 million and share of depreciation on right-of-use assets of HK$12.5
million, partially offset with effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 of share of results of
a joint venture on property rental and related expenses of HK$12.2 million of
Patina Wellness Limited in which the Group holds 51% of the equity interest.

Finance costs

Our finance costs mainly represent interest expenses on bank loans. The
finance costs increased by approximately 205.3% to HK$14.5 million in
FY2021 from HK$4.8 million in FY2020. The increase in finance costs was
primarily due to the interest expenses on bank loans that are directly
attributable to the development of Pine Care Point, which were no longer
capitalised upon commencement of operation.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense represents Hong Kong profits tax of 16.5% on
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. The income tax expense
increased by approximately 110.6% to HK$7.5 million in FY2021 from HK$3.5
million in FY2020, which was primarily attributable to the increase in
assessable profits.

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company decreased by approximately 56.9% to HK$5.9 million for
FY2021 from HK$13.6 million in FY2020.
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KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Property, plant and equipment

Our property, plant and equipment consist of land and buildings, right-of-use
assets, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and other equipment,
motor vehicles and construction in progress. As at 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2020, the Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$772.7 milion and HK$819.3 million respectively. Decrement in FY2021
was primarily due to depreciation charges for the current year.

Goodwill

Goodwill primarily represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group carried goodwill of
HK$33.8 million in the consolidated statement of financial position, which
arose from the acquisition of controlling interests in companies principally
engaged in the provision of senior care services. No impairment was noted
based on the goodwill impairment assessment performed by our
management.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, our interest-bearing bank
borrowings mainly represented bank loans which consisted of mortgage loans
for financing mortgage payments for our care and attention home premises
and working capital loans for our working capital.

The effective interest rates pertaining to our bank loans ranged from 0.90% to
2.75% as at 31 March 2021 and from 2.00% to 4.05% as at 31 March 2020;
with the maturity up to year 2036 as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: year
2035). Despite that an increasing trend of interest rates is expected in the
foreseeable future, we are confident in managing our finance costs through
repayments of the bank loans via our steady cash inflows generated from
operations.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Net assets

Our net assets amounted to HK$204.2 million and HK$206.7 million as at 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020 respectively.

For illustrative purposes, by including the revaluation surplus of the land and
buildings of the Group of HK$823.4 million, being the premium of the total
valuation of HK$1,469.6 million, as appraised by an independent valuer
engaged by the Company in respect of the valuation of the land and buildings
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, over the carrying amount of the land and
buildings of the Group of HK$646.2 million as at 31 March 2021, the adjusted
consolidated net assets of the Group would have been HK$1,027.6 million as
at 31 March 2021.

lllustrative Adjusted Net Assets HAMEHAREERE

Net assets BEFE
lllustrative revaluation surplus of the land and

buildings of the Group (Note) sHA% (HF)

RRAREBEFE

Adjusted net assets

Note:

The land and buildings of the Group are occupied and used by the Group to perform its
ordinary business and have been classified as property, plant and equipment and stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. To better illustrate the
latest market value of the net assets at the balance sheet date, the illustrative revaluation
surplus was presented to facilitate a better understanding of the users of the financial
statements.
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204.2 206.7
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1,027.6 980.6
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AEEN L NETHEASBEGEAREANEELREE
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FY2021 FY2020
2021 B E 20208 L F
HK$’000 HK$'000
lllustrative Revaluation Surplus BB FH&T FHET
Total valuation of the land and buildings AEBE T REFHHEBRTEA
of the Group” 1,469.6 1,443.8
Carrying amount of the land and buildings AEE i REFHIREE
of the Group (646.2) (669.9)
Revaluation surplus of the land and buildings AEBE T REFHEMBH
of the Group 823.4 773.9
A appraised by an independent valuer A B A ERMGE
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Current ratio

As at 31 March 2021, our cash and bank balances amounted to HK$49.7
million (as at 31 March 2020: HK$27.8 million) and were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars; and our net current liabilities were HK$40.1 million (net
current liabilities as at 31 March 2020: HK$409.5 million). The current ratio,
being current assets over current liabilities, was approximately 0.70 time as at
31 March 2021 (as at 31 March 2020: 0.10 time).

Improvement in current ratio was mainly due to the Group did not comply with
a covenant of a term loan as at 31 March 2020; and the carrying amount of
term loan amounting to HK$346.5 million was classified as current liabilities as
at 31 March 2020. Relevant covenant of this term loan was removed in a
revised banking facility letter in June 2020 and the non-current portion of this
term loan of HK$332.5 million according to the original repayment schedule
was re-classified as non-current liabilities.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by the net debt (representing interest-bearing bank
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) over total assets (representing
current assets and non-current assets). As at 31 March 2021, our gearing
ratio was 59.7% as compared with the gearing ratio of 60.6% as at 31 March
2020.
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Maturity profile
The graph below shows the debt maturity profile of the Group as at 31 March
2021 and 2020.

Maturity Profile zsiER

FHIER
T B B R A5 5 8 7 2021 4F ]2 20204 3 A 31 A W&
BEIEER

Debt Maturity Profile at end of FY2020 and FY2021

202081 BUF B )2 2021 BT U F B AR B E HAE R
Gross Debt Amount (HK$ million) #&8&%E (B8#®x)

FY2021 20218t BUEE

75.0 71.4 356.8 99.7

FY2020 20208t BUEE

602.9

Within one year or on demand
—FRREEREE REIFEHSF
In the 2nd years
RE25E

More than 5 years

ZR5EF

As at 31 March 2021, our interest-bearing bank borrowings amounted to
HK$602.9 million (as at 31 March 2020: HK$599.3 million), among which,
assuming the aforesaid term loan would be repayable according to the
repayment schedule and taking into account of the deferral of principal
payments covered under the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s Pre-approved
Principal Payment Holiday Scheme for corporate customers, HK$75.0 million,
HK$71.4 million, HK$356.8 million, and HK$99.7 million were repayable within
one year or on demand, in the second year, in the third to fifth years (both
years inclusive), and beyond five years respectively (as at 31 March 2020:
HK$42.3 million, HK$51.0 million, HK$452.6 million, and HK$53.4 million
respectively). As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, all of our interest-
bearing bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the
majority of our interest-bearing bank borrowings were secured by the land and
buildings of the Group.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during
FY2021. The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and other
reserves.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Total capital expenditure during the year was HK$5.3 million, for renovation
works of our care and attention homes. In FY2020, the Group incurred capital
expenditure in an aggregate amount of HK$40.1 million, mainly due to
renovation works of Pine Care Point.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk principally relates to the Group’s
bank loans which are based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or the
best lending rate. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities regularly. The
Group has not used any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

As at 31 March 2021, if the interest rates on borrowings had been 25 basis
points higher/lower, which was considered reasonably possible by the
management, with all other variables held constant, the profit after tax for the
year would decrease/increase by HK$1.3 million (FY2020: HK$0.5 million) as a
result of higher/lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity and
flexibility of funding through the use of bank loans. In addition, banking facilities
have been put in place for contingency purposes.
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Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an on-going basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets mainly comprising cash
and bank balances and due from a joint venture has a maximum exposure
that equals to the carrying amounts of these instruments. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.

Foreign currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk, and hence the
Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any contingent liability or
material off-balance sheet arrangements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures undertaken by the Group during the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any significant investments held.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have capital commitments (as at 31
March 2020: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021, land and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$634.0 million (as at 31 March 2020: land and buildings and construction
in progress of HK$657.1 million), and investment in insurance contract with
carrying amount of HK$3.3 million (as at 31 March 2020: HK$3.1 million) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Save for the
above, the Group had no other pledges of assets as at 31 March 2021.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group entered into a lease
and the value of the right-of-use asset recognised by the Group under the
lease amounted to approximately HK$203.1 million, which is the present value
of the aggregated lease payments from 7 August 2021 to 6 August 2031
assuming the exercise of renewal options in accordance with HKFRS 16. The
rent payable during the term of the lease will be satisfied by internal resources
of the Group. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 May 2021. Save as aforesaid, as at 31 March 2021, the Group did
not have other plans for material investments and capital assets.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 466 full-time and part-time
employees (as at 31 March 2020: 457 employees). Our staff costs (excluding
government grants) were HK$116.5 million in FY2021 (FY2020: HK$110.7
million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive, and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis, together with
reference to the profitability of the Group, prevailing remuneration benchmarks
in the industry, and market conditions, within the general framework of the
Group’s remuneration system.

In addition, the Group also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating eligible participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with such eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include,
but are not limited to, the directors, including independent non-executive
directors, of the Group, full-time or part-time employees of the Group, and
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, and such other persons who in
the sole opinion of the directors will contribute or have contributed to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted on 23 January
2017. No share option has been granted or agreed to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

The remuneration of the directors is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board, according to the relevant directors’ experience,
responsibility, workload, the time devoted to the Group, the Group’s operating
results and comparable market statistics.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, aged 35, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 23 March 2020. He is also the chairman of the
Board, the chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Tang graduated from
University of Western Ontario in Canada with an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with an
Executive Master in Innovation Leadership degree. He also received an
Honorary Fellowship from The Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong
Business Sector in 2019.

Mr. Tang has over 15 years of solid experience in property investment, asset
management and business operations. He is the founder and Chairman of
Stan Group and the Chief Executive Officer of Tang’s Living Group, a member
of Stan Group. He is also currently an executive director and the chief
executive officer of ETS Group Limited (stock code: 8031) of which the shares
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (“ETS Group”).

Mr. Tang is currently a director of the China Overseas Friendship Association,
a Standing Committee member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, a committee member of
the All-China Youth Federation (ACYF), chief advisor to the Honorary Consul
for Fiji in Hong Kong, an award council member for the Hong Kong Award for
Young People, a co-opted member of Task Force of The Social Innovation
and Entrepreneurship Development Fund, the deputy secretary general of Y.
Elite Association (from 1 July 2021), a director of the board of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong and advisor of Our Hong Kong Foundation. In 2019, he
also founded the Dongguan-Hong Kong Bay Area Association and served as
the president. Mr. Tang is a director of Starcorp Limited and Smartbase
Investments Limited (substantial shareholders of the Company), the son of the
late Mr. Tang Shing-bor (substantial shareholder of the Company) and a
younger brother of Dr. Tang Yiu Pong (non-executive director of the
Company).
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Mr. Chan Yip Keung

Mr. Chan Yip Keung, aged 38, joined the Group as the chief financial officer
in April 2015. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 30 April
2016 and was designated as an executive director of the Company on 7
September 2016. Mr. Chan was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group in October 2020 and responsible for leading, planning and
managing business development and operations of the Group.

Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in financial and capital
management, mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance, business
analysis and development. He obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration (Professional Accountancy) from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in December 2005 and a degree of Master of Corporate
Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in September 2017.
He has been a member and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since January 2009 and March 2018 respectively; and an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
The Chartered Governance Institute since December 2017.

He worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers from September 2005 to October
2011 with his last position being manager, assurance, institutional group. Prior
to joining the Group, from November 2011 to April 2015, Mr. Chan was the
finance manager of Mapletree Hong Kong Management Limited under
Temasek of Singapore, specialised in real estate investment trusts sector.
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Mr. Yeung Ka Wing

Mr. Yeung Ka Wing, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 23 March 2020. He is an executive director and the
chief financial officer of Stan Group. He has over 20 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, and corporate restructuring. Mr. Yeung has been
appointed as an executive director and a director of the relevant members of
ETS Group Limited (stock code: 8031), a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, with effect from 29 July 2015 and is the compliance officer,
an authorised representative and a member of the nomination committee and
the risk management and internal control committee of ETS Group Limited.

Mr. Yeung graduated from Simon Fraser University with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration majoring in Accounting in 1994 and obtained a
master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Western
Ontario in Canada in 2014. He is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Chartered Global Management
Accountant.

Prior to joining Stan Group, Mr. Yeung was the managing director of FTI
Consulting, a consulting company specialised in, among other things,
corporate restructuring, receivership and forensic accounting. Mr. Yeung was
an executive director of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited (now
known as “Kirin Group Holdings Limited”, stock code: 8109) (“Creative
Energy”), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, for the period
from 30 January 2010 to 29 July 2010. During the term of Mr. Yeung’s office
as its executive director, the group of Creative Energy was principally engaged
in the provision of energy saving services and sales of energy saving products.
Following the completion of the restructuring of Creative Energy, he resigned
as an executive director of Creative Energy with effect from 29 July 2010.

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching, aged 58, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years
of experience in hospitality management and hotel operations. Mr. Cheng was
previously the General Manager of Dorsett Tsuen Wan Hotel and Silka Far
East Hotel since 2013, and he joined the Dorsett Group as the General
Manager of Silka Far East Hotel in 2007. Mr. Cheng previously worked for the
Majestic Hotel in 2000 as Front Office Manager and was promoted to Director
of Sales in 2005. He is a member of the executive committee of The
Federation of Hong Kong Hotel Owners. Mr. Cheng is currently the executive
director of Stan Group and the managing director of Tang’s Living Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong, aged 38, was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. Dr. Tang graduated from
Guangzhou University of Chinese Medicine. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree of
Chinese Medicine, a Master Degree of Acupuncture and Massage, a Research
Student Degree in Acupuncture and Massage (Master) and a PH. Degree of
Acupuncture and Massage. He is also a qualified Clinical Hypnotherapist
certified by the American Council of Hypnotist Examiners. Dr. Tang has over
15 years of experience in retail and Chinese medicine practice. He is currently
the founder and managing director of J. Champion Holdings Ltd and the
managing director of Tang’s Catering Group. He is also the elder brother of
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (the Chairman of the Board and executive director of the
Company) and the son of the late Mr. Tang Shing-bor (substantial shareholder
of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony v, up

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony MH, JP, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from 23 March
2020. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yuen graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree
of Bachelor of Business Administration in 1977. He was awarded The Ten
Outstanding Young Persons (T AGEH F4) in 1992. He is a seasoned
executive in the financial and insurance fields in which he held senior executive
positions in a number of major international and local companies.

Mr. Yuen is currently the managing director and responsible officer of Yue
Tung Global Asset Management Ltd., and Elected Member of the Standing
Committee of The Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK”), a Council
Member of the Chinese University of Hong Kong and Director of the CUHK
Medical Centre Ltd. He is also an independent non-executive director of Sun
Hung Kai Properties Insurance Ltd. Prior to that, he was an independent non-
executive director of Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 6161), a
company listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange, for the period from 14
April 2015 to 7 January 2020.
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Mr. Lam Cheung Wai
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 19 October 2020.

Mr. Lam graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in December 1981. Mr. Lam
was awarded The Ten Outstanding Young Persons (1A% H & 4E) in 1996.
Mr. Lam has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (formerly known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since
February 1998 and a certified internal auditor of the Institute of Internal
Auditors since March 2009.

He had been an Accounting Officer in The Treasury of HKSAR Government
since July 1986 and retired in April 2017. He also served as an independent
non-executive director of Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code:
2293, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from June
2014 to January 2019. Mr. Lam is a co-founder of Hong Kong Rehabilitation
Power, and he served as the president of its council of management from April
1995 to December 2013. He also co-founded Empowering Life Network
Limited, a charitable organisation aiming to serve deprived youths, in 2013.
Mr. Lam was appointed as a member of the Rehabilitation Advisory
Committee of the HKSAR Government since January 2016.
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Mr. Wong Kam Pui

Mr. Wong Kam Pui, BBS, JP, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company
with effect from 19 October 2020. He has extensive experience in human
resources management and administration with local and international
renowned organisations. He has been a council member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Human Resources Management since June 2000 and latterly
served as its president from July 2008 to June 2010. Mr. Wong graduated
with a bachelor’s degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in December 1996. He subsequently obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in November 2013.

He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the HKSAR Government in
2015. Mr. Wong has taken up responsibilities with governmental bodies of the
HKSAR and has been serving as an adviser for various matters concerning the
local community, including human resources, education, labour, welfare,
commerce and economic development matters, to name a few: chairman of
Cross-Industry Training Advisory Committee on Human Resource
Management, member of Committee on Self-financing Post-Secondary
Education, ordinary member of Travel Industry Authority, chairman of board of
director of Hong Kong Education City Ltd. (an Education Bureau institution)
and executive committee member of Hong Kong Housing Society. In October
2020, Mr. Wong was awarded Bronze Bauhinia Star in recognition of his
dedicated and meritorious public service. As a member of the Standing
Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service, he
provided invaluable advice on civil service pay and related matters. He also
serves the education sector with enthusiasm, and has made significant
contribution to the development of post-secondary education and curriculum
development.

Mr. Wong is the founder and has been a director of RESOLUTIONS HR &
Business Consultancy Company Limited, a private company principally
engaged in the provision of business and human resources solutions as well
as consultancy services, since March 2015. He served as a non-executive
director of Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 2293, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from September
2014 to June 2018. Mr. Wong has been an independent non-executive
director of the Medialink Group Limited (stock code: 2230, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since April 2019. In August 2020,
he was appointed by the City University of Hong Kong as a Part-time HR
Advisor for the new campus development at Dongguan.
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Mr. Wong Kit Loong

Mr. Wong Kit Loong, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company with
effect from 19 October 2020. He is a property management professional with
over 30 years’ experience and extensive network in the property management
and housing sectors. He had served as the chief executive officer and
executive director of the Hong Kong Housing Society from April 2009 to
March 2020.

Mr. Wong graduated with a bachelor’s degree in General Business
Management from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1978. He is also a
graduate of the Advanced Management Program of Harvard Business School.
He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Housing, Hong Kong Institute of
Housing and Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

Mr. Wong has been actively involved in various public and community
services. He is currently a member of the Governing Council of Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, the Elderly Commission. Mr. Wong has been the
Steering Committee on Qualifications Framework Fund under Education
Bureau until September 2020. He was also a member of Task Force on Land
Supply, the chairman of the Apprenticeship Training Board of Vocational
Training Council, a member of Land, Rehousing and Compensation
Committee of Urban Renewal Authority, a member of the Property
Management Industry Training Advisory Committee under Education Bureau,
the Chairman of Chartered Institute of Housing, Asian Pacific Branch, and a
member of Hong Kong Housing Manager Registration Board.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chu Lai King, aged 68, is the head of human resources of the Group.
She joined the Group in July 1989 as home manager. Ms. Chu is responsible
for recruitment and human resources matters of the Group.

Ms. Chu obtained a Diploma in Gerontology from School of Professional and
Continuing Education of The University of Hong Kong in August 2005.

Ms. Yam Hau Kam, aged 54, is one of the nursing directors of the Group.
She joined the Group in February 1990 as an enrolled nurse. Ms. Yam is
responsible for the quality control of the senior care services of the Group.

Ms. Yam has been a registered nurse since June 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked for United Christian Hospital from February 1989 to
October 1989. She obtained a Higher Diploma in Nursing from The Open
University of Hong Kong in June 2006 and completed the Assessors Training
Course (2015) 1st Class organised by the Hong Kong Association of
Gerontology in November 2015 under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation
Scheme.

Ms. Pun Shuk Kan Pisa, aged 56, is one of the nursing directors of the
Group. She joined the Group in January 1998 as an enrolled nurse. Ms. Pun is
responsible for the quality control of the senior care services of the Group.
Since September 2017, Ms. Pun has been responsible for the development
and management of Mainland China business of the Group.

Ms. Pun has been a registered nurse since June 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked for Sik Sik Yuen Elderly Service from June 1993 to August
1997. She obtained a Higher Diploma in Nursing from The Open University of
Hong Kong in June 2006. Ms. Pun completed the Assessors Training Course
(2015) 1st Class organised by the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology in
November 2015 under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme and
completed the Advance Diploma Programme in Dementia Care from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing
in April 2021.
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Mr. Lo Sze Hung, aged 37, joined the Company on 22 February 2021 as the
Chief Financial Officer to oversee the Company’s accounting and finance
matters and internal control affairs. Mr. Lo has over 14 years of experience in
accounting, finance and business advisory work. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Lo worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong, from September
2006 to June 2015, with his last position as senior manager. He also worked
at Hutchison Port Holdings Group from June 2015 to July 2017, as the group
finance manager; and at Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock code:
8086), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, from July 2017
to February 2019, with his last position as the group chief financial officer and
company secretary. Mr. Lo was the assistant general manager, Finance, of
HKIA Services Holdings Limited (a subsidiary under Airport Authority Hong
Kong) from February 2019 to February 2021. Mr. Lo obtained a degree of
Bachelor of Business Administration (Professional Accountancy) from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2006. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010.

Ms. Ho Pui Lam, aged 34, is the marketing and business development
director of the Group. She joined the Group in 2018 as the marketing
manager. Ms. Ho is responsible for leading multimedia marketing initiatives
and go-to-market business development strategy as well as managing the
marketing and customer service team of the Group. Ms. Ho obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Arts (Communication and Media Management) from the
University of South Australia in 2010. She is a seasoned executive in digital,
content and integrated marketing with over 10 years solid experience in the
E-commerce and global digital advertising industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance in
maintaining its corporate transparency and accountability. The Board sets
appropriate policies and implements corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board considers that during the year ended 31 March 2021, except for
the code provision A.4.1, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the foregoing deviation are
summarised below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries have been made to all the
directors and all directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”), governing
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by relevant employees was
noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and relevant
employees in advance.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management of the
Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decision and
performances in the attainment of the objectives of ensuring effective
functioning and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. All the
directors carry out their duties in good faith, take decisions objectively and act
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board as a whole is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The
Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The Board has power to make its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice
and services of the Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations. Any director may request for independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

The senior management is delegated the authority and responsibilities by the
Board for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the above-mentioned officers. The Board has the full support of the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.
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Board Composition
As at 31 March 2021, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Non-executive director

FHITES

Executive directors

HITES

EEEMAEK
MR2021 53 A31H  EFEMERNT :

Independent non-executive directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yip Keung

(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching
HmAafE (£E)
BRESRSTE (FTE4REL)
BB E

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong

L

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors). Throughout the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Board has met the requirements of the Listing
Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of having a minimum of three independent non-
executive directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) with at least
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.

The members of the Board have skills and experience appropriate for the
business requirements and objectives of the Group. Each executive director is
responsible for different business and functional division of the Group in
accordance with his expertise. The non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) bring different business and financial
expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the Board and they are
invited to serve on the Board committees of the Company. Through
participation in Board meetings, and taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflicts of interests, the independent non-executive
directors have made contributions to the effective direction of the Company
and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
both the Group and the shareholders.

The biographical details of the existing directors of the Company and the
relationships between Board members, if any, are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” in this annual report.

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai

Mr. Wong Kam Pui

Mr. Wong Kit Loong
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in light of the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer in order to ensure a balance of
power and authority and preserve a balanced judgement of views.

The Chairman provides leadership for and management of the Board. He
takes the primary responsibility to ensure that the Board works effectively,
performs its responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in a
timely manner. The Chairman is also responsible for facilitating the effective
contribution of non-executive directors and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive directors. During the year under review,
the Chairman has met with the non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the executive directors present.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for leading the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business in accordance with the strategy, policies
and programs approved by the Board, and realization of the objectives set by
the Board into statements of vision, goals and the corresponding strategies,
plans and budgets as well as their effective implementation. He is also
responsible for providing reports and advice to the Board on the performance
of the Group’s business. The Chief Executive Officer would be well supported
by the management, who provides relevant information and recommendations
to facilitate informed decision making.

With effect from 19 October 2020, Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei resigned as an
executive director and the Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Chan Yip Keung
was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer; whereas Mr. Tang Yiu Sing acts
as the Chairman of the Board throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment and removal of directors are laid
down in the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”). According to
the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time being (if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The retiring directors shall be eligible for re-election at
the relevant AGM. In addition, any new director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
shareholders after his/her appointment, and any director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM. The director appointed by the Board as aforesaid shall be
eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. All the non-
executive director and independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to retirement and
re-election by shareholders at the AGM pursuant to the Articles. Accordingly,
the Board considers that such requirement is sufficient to meet the underlying
objective of the said code provision A.4.1.

Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director shall receive formal induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he/she is
fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional
development for directors are arranged whenever necessary. In addition,
reading materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable
to the Group are provided to directors from time to time for their studying and
reference.
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The directors of the Company are required to submit to the Company details AN AGEEERSHREEERNATIERELDES
of the training they received in each financial year for the Company’s  KZHIEEE @+ SR ARG HEEHEEEYI508% -
maintenance of proper training records of the directors. According to the — iRIEZAR QT B ATARFAIE IS  ARATESNE
training records currently maintained by the Company, during the year ended E2021 F3A31 AITFED BT ESASTAISTA)
31 March 2021, the directors of the Company have complied with the code X5 AB6.51K - 2MNMIFEEZEEIIMT ¢
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in continuous professional

training as follows:

Type of training "o
IZH|dEHY (M)
Reading materials

Attending seminars/ provided by the
conferences and/ Company or

or forums external parties
HEWHE FEHAQ R

BERUWE  MPEBRENR

Executive Directors: HiTESE -
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing BRAE LA v 4
Mr. Chan Yip Keung PREESR A v v
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing HREFE v v
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching B4 B S A v v
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei Mote D BOmE LA KD (4 v
Non-executive Directors: HBITESE
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong Rt v v
Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert Nete ) ShRB S (WD) v v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIFITESE -
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony BriERITE v v
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai Note2) MEBEL A W) v v
Mr. Wong Kam Pui Nete2) Z e A (i) v v
Mr. Wong Kit Loong Nete2) A EE e A (W) v v
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang ®ote ) B A S A (D v v
Dr. Wong Ping San John Mete FH LB (D v v
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing Mo BERkEL o 4 v
Notes: B3
1. Resigned as directors of the Company with effect from 19 October 2020. 1. H2020F 10 A 19 HBBHEAR NG ES
2. Appointed as directors of the Company with effect from 19 October 2020. 2. H20205F 10 A 19 A EZERANAIES ©
3. These seminars/conferences/materials are related to regulatory development/ 3. ZEMAE /% MEHIAREERRE, /B
updates, directors’ duties, corporate governance or other relevant topics. EEWE  CETANHMABERS -
40 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Meetings

The Board schedules regular Board meetings in advance to give directors the
opportunity to participate actively, either in person or through electronic means
of communication which enable them to communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously. Directors are consulted for their views
regarding inclusion of specific matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings and the draft agenda is circulated to directors for their comments.
Special Board meetings are convened as and when needed. All directors are
properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. These Board
meetings, together with the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees
meetings, provide effective means for the Board and Board Committees to
perform their work and discharge their duties.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has held 4 Board
meetings, 3 Audit Committee meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings,
1 Nomination Committee meeting, the 2020 AGM and 1 extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”). Details of individual directors’ attendance at these meetings
are set out in the following table:

e

= a3

EFeR AR EHEFTEEI UL TES
BERGIBEBAUEANRKRRNKERNE
FRATXNBEHEZE - RBEEEBRAAE
HEZZ YRR IERERNEFNER &
RERNEHNETESFHAEXER - KA
FER SedREHEFESE - AHE
REFGZH LIRNFENENTBERE
BEFHEFL -ZZEF2gE ZAF
% RELFHEESSE REFSRE
EeZEeHERIERETEEREENS
* e

HZE2021F3AIALFE  ARAI8R174
REESEH SNERLZESEH  20FH
MEZBEEegH 1XREZZEEEEH 2020
FREEFAE  UE1IBREENARS ([
BEAAE]) ZEeHNENESHER
BENRTE -

2020
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual  Extraordinary

Board Committee Committee Committee General General

Name of Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
EREEE FHMze8 REZEE  20205RE

=z FE--E ] g% 2 BEXE  RREAKE
Executive Directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing BRars 4/4 N/ATER 2/2 11 1/1 11
Mr. Chan Yip Keung e 4/4 N/ATER N/ATEF N/ATEF 1/1 11
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing BREZE 4/4 N/ATEH N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 11
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching BEmEE 4/4 N/ATEH N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 11
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei e BomE S A ) 202 N/ATER NATER N/ATEF 1/1 -
Non-executive Directors: FaTEE:
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong BRAEt 4/4 N/ATEH N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 11
Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert tees 1.9 BREEEME 1/2 11 N/ATER N/ATEH 0 -
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV HH/7EE -
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony LR AE 44 3/3 2/2 il 11 11
Mr. Lam Cheung Waj Metes2.451 MERFEE M 49 2/2 2/2 - - - 11
Mr. Wong Kam Pui (2 4 bVt 2/2 2/2 N/ATER N/ATEH - 11
Mr. Wong Kit Loong "oes2 4 FUS 2/2 2/2 N/ATRER N/ATERA - 11
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang "6 BREEFEME O 2/2 11 2/2 11 11 -
Dr. Wong Ping San John Mete ) H LB A ED 2/2 N/ATE N/ATEF N/ATER 1/1 -
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing e BEkBL M) 2/2 N/ATE N/ATEF N/ATER 1/1 -
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Notes:

Resigned as directors of the Company with effect from 19 October 2020. Prior to
their resignation, 2 Board meetings and the 2020 AGM were held during the year
under review.

Appointed as directors of the Company with effect from 19 October 2020.
Subsequent to their appointment, 2 Board meetings and 1 EGM were held during
the year under review.

Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert resigned as a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company with effect from 19 October 2020. Prior to his resignation, 1 Audit
Committee meeting was held during the year under review.

Mr. Lam Cheung Wai, Mr. Wong Kam Pui and Mr. Wong Kit Loong were
appointed as members of the Audit Committee of the Company with effect from
19 October 2020. Subsequent to their appointment, 2 Audit Committee meetings
was held during the year under review.

Mr. Lam Cheung Wai was appointed as a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from 19
October 2020. Subsequent to his appointment, no Remuneration Committee
meeting and Nomination Committee meeting were held during the year under
review.

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang resigned as a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company with effect
from 19 October 2020. Prior to his resignation, 1 Audit Committee meeting, 2
Remuneration Committee meetings and 1 Nomination Committee meeting were
held during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 Board committees, namely, the Remuneration

Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for

overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees

have been established with defined written terms of reference which are

available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website. Al

the Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or

recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their

duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent

professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s

expenses.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises a total of 3 members, being

one executive director, namely Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, and two independent non-

executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony (chairman of the

Committee) and Mr. Lam Cheung Wai.
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Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has met the Listing
Rules requirements of having the majority of the Remuneration Committee
members being independent non-executive directors, as well as having the
Committee chaired by an independent non-executive director.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure, and the remuneration packages of directors and members of senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the
CG Code is adopted). The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
the Board with reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee has held
2 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph headed “Meetings”) and performed the following major
works: (i) reviewed the existing remuneration policy and structure of the
Company; (i) reviewed the remuneration packages of directors and senior
management of the Company; (i) considered the bonus payment of executive
directors and senior management of the Company; (iv) considered the
remuneration of newly appointed directors; and (v) made relevant
recommendations to the Board.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 March
2021 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
MR (B

REBZE2021F3A31 HILBEFE  AQRRBEHA
EHRABRE  FMEE S RBHOKE BB LI
PWITEE  ULBBYIIFNTESEIZESERE -

FHZEENTIERABEANESSRAR A HMHM
BELRRE  UREZLSREEEKENHIGT
BAE R A (AR B8 <7 Bl ST AR XX
B.1.2)i) BT KO HER) - N E B & TR E A st
ER BB MBI LB HENRR - U
REEEFLEEABEAR2ERTEERT O
B mEMEREES2EEBALRARFNER
FIAR T IHE P LA R TEE °

BHE2021F3ABNHILEFE  HIMEZEGEETT2
REFH(BZRENEMLFLEIR LB &H M)
WHETTATEETE: VBEHTARANREH
BRI () FEHARFEERSRERED
ORI ZEAARRATEERGRERE
XA (WEBRFZEESOFH : RVRES
SIEHAMERERE -

IR ZEE AT RIS AR EBA5 16 - #H Z= 2021
FIABNBILFESREREXNERBEIHNEF
EEEEIT

Number of
individual(s)

AB

20,000-200,000
200,001-500,000
500,001-800,000
800,001-1,100,000

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises a total of 3 members, being
the Chairman of the Board, namely Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (chairman of the
Committee), and two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen
Tak Tim Anthony and Mr. Lam Cheung Wai.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has met the code
provision A.5.1 of the CG Code of having a majority of the Committee
members being independent non-executive directors, and having the
Committee chaired by the Chairman of the Board.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity perspectives) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; identify qualified and suitable individuals to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Director Nomination Policy. Such policy,
devising the criteria and process of selection and performance evaluation,
provides guidance to the Board on nomination and appointment of directors.
The Board believes that the defined selection process is good for corporate
governance in ensuring the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level, and enhancing better Board effectiveness and diversity as well as
in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select candidates for
directorship from various channels, including but not limited to internal
promotion, re-designation, referral by other member of the management and
external recruitment agents. In selecting candidates for directorship of the
Company, the Nomination Committee may make reference to certain criteria
such as the Company’s needs, the diversity on the Board, the integrity,
experience, skills and professional knowledge of the candidate and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her
duties and responsibilities.
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Each candidate shall be ranked by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and his/her reference check. The Nomination Committee shall
report its findings and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of appropriate candidate for directorship for decision.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Company believes
that greater diversity of Directors is good for corporate governance and is
committed to attract and retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of
competencies from the widest possible pool of available talents; and to assess
regularly the diversity profile of the Board and, where applicable, the senior
management prepared for Board positions under the succession planning of
the Company and the progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any. A
Board diversity policy was adopted by the Company, pursuant to which the
Board and the Nomination Committee are responsible for reviewing and
assessing the Board composition under diversified perspectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience) and for ensuring that changes to the Board’s
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The Nomination
Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation to the Board, if
any. Such policy and objectives, if any, will be reviewed from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. The Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained during the year ended 31
March 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee has held 1
meeting (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph headed “Meetings”) and performed the following major
works: (i) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group; (i) assessed the independence of
all the independent non-executive directors; (i) recommended the re-election
of the retiring directors at the 2020 AGM; and (iv) made recommendation to
the change of directors of the Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
composition of the Audit Committee throughout the year ended 31 March
2021.

The Audit Committee currently comprises a total of 4 members, being all the
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
(chairman of the Committee), Mr. Lam Cheung Wai, Mr. Wong Kam Pui and
Mr. Wong Kit Loong. Mr. Lam Cheung Wai possesses the appropriate
professional qualification, and accounting and financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the financial information
and reports of the Group, and considering any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditor before
submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with and the terms of
appointment of the external auditor and making relevant recommendation to
the Board; and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee has held 3
meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph headed “Meetings”) and performed the following major
works: (i) reviewed and approved the audit plan of the Company’s external
auditor, including the nature and scope of audit, audit methodology,
remuneration and terms of engagement in respect of the audit on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020; (ii) considered major audit
findings from the auditor; (iii) reviewed and considered the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
related annual results announcement and annual report; (iv) reviewed the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
internal audit function of the Group; (v) reviewed the compliance of the Deed
of Non-Competition by the Company’s then controlling shareholders; (vi)
considered the re-appointment of auditor at the 2020 AGM,; (vii) reviewed the
interim financial statements of the Group and related results announcement
and report of the Company for the six months ended 30 September 2020; (viii)
considered the change of auditors (including the remuneration and term of
engagement of new auditor) for the audit on the financial statements for year
ended 31 March 2021; and (ix) made relevant recommendations to the Board.

The external auditor has attended 2 of the above meetings and discussed with
the Audit Committee members on the above audit planning and financial
reporting matters. Besides, there is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021. The
management has provided such explanation and information to the Board as
necessary to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.
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The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The management has provided such explanation and
information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial information and position of the Group put
forward to the Board for approval.

As set out in note 2.1 to the financial statements contained in this annual
report, as at 31 March 2021, the Group reported consolidated net current
liabilities of HK$40.1 million, which mainly included revolving bank loan facilities
and a bank loan that is not contractually due within the next twelve months
from 31 March 2021 but classified as current liability due to the bank’s
overriding rights to demand repayment.

The directors have given careful consideration of the liquidity and performance
of the Group, various investments and capital expenditure plans and the
available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group has sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.

After taking into account of the projections of its cash flows from operations,
the reasonably possible downside changes to the cash flow assumptions in
the cash flow projections for the twelve months ending 31 March 2022, the
expected completion of new banking facilities and the continuous availability of
existing banking facilities (as detailed in note 2.1 to the financial statements),
the directors considered that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the coming twelve
months from 31 March 2021 and continue as going concemn. Accordingly, it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 on a going concern basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Group’s risk management and internal control systems have been
designed to protect assets from misappropriation and unauthorised
transactions and to manage operational risks.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Company’s shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and makes relevant

recommendations.

The management, in coordination with department heads and operation
teams, regularly assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, ranked these risks
according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on the Group,
provided treatment plans, and monitored the risk management progress, and
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on any findings and measures
to address the variances and identified risks. During the year ended 31 March
2021, the proliferation and continuance of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong
Kong continued to pose challenges, especially in the area of infectious control
in the Company’s care and attention homes, in which the Company has
implemented stringent preventive measures to ensure that highest standard of
hygiene protection and disinfection procedures have been maintained. Such
internal audit and assessment function aims to examine key issues in relation
to the accounting practices and all material controls, identify deficiencies and
ineffectiveness in the design and implementation of internal controls, and
propose recommendations for improvement. The Audit Committee and the
Board would review the business process and operations reported by internal
audit/management, including action plans to address the identified control
weaknesses, if any, as well as receiving status updates and monitoring the
implementation of recommended process.

The Company has procedures and internal controls measures for the
Company’s directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to
ensure that unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited. The Company has maintained a list of the authorised personnel,
including its directors, management and employees with access to inside
information (the “Listing of Authorised Personnel”) relating directly or indirectly
to the Company. The Board has reviewed the Listing of Authorized Personnel
on a regular basis to see if changes are required. Authorized personnel of the
Company must take reasonable care to safeguard the confidentiality of all
inside information in their possession or control. Moreover, all employees of
the Company are required to sign the employment contract with confidentiality
agreement to ensure that they are obliged not to divulge or disclose any inside
information to any outsiders. In case of discovery of leakage of the inside
information, the Board would be notified immediately, and subsequent
remedial measures would be taken.
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In addition, employee of the Company with a good faith belief that an event of
price sensitive nature exists or may exist should report to his/her immediate
supervisor/department head who is responsible for reporting the event to the
management. Management would evaluate the situation and make
recommendation to the Chairman on whether or not the issue should be
escalated to the Board. The department head is responsible to ensure that all
events of price sensitive nature are properly reported to management who
would ensure that the event is investigated in a timely manner.

The Company also established procedures to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company to relevant
working committee when appropriate. The working committee comprising the
directors and senior management and head of Human Resources, is
responsible for evaluating every report received and decide if a full investigation
is necessary, and reporting the issue, the result of investigation and the
corrective action taken to the Audit Committee to ensure the Audit Committee
notices the issue.

An independent risk assessment and internal control review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems has
been performed by an external consulting firm, which performed as an internal
audit function during the year. The Audit Committee and the Board would
review the reports by external consulting firm of any control issues identified in
the course of their work, and discussing with auditors the scope of their
respective review and findings. Such risk assessment and internal control
review aims to examine key issues in relation to the accounting practices and
all material controls, identify deficiencies and ineffective parts in the design and
implementation of internal controls, and propose recommendations for
improvement.

In addition, in terms of operational risks, the Company has implemented
standardised management and operational procedures across our care and
attention homes, which cover areas that are required under the RCHE Code
of Practice, Residential Care Homes (Elderly Persons) Ordinance (Chapter 459
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary legislation, the Service Quality
Standards issued by the Social Welfare Department, ISO 9001 quality
management system and the ISQua standards accredited by the Hong Kong
Association of Gerontology.
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The Company has established a Quality Assurance Monitoring Committee
(“QAMC”) to oversee the quality of the operations of the senior care services.
The composition of the QAMC includes the management team, employees,
residents, families of residents and parties independent of the Company. The
QAMC is responsible for conducting surprise audits and on-site inspections at
our care and attention homes and subsequent to such audits, providing
objective feedback and recommendation to the Company to manage relevant
operational risks and improve operational processes.

The Company has participated in the accreditation program under the
Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme of the Hong Kong Association of
Gerontology. Such accreditation programme promotes best practices in the
RCHE industry and conduct assessment annually. Accreditation under this
scheme ensures that the Company’s care and attention homes have, among
others, established effective governance; provided a safe, hygienic and
comfortable environment, facilities and quality services; and established a set
of planning, supervision and service improvement processes which enhance
the Company’s control over operational risks.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board, in conjunction with the
Audit Committee, conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and its
subsidiaries, including the process for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance; the adequacy of resources on internal audit, operational and
compliance controls; and financial reporting function; as well as staff
qualifications, experience, training programmes and related resources. The
Board considered that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2021 was effective and adequate, the
Board also considered the resources, qualifications/experience of staff of the
Group’s internal audit, accounting, financial reporting and business support
functions are adequate and no significant areas of concern has been identified.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yip Keung (also an executive director of the Company), who fulfils
the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules, had acted as the
Company Secretary of the Company during the year. Biographical details of
Mr. Chan are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” of this annual report. During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr.
Chan has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2021, on 13 April 2021, Mr. Chan
resigned and Mr. Lo Sze Hung, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, was
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company. Biographical details of
Mr. Lo are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” of this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

On 13 April 2021, Ernst & Young was removed and PricewaterhouseCoopers
was appointed as the auditor of the Company. During the year, the
Company’s interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2020 was
reviewed by Ernst & Young, the former auditor, and the amount paid in
respect of the said non-audit services was around HK$342,000. Further
details of the change of auditor are set out in the Company’s circular dated 24
March 2021 and announcement of the Company dated 13 April 2021.

The statement of the existing external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s existing
auditor, in respect of audit services for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
analyzed below:
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which enables shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision.

The Company maintains a website at www.pinecaregroup.com as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and operations and
other information are available for public access. Shareholders and investors
may send written enquiries or requests to the Company as follows:

Address: G/F, 1 Koon Wah Lane, 68-72 Yuk Wah Street,
Tsz Wan Shan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: investorrelations@pinecaregroup.com
Tel: (852) 2813 8102
Fax: (852) 3020 8779

Enquiries and requests will be dealt with by the Company in an informative
and timely manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Board members and senior staff will
be available to answer questions raised by the shareholders at general
meetings of the Company. In addition, the Company will invite representatives
of the auditor to attend its annual general meeting to answer shareholders’
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including but
not limited to the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings
will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide their full names,
contact details and identification, in the originally signed written requisition,
notice or statement (as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required by law.

With respect to the shareholders’ right in proposing persons for election as
directors of the Company, please refer to the procedures available on the
website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders passed on 23 January
2017, the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company was adopted with effect from 15 February 2017. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, there was no change in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company.

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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About This Report

Purpose B

The Group is here to disclose our Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”).
The Report aims to outline the Group’s sustainability approaches, strategies, and performance.

AEBEZPEBHRRE  HEREARE([ARE])  UHBEAKENRBEERRME - i LKA -

Reporting Scope and Period ¥} 5 E & HifE

Unless otherwise stated, the Report covers 11 care and attention homes in Hong Kong from 1st April
2020 to 31st March 2021 (the “Reporting Period”), including:

BRIERBRA  ARERENR_T_F

FE T —RAEELER 81

FMOMA—H

2T - —F=ZA=1+—HHBEUREHRE))

Pine Care (Tak Fung) Elderly Centre
iR (L) FEEH L

Pine Care (Po Tak) Elderly Centre
e (R1E) EZH O

New Pine Care Centre

R EZ O

Pine Care Chun King Elderly Centre
MiREREZDD

Pinecrest Elderly Centre
FARE = 0

Pine Care Place
MABR HESD,

Pine Care (Manning) Elderly Centre
Wi (BF)EZH DO

Pine Care Point
N P

Pine Care Hong Fai Elderly Centre
R EIEEZ D O

Patina Wellness
(includes serviced apartment and Patina Care)

B A (EREEERERL)

Pine Care (Lee Foo) Elderly Centre
iR (NE) EBZR L

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Reporting Standards ¥R %85|

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “HKEX”).

ABERBEEHE RSP ([BAFT]) EMARMEE -+ ECGRE - g hERHmERES) (13RE
HERERREES]) KEERRR

Sources of Information ZEiEHRE

The data reported in this ESG Report was prepared based on our internal statistical reports, internal
policies and other internal documents. The Board hereby confirms that no false or misleading
statements were made in this ESG Report.

AR - g REAREMBEENIZIRRE RMANAMBERES - AR REMBABT - E
SeERETLEERIREEARA

Board Approval EE 2t

The Report was reviewed and approved by the Board on 24 June 2021.

BrelN - —F XA THABBYEBARS -

B 0 A 2%
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Reporting Principle &R Al

This Report is compiled by adopting the following major reporting principles according to the ESG

Reporting Guide, namely materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency as set out below:

RBERBCORE 2 hEART
— % Fraian s

SRS EYIMNEEERREHRE

BREZME 2

Reporting
Principle
R

Definition

Ex

Our Response

B FIAYE R

Materiality
Bk

The ESG issues covered in this Report
should be significantly important to
stakeholders.

HEMRENIRE
RYEFMEEK

HEgREREER

Through materiality assessment, we
have identified ESG topics that are
material to various stakeholders and the
Group. For details of the assessment
processes and results, please refer to
the sections headed “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Materiality Analysis”.

BAERNEFHDERAEEMSEX
MIRR - HENELREE - FHEER
DT BIE N ER - F2H [#H0
2E| R [EEEST] B -

Quantitative
=1t

This Report should disclose key
performance indicators in a measurable
way.

WERAR T E/ T AW FERRR AN

\3_5 °

As far as practicable, the Group
discloses its key environmental and
social performance indicators
quantitatively where appropriate.

ERTERT DA%ML?‘?f&E’EK%
B R IRBE N S RERESIER

Balance

T

This Report should fairly present the
information of the Group to reflect a
comprehensive picture of the
sustainability performance of the Group.

i&%@@ft%?ﬁé@%lﬂ’ﬂi B
SEREBNAFEERRSE -

» DA B

The Group has identified and disclosed
the environmental, social and
governance issues with significant
impact on the Group’s business,
including the achievements and
challenges faced by the Group, in this
Report.

AEBECDBANEREEBEERTE
rIR I - Zi/\&a/u‘é BB
HAXRNFTESE - WRImEF
P FE o
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Reporting Definition Our Response
Principle E& EMHE e
=8l
Consistency Preparation of this Report should be | The reporting scope and reporting
— 3 based on consistent methods over time. method of this Report are substantially
consistent with those of the prior year,
EEERRERIRE g REATRS | and this Report has also disclosed year-
R R B EEE— - to-year comparative information where
appropriate.
HENMEBEEERFEREFK
B3 MEANNEERBEREFEY
L8R -

Access to this Report $R&EERH R,

This Report has been prepared in both English and Chinese. In case of discrepancy, the English
version shall prevail. This Report is incorporated in the Group’s Annual Report which is available on
HKEX’s website and the Group’s website.

RBEEBAPERA - EMRALIREE - SIARRANSE - ARERREBFERSE 0
HA] BB R P R A EERELER] -

Feedback =R /xt&

Every opinion from our stakeholders is of the utmost important to the Group. If you have any opinions
or suggestions to this Report or the Group’s sustainability performance, you are welcomed to email to
info@pinecaregroup.com.

B—FMNENERHASEMEHEHEEZ - 1 B THARERASENIHELZRREGE
ME R iEz - Bl EE E info@pinecaregroup.com ©

B B 2 0 A 26
2021 % #
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About Pine Care
BRI

Pine Care Group was established in 1989 with the aim to be a standard setter in senior care industry
in Hong Kong. With our unwavering dedication to quality and focus on innovation, Pine Care has
grown from a senior care home into a market leader today as the first senior care operator listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

As a leader in the senior care sector and a prestigious brand, we offer senior care services with caring
professionals covering operations of residential care home, integrated senior wellness hub, daycare
services; as well as provision of multidisciplinary services and management consultation services for
wellness centre.

MEEERERIRN1989F  RER/RBBNLERBITRITESHFHNIZE - BEUMUEENTE
BT EAIR - AR —REELERERAARITENEREE - TEFEMIME—HLHH
L ERGIRHEE -

ERRETENBEENAGENME  RAREREZXZEENRS  BRELERS KA RIE
BEE - AREERS - ARSEET ORHEF X RSN EIEE AR o
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Our Purpose E RS

With 30 years experience in the senior care sector, Pine Care is committed to develop caring professionals
and offer pragmatic services. We have all along endeavored to:

° Stand out in the senior care sector with our unique and ever-expanding range of facilities, services
and professional care offerings that fulfill the growing needs of seniors at different stage of life; and

° Engage with our stakeholders at a profound level to ensure the desired outcomes are reached at

every level.
MREZEBEGNFHNREEELR  BINEEFERIZASWREBENRSE - HM—F

o BEARMBBATHREENRE RENEXEEER AEREEALSERBRNZESRR
fEmAEREEIEAERAML : M

o  HEENHERBETRN  UWHEARRMARSERHIES

IFEHARRK ©

Y S

B 47 B 2 7
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Core Value &% 0MEBE

Priority

o Respect seniors the way we would to our families

o Put the best interests of the elderly residents above all else
Innovation

° Devote to develop the senior care sector with innovative initiatives
Nurture

o Attract the best people possible and have the best system in place to help them reach their full
potentials

Evolution
o Evolve our service offerings to respond to ever-expanding range of senior care needs

o Cultivate courage to escalate the level of services of Pine Care and the senior care industry as a
whole

RERRL

o  WENF NERAREERE

s HBERENKAFNZERAEM

B RIHR

o DRIFESHRLZRED

BEAA

s MIEFATHIESRFNEERG  UBETDEEEN
FrEEML

o  FETERFNRY  ULRETE S EHREZLEFK

o BURTMRER MBERETENREKF
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Awards and Recognitions 2218 [

Hong Kong Association of Gerontology

BEEEFEY

Award for Recognizing

Full Participation of Elderly Service
Organizations in Accreditation
wERSEEREEESEE

o Gk EERA

il E BT

il LS' LLEF il
L) ‘l

Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme -
Excellent Grade and Excellent Facilities
(Pine Care (Po Tak) Elderly Centre and Pine Care Place)
BERER & E TR AR R R AT %4
(PRER (fR12) s 0 R DR EE )

Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme -
Good Grade and Good Facilities (8 of our care and attention homes)

BER RS R ERD R RTEMEE (e rexgehl)

Hong Kong Association of Gerontology and The
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust

EBETFEENEBBETELAEEES

Excellent Care Worker Election organized by Hong Kong Association of Gerontology and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust)
Certificate of Appreciation for Elderly Senior Care Service Staff - New Pine Care Centre (Staff Individual Award)
EREFEEREAERFECRAZECEN2EESREEERYE

ZERERNEEFZT - FREREEZT O (BTEARS)

The Elderly Services Association of Hong Kong and
Hong Kong Employment Development Service

EBRERBHEREERERERBE

The Fifth Excellent Senior Care Staff Election -
Excellent Staff (Front-line sector)
FRERERBEHETRS BFE T Grsas)

Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme -
Excellent Staff (Professional sector)
FRERERBHEHETRR  BFE T (F245))

Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme -
Excellent Participation Award (5 of our care and attention homes)
OB R (TSR ERS)

Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme -
Talent Awards (New Pine Care Centre)
AT ELBE GFnmsEsL)

B 0 A 2%
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Headline Daily
SRR B ¥R

Headline Daily Headlines No.1 Awards

No.1 Excellent Elderly Senior Care Services [ 4
TR {5k B AR TRIENO. 1 K2R

NO.1 £ #EZ RS
Y

The HongE Kong Council of Social Service ISO Quality Management Systems
BBt EREEHS ISO mEEERSK

Caring Company ISO 9001: 2015 Quality management

[ R ISO 9001 : 2015 MEHE R4

= LT
R EREE fAxaanl |[4EA7
caringcompan o
Awarded by Thtg)ng Kong Counc\\goc\a\ Serv! ISO 9001 . 20 1 5

SBMERIBHER

Certificate No.: CC 3377

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
ERESEGEAEEES

Jockey Club Age-friendly City Partner
ERGiORM B _—

]
4o

W i |
. ,’*‘ rb*,* A enee o T

d

BERBIEHS

Jochey Chub Age-treemaly Ciry
2020

JOCHEY CLUN AGE -FRIENDLY CITY PANTHERSHIP SCHEME
WETRANY 2E SENEE
020

A
& w &
Age-friend"y

IL

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Signature Projects - Silverage Collection

I\“E N E - I\_éﬁ? . %E

Pine Care Place A #RTESS

Where Innovation Meets Luxury S s Bl #HE

Conveniently situated in Yoho Mall I, Yuen Long, Pine Care Place is a senior care home designed to combine a

luxurious, home-like environment with our innovative approach to long-term senior care services. With an area of
over 33,000 square feet, Pine Care Place offers 68 beds, averaging close to 500 sq ft per resident, making us one of
the most spacious senior care homes in Hong Kong. In addition to the luxurious ambience, our service emphasizes

individualized care, catering to each resident’s specific needs.

HIBAIEES - AL JTEA Yoho Mall | - B A—MRELZERE @ 1TE [RIWRE - BLE8IFTE -
RERBALTEZEERG o B HE0(5H8 33,000 F 5 R « IRt 68 EERL - AHEELS500FFR - &
BEREERAERNLERE 2 — BRTHEAREFENELRE  RREATEETTNE LR
R - BRI TGRS o

Enriching the Lives of the Senior 2E R &4 E

An extensive range of amenities is available to maintain the physical and mental health of their residents, including
physiotherapy room and sensory therapy room. Pine Care Place also offers individualized nursing care and
rehabilitation programs to help the senior to carry out appropriate training. Senior residents can enjoy their stay and
form companionships with neighbors both indoors and outdoors. Among Pine Care Place’s leisure facilities are a
video and karaoke room, library and computer corner, games room, indoor garden, beauty salon, coffee bar, dining
room, spa and meditation room.

MR RRERE S OEE - BREREZ T 0iEa FE CRERERES  RAEAZERE
&TEF?Z*E§ : ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%t”@tﬂﬂ’\ﬂlliﬁ o WA - Pr B E R /ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%& i BRERFRE - Rok:
BEfE  EiE JT%J% iﬁq EE - EEE - PIEE - /ZH*“ REZ - HLOBE  REMAITREE
o 6 1#1’&5&5&2 raﬂli/é
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Patina Wellness E—JE_E% N R\Tl\\\m.l_\ﬁss/

A Silver Lining for the Silver Age R RER £ E

]

¢

M gl
| 1!-_'-_1““"

H T -—-euli

Breaking through the traditional mode of senior care service, beautifully designed, and conveniently located across
84,000 sq ft in Kowloon City, Patina Wellness offers 79 elegant serviced apartments for active seniors and their
family members. Created to be a community, not just a residence, Patina Wellness takes a halistic approach to living,
where both physical and emotional wellbeing are paramount.

REEGLEREERGEN - HASENREN - Rt EREE - BEN - #BEEZ84,000F TR
RE7TIEERREAELTEREEMEFRA - FEAFEKREHULEER  EBEMORKEES
EREHRAERE  BRREAEZFLEFX
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Patina Care Ef& 7% PATINACAS /

A New Age of Senior Care & 5K

Operating as a division within the Patina Wellness integrated wellness hub, Patina Care, the senior nursing care home

with 32 beds, sprawls beautifully across 8,000 sq ft of space in Kowloon City. With access to a spectrum of nursing
care plans, rehabilitation programs and supporting developmental services, Patina Care provides professional and
individualized medical care that is formulated based on each resident’s needs. Small, personal care groups of 10 to
11 in a cozy and home-like living environment gives residents a strong foundation to sustain their health and welfare.

FHREBMNNNEMN  RRAHGEEEHEM AR THEERS - (5B #8,000°F LR » 1232
BEM - FRESRBEENENMNRL - HIEEXEMBEAMENEERT R - BBEETE - BERTEM
EEE - AREWFREAZERE - FALETNRBERS  M10EMURES—E/NEME -
EEFBEIRBNVEERRT - HEREEREFEREMERMNLEE -

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
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Pine Care Point #A#z £45T gé%l i/

Residential Care Home for the Elderly Specializing in Dementia Care
RAERTEZERS

Conveniently situated in Shek Kip Mei, Pine Care Point is specifically designed to serve the special needs of senior

residents suffering from dementia. With an area of over 43,000 sq ft, Pine Care Point offers 102 beds in various room
configurations. While the majority of the rooms are offered as single rooms or single suites, 2-person to 4-person

rooms are also available.

It provides a thematic space on each of its floors, namely Community Space, Culture and Arts Space, as well as
Elderly Vitality Space. Each floor is fitted with numerous facilities, with services and activities designed to provide the
appropriate care for our residents ranging from early to late cognitive impairment.

MEREF LN ARE - B —HStHTEEERAER M RN ER S o IR FHIEE 43,000 F
TR REA0R2KKA - RETRARFE - EFRBRR/REABLEAZR WM THEEAFENOA
FrATfLEeE

MERHTBEAETRAEE - BEEREERER - MEENEHERERNER - BEAEERE TR
MRiE  RASERBENES - SEBVHRERMAANERNEERIENIRE -
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Our Approach to Sustainability

ARy A 548 35 R U0 &1

Guided by our core principle of “respecting the elderly as family”, our commitment to sustainable
development starts with responsibly managing the operations of our care and attention homes. We are
devoted to integrating ESG considerations into our business. We believe that sustainability
encompasses not only our environmental performance and contribution to the wider community, but
also underpins our core business practices and our relationships with residents, shareholders,
employees, and suppliers.

The Group embraces sustainable development in pursuit of our mission — “creating a warm and
pleasant silver age for the elderly” based on the four priority areas: (i) Pine Care Silverage; (i) Pine Care
Green; (iii) Pine Care Smart; and (iv) Pine Care Caring. We support the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (“SDGs”), which aim to end poverty, protect the planet and ensure that all people
enjoy peace and prosperity by 2030, through working on our priority areas

AREHEWRIOZOED  RFIARABEEN T AEERMBE TERELERENEE  UE
BAFEER - RPBOERE £ REATEBARMNES - RIOAEE - AIHE %"J?%BTTF%
FRANRRRBEALGEROER - TREEEZ T HMOER - BRI ERE R A NI R
F% - RE - BEIAHEERABR -

AEIREREGE AR ORRNRE IWRE - BFSTHOAZHBE : [RREE ] [RERES] -
[MAERERE | K [T | P HEER  RRMOERES A 583 E B R (UNSDGs) » &
LR 2030 FRIEHERTA AR ZEE M FMERNRAR - REMWIRAERER o

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
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Maintaining quality senior oD HEATH

AND WELL-BEING

care services

BREEEEEEERE —’V\f'
Goal B#&

To provide high quality senior care services to create the
warm feeling of home for our residents

RESERLRERRE#EERS  ARETIEEOK

ANDINFRASTRUGTURE

o

Leveraging innovation for
enhanced silver age

SIFERIFT - RARELESTE
Goal BZ

To adopt smart solutions to cater
to the needs of our residents in
support of their physical, mental
and social well-being
HASEIRBEIEMS @ RE
I & DFRER TR

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Pine Care
Silverage
MR E
Pine Care Pine Care
Smart Green
Al & BE NzEF g )
Pine Care )/
Caring
NEREE

DECENT WORK AND GOOD HEALTH QUALITY
8 ECONOMIC GROWTH 11 ﬁ%&%‘s AND WELL-BEING EDUCATION

ol || o

Fostering a caring culture for our
employee and community

EDREEXL  BEST - ERdH

Goal B&

Our Employees ZFWET :

To cultivate a corporate culture that embraces
talent development, employee wellbeing and
family-friendly practices

BEEREIER BIXENRERSNLE
X1k

Our Community i1 E:

To proactively engage in community contributions
BRI AL E F R

RESPONSIBLE CLIMATE
CONSUMPTION ACTION
ANDPRODUCTION

Embracing a
greener future

B BRR
Goal B

To pursue a sustainable
operation pattern to
combat climate change
and protect our planet
HAOSRABELER
A - BERIRE L - R
HER



Sustainability Governance

HEEERRER

Being accountable for the long-term stable growth of the Group, the Board retains the ultimate
responsibility for the oversight of the Group’s risk management activities and monitors material ESG
risks. The Group considers risk management as an integral part of daily management and sound
corporate governance. Risk management mechanism assists the Group to evaluate and minimize risks
that may prevent or endanger the achieving of its business objectives in a dynamic business
environment where economic, industry, regulatory and operating conditions continue to change. The
Group assesses and determines the ESG-related risks and opportunities and considers their
implications. We also formulate ESG-related controls to address significant ESG risks of which the
controls are operated effectively at corresponding business levels. Coupled with sound internal
controls, the process facilitates a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritizing, managing,
and monitoring of the risks that the Group faces in its operations. Details on our risk management
approach can be found in the Corporate Governance Report section.

BEEgAAEENRRETEREE  WAEAEEASENRERER EHIEE EANESGHEEAR
b e AEERREREESATEEM iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiam MEZE—IR - B EEESH A B A KB
1E HE[REPTREPHIE S BEEHRGE - 17 - FHRERKEMRA TS LN EREHRRPERE
% B TEEE'JJ_L % o ﬁilﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁmiﬁifﬁiﬁ g kEREERBNEREKBTEELTLE o B
MEERIR - g RERHBHEGEE - NEHERIRE g hEGRR - Mk FEHE BT
HAMEBRANBREE - LETENNEIZS - ZZHEEEFERTE 7 B TERE
TASEZERBETEENER - BERMEAREEFANE  F2HCEESWME—& -
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Stakeholder Engagement
ShESHE

Stakeholder engagement is an integral part of our sustainable development journey. We have identified
customers (residents) , employees, government and regulatory authorities, investors, suppliers and
contractors and the community as our major stakeholder groups. Engaging with stakeholders allows
us to better shape our business strategy to respond to their needs, anticipate risks and strengthen key
relationships. We maintain close communication with stakeholders through various formal and informal
channels in our daily operations.

The material issues of their concerns and regular communication channels are as follow:

FESESRMANAFERRERESRER - RPIEHREFPBRR) - BT - BT REEHE -
KREE HEBLARBAMERESEMANIZERNE - BFHELEEPRMFRBRRERE - K
Bl e P K - ipI R IR E T BER - HMIN BB L ETEBSE LN HEIF T A #)RE B
NERGEZHE -

MENREERALRMARRENBERBAOT

Stakeholders Material Issues Communication Channels
BHo&E BEXREHE BERE
Customers e Service quality and customer safety e Customer hotline
(Residents) REEEMRFLE KPER
%H‘F e Complaint handling e Grievance mechanism
(Fe &) e SEa L
e Customer privacy protection e Feedback surveys
B P HLEIRE BRAE
e Customer right
BF A
Employees e Health and safety e Training and employee activities
& EENZE Bk EE RS
e Career development and promotion e Grievance mechanism
opportunities FR BF A )
EXRRLEARS
e Remuneration and benefits protection
Frl K g AIIREE

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Stakeholders

Material Issues

Communication Channels

BHE BEAEH BERE
Government e | egal compliance e Compliance with government policies
and regulatory BPAE BFRFBR
authorities e Senior care industry development e Response to inquiries from
BRI I EE B i REITERRE government and departments
[ fE B T 3R PI & 3R
e Fulfilment of social responsibility
B EEE
Investors ¢ Performance growth and return on e Convene of regular shareholder
REE investment meetings
FEERIIRE DR EHORBKRREAE
e |nformation disclosure e Publish of financial and ESG reports
BIRE HIZE B 1 RESGHR S
e Business operation risks
EeERR
Suppliers and ® Responsible purchasing e Supplier comparison matrix
contractors BEERE {Hk JE 725 L 8RB
PHAE R KA B e Integrity ¢ Regular communication
B EHAR
Community e Support community engagement e Cooperation with social enterprise
o Xt mAE S PEEE
e Promote public health
HEBRARER
ek R E AR A
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Materiality Assessment

EEL

During the Reporting Period, we have engaged an independent consultant to assist the Group in
conducting stakeholder survey to collect opinions from stakeholders towards the Group’s
environmental, social and governance issues. The procedures of the materiality assessment are as

follows:

RI|EMRE - ZAZEBELER B AREETHNERE  WEFDEYAKRERE - L kE

BEENER c RXEEUSITHREFAT

Step 1

Step 2
S

Step
R

Identify Relevant Issues &5 Bl fH 8 :% &2

ldentify 27 environmental, social and governance issues that are material to
the Group according to past stakeholder engagement results, industry trend
and HKEX's ESG Reporting Guide.

REBERNEBRIBNER ERBE MMM GRE  HakeEn
WEHES) - AREBRTAEBEBLEFERTYIEBNERE -

Collect Stakeholders’ Ratings W&E#15 &5

Invite stakeholders to participate in online stakeholder survey to rate on the
27 issues.

BMBFRNEL2ER LREHAE - Sl REETID

Analyze Results 9T 4%

Prioritize the 27 issues with analysis according to the overall ratings of
stakeholders and our management.

REFNENREEBUSEZER LGSR BfSerEzEss)
BITRF » WHADHT
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Materiality Matrix EZ 45k /

o ®
) Sa. @@ ®
e ° S8
o o2
§ O o 2] y
(12} (2]
(5] (7] oee

Importance to the group

HEEENWEERY

\J

During the Reporting Period, the materiality assessment results are shown in the above materiality
matrix. The 9 issues on the top right-hand corner indicate the issues that our stakeholders are mostly
concerned with and will be disclosed in this Report in details.

RWEHE  HAGENBE2 M EEREN LR EREER - Edha LA o FERE R

RO FNERRFAINEER  BRAREPEHRE -

Material Issues & X:&58

Disclosed Sections # ZEZE &

© 66 6

©0 666

Occupational health and safety

R R S

Product and service assurance and quality
EmMkREBREREER

Health and safety of residents

FRERRELE

Customer rights, health and safety, complaint handling and

customer privacy protection
BEFENE  BRERZE  KHREREFILERE

Complaint handling and customer satisfaction
KRAREREFPmER

Customer data and privacy protection
BEFERRALBRE

Anti-corruption

RES

Governance and risk management
ERkERER

Legal compliance

&R

e Caring for Employees’ Wellbeing
FREES T%

* Maintaining Quality Senior Care Services
HR S ZREREIRG

e Guaranteeing Senior Health and Safety
RERERRERS

e Guaranteeing Senior Health and Safety
REERERRELZ S
o Listeningand Adopting Opinions
e Protecting Privacy
IREEFLER
. Listeningand Adopting Opinions
REREMNER
e Protecting Privacy
IRIEFLER
e Ethics and Integrity
BEME
e Sustainability Governance
AIREERER
e Corporate Governance
PEER
e Pine Care Silverage
RERHE
¢ Pine Care Green
MRRARE
e Pine Care Caring
AN

A b R B
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-l

Other Considered Issues H it E 2| %HE

Air emissions

BERIEIN

Waste
EEEY)

Carbon emission and energy
BB BETR
Water consumption

KIBFE

Climate change risk
RIEE AR

Green procurement

BERFEIN

Environmental risk in supply chain
HIEEIRIE R

Staff welfare
B IR

Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
FEfe 2Tt RRIER

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Staff development and training
8 TR &

Labour practices

BIEBTESR

Responsible sourcing
BEERE

Intellectual property rights management

AHERETRE

Marketing, advertising and promotion
Community investment

HEKRE

Technology and innovation
Bty K g1

Economic performance

KBRS

Information disclosure

AR R



Corporate Governance

P . L SIN
JJ:%'_E_'/IJ

Ethics and Integrity BEH=

Upholding good business ethics and integrity is considered as the cornerstone of the Group’s
continuous development. As such, we are in compliance with all laws and regulations in relations to
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering and other illegal behaviours, including but not
limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong. We have outlined our requirements in the
Employee Handbook, Employees’ Code of Conduct and other policies, requiring our employees to
avoid bribery and transfer of benefits, and guiding them to report conflict of interest and handle red
packets properly. We have also established whistleblowing channels for employees or other related
parties to report any suspected incidents to our Audit Committee or company secretary. We would
follow our standardized whistleblowing system and refer the incidents to the working committee in
which the Group’s director, head of finance and head of Human Resources Department would look
into the incidents and perform follow-up actions. They would report the details, investigation results
and follow-up actions of such incidents to the Audit Committee to maintain the Group’s business
ethics and integrity to protect the rights of the Group and its stakeholders.

We would provide trainings related to anti-corruption to our employees from time to time to enhance
their relevant knowledge. During the Reporting Period, we invited ICAC to provide anti-corruption
training to share about knowledge in terms of anti-bribery and handling conflict of interest.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any lawsuits or cases in relations to
corruption, and was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, corruption and money laundering.

MR RINEZBEMBEEARERABRRNEZED - Ut - RS TABEEE)S - 1Bl - 8
=BG - ARENEMBRERNEN - BRETRNEAC EBEED) - HAERE TFMH
BELAETRZRRIIAEHAEL  BEETHRATHIEXHH - WIME  FRANEFREE
BMRRRES - RATRASEMRE  WEAEISHEMEBALAERER  AIRAXAEENE
REREEUNRIMERR - WMIERBEENEREERF  HES ﬁﬂ’z,ﬁ!%’;&/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl’?ﬁﬁ
ZHEXE’JIT”Eé BerERRERER - ﬁﬂﬁﬁ/\ﬁ%’fi*éli#ﬁflxﬁli - AEERMBETE
RERARERSNREERIBEERE  #EARERFNENF =S
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BAENERRE TLBERESERE - RO FINBRE AR - RREME - RAEBDRRA
FETRESERE - M8 TAEE LR MEEIE M et B ZR e A o

R & IR - K%$E%3ﬁ§§ﬁﬁ%$&ﬁ[ﬂﬁEﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ’]ﬁ&éﬁ1¢1Z1£ﬂﬁh‘1lﬁ AN
BREMEREREGEBEN « BGF - FHRMUE 2 REEZRROINER

Partnership Ei#%1E

Suppliers of the Group mainly provide us with medical supplies and consumables, food and nutrient
products, kitchen suppliers, housewares, stationery as well as repair and maintenance services. During
the Reporting Period, we worked with a lot of suppliers. We mainly work with local suppliers as we
believe that we could largely reduce the carbon emissions due to transportation to help alleviate
climate change problem.

Since some of the supplies including food and nutrient products, and medical supplies and
consumables have a direct impact on our residents, we are highly concerned about the quality of such
supplies. We have established purchasing and supplier evaluation policy to assess new and existing
suppliers. Assessment criteria include quality of supplies, service quality, quality of supplies, after-sales
services, qualifications etc.

Apart from focusing on suppliers’ product and service quality, we are also devoted to promoting the
positive development of the supply chain. We are active in incorporating sustainability principles,
including environmental protection, legal compliance, labour rights and anti-corruption etc. into our
supplier evaluation system, in the hope of advocating our suppliers to take up their corporate social
responsibilities.

AEENHRERTZARMETRESREEERAL  RRlEEEAR  FEAR XM - XEAR
mEULBEHRELEBIRE - RBSEHE B —REZXEEEFEGIE TEANMMHER - &
PIAE1E B A FE RS & (B A A RORUK RE 8 B2 M &= A AR BERN - B BV & IR L -

H

EREDHERRINER  BRERM  EEAARLERARSEHRERKEERYZE  RMAYHE
mELRER - WA HEABRE LHEEIEHE  FIRERENMEBHEFNHERE « IR
BEE  ERRG  EEF

BT BT ERMRBTE R - BATGERNESHERN TR - RARSRSAIFERRTE
BRRERE - G680  BEEN  RESFRAHBEIZHE  SRESAKENTE
HBHERETEREE AT -
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Pine Care Silverage

NS

Throughout the years, Pine Care has been striving its very best to maintain the highest standards of
senior care services in order to uphold our leading position in the industry in Hong Kong and promote
our principle of “respecting the elderly as family” such that we could allow every of our residents to
enjoy their twilight years. In the meantime, we are in stringent compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and industry standards, which include but not limited to the RCHE Code of Practice,
Residential Care Home (Elderly Persons), Ordinance (RCH(EP)O) and its subsidiary legislation, the
Service Quality, Standards issued by the Social Welfare Department, ISQua standards accredited by
the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology, the Fire Services Ordinance, the Dangerous Goods
Ordinance and the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance etc. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to product
responsibility.

MR FRBNEFRERNLTEZERS - NERBAEERTEETENEEIN - RISHES) (6]
MR ORE  BREGUALZRSF - RATBNBTERNEREMROIMTREE - BRETR
N ARZREBTHD) ~ (RERGH) MEWBEED - tER@MNBELORFERETE BEEF
SeRAnEREREREHeRE - CEW&D) -~ (BRREM) K CEAER (L) &H)D
F o MEHR - AREL N TAENEREMBTRBEERZLROINBER -

Maintaining Quality Senior Care Services
HEESEEREEERK

Providing quality and caring services is considered as the cornerstone of our business. Most of our care
and attention homes have already obtained the ISO9001: 2015 Quality Management System Certificate.
With regards to its requirement, we tailor make Individual Care Plan (“ICP”) for every of our residents.
Whenever a new resident is admitted to our care and attention homes, our nurses, social workers
and physiotherapists would evaluate his/her conditions, including but not limited to the medical history,
fall risk, sensitivity, psychological condition etc., allowing us to have a thorough understanding of the
resident’s background and needs. We are in line with various international and industry-recognized
standards to formulate ICPs in a comprehensive and scientific way, ensuring that every need of our
residents has been addressed. We would evaluate and update each ICP every 6 months with regards to
resident’s current physical and mental condition and needs.

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
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Throughout his/her stay, a resident will receive well-rounded care and nursing services from our internal
and external professionals, including registered nurses, care workers, health workers, social workers,
physiotherapists, occupational therapists, speech therapists, nutritionist, Chinese medicine practitioners
and doctors. We have implemented comprehensive quality management systems within all care and
attention homes for our employees and professionals to follow so as to maintain high quality services.

RESEEMALOHRBERMEBNES - AKREXRF SR EHIEMBISO9001 : 2015E EE RS
RARFE - RMBHENX - FMARE(URRESTTEERNNEAZETE - EEFAALZE KM
ZHEL - T RYIBAEMTEEARN - BRETRENEE - KRR BHE - DERRE A
PEMEETHRESSERFE - AM2RBETENBRBRAITERUZLE - LEEMEEZER A HIE]
TRAEAZEE - BRBHSHM—IFE - BMIEFFoi b FAREAERE - BKEEIRF
BRAE THEEBEMOERINEE -

EREAER > B RHHEARIMNENEXE S - BEEMEL #E8 - RIEE8 - 1T - Y2
JAERED - BEOREED - SRAEM - 2 BA - PELBAEZARKIEREIAEERS - A HIE
PEMEEEEER  HERETMEMEXABRMAR S RHSEZORS -

Nursing &
Daycare
HIER A EREE
Medical v _
B4 P Physmtherapy
YR
L
iy q'( P
°® Individual <:>
Care Plan
Social Care 1A%$¥E—f§“ Medication
#3320 FE AR EE Me}ﬂagg:nent
FERDERE P
<:f|1,> Nutritional
Management
EEEE
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Guaranteeing Senior Health and Safety

RKEREEREHEZE

Ensuring the health and safety of every resident is
undoubtedly our core responsibility and our utmost
duty in our daily operations. On top of our quality
management system, we have formulated a series of
policies in terms of health and safety management,
including but not limited to nutrition and dietary,
food safety and hygiene, medication, emergency
handling, environmental safety etc. The below table
outlines our major measures to take care of our
residents conscientiously:

REGANEFEEZ2ERRRMNAELENEEINEIERE - RERMNEE

—L.—¥|;\/‘4\—

B IRRELEE

o LATNFFRIL I M BR R BT AR MU EE BLFE I -

Close
monitoring

RE 5 R

According to the requirement of Social Welfare Department, each care and attention home
should arrange sufficient manpower including home managers, nurses, physiotherapists,
health workers, care workers and assistants that meet the minimum requirements at all
times, so as to ensure every resident can be looked after closely.
BREHEBANEBNER  GHESBEEAREER —TEOAFLO > EFEEFEE
L IRRER  RIEE  EIEEMYIEE - UHERMARKIIEFSRE SR
%o

BEBR - B
*%EﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁAﬁﬁ%ﬁ CBREMEREENMER RULENEE BYER BT

Nutrition and
dietary
EERER

Each care and attention home would prepare its own meal plan on a quarterly basis.
The meal plan should be reviewed and approved by our nutritionists to ensure it meets
residents’ dietary requirements. We would also adjust meal arrangement for residents
who have special dining needs, including those who suffer from diabetes, kidney diseases
and high blood pressure.

BHREBZGHEE  EEFLREEMNE  BRESGRENEETE - &M
EREFHNAZEFZENRK - BREBERKRE BN MBRERAEER -

Food safety
and hygiene
BRYRE Rk
B

Food and environmental hygiene policy has been formulated to manage the personal
hygiene of kitchen staff, environmental hygiene of kitchen, purchase, storage and handling
requirements of ingredients, delivery and disposal of meals, and handling of cutleries to
address food safety concern.

HETRYIIRBAERR -  BEEEFEINEARLE REFE - BMRE - #F7F
N2 BMREREE  RARES  BREREVHZEIME -

Y S

A7 B2
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Medication
BYER

A detailed medication handling system is implemented for our nurses and workers while
storing, dispensing and disposing of medicine. Multi-way match will be conducted when
dispensing medicine to residents to ensure it is dispensed at the right time, dose and to
the right person. For medicine required to be stored in refrigerator, we would check its
temperature from time to time to ensure it is functioning well. Safety inspection would be
conducted regularly to guarantee medicine is handled properly.

TR AR EYEIRECE - BRI RETHT  RKEREELEY - B TIRBEEYR
@%&ﬁ%?‘i’f’?ﬁi FER ZE W) IR B RS - N“IJE&;T%EEEE b& o MABEMTFRBNE

1B BfieEHREeSERERFREFEGIR - AT ETEN L 2EZ > ER
HPIZERIBEY)

Emergency

handling
e B IE

Guidelines on Emergency and Serious Incident Handling Procedures have been formulated
to standardize the procedures on handling emergency cases such as fire, gas leakage,
flooding, poisoning, theft etc. to minimize the negative impact imposed on our residents.
B RS MEESWEIBEFES  BERYESEN > MAE RERR - KR
PE - BBRENER  WREEREKEKNTZE -

Environmental

safety
IRIREA

We would conduct environmental safety inspection in our care and attention homes on a
daily basis to identify and address any safety hazards. Fire drill would also be conducted
regularly.

BRETRESRRLZE2NE @ BRIMBEMALZ R o T E EHIETT NER
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Enhancing Safety Measures in Care and Attention Homes for
the Sake of Residents with Fall Risks
=B - RREES B EE b &

We identify fall risk and roam risk as the major risks certain residents suffering from difficulty
in walking and dementia may face. We pay special attention to these residents and apply a
series of measures to minimize such risks to guarantee their safety.

MBATHNMERBAERIERNE A GHURESBEENRR - RASIBIZERK -
Bl — R IR EA PN KB ERR - REBANZE

Zlp
NS

Examples of anti-roam measures:

B e E FE M5 F

e Magnetic induction buzzer that notifies our staff once
high-risk residents are sensed

i N R BISES - B AR A i Bl@ A 8

e |nstall Iocks on exits
REA D ZERSHE

e Attach sensor chips on high-risk residents’ clothing

A FE e A AR M 48 AR &R

¢ |nstall hidden sensors at exits

RHEA QR E R AE RS

¢ Install facial recognition anti-wandering system in
upscale care and attention homes that can sense
and locate high-risk residents’ locations and notify
responsible staff
RS umb & 2R E A BRI B ERS - RcgHnl
SEBREATEERME - LURAEERS

B AR A R A
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Examples of measures to lower fall risk:
B B[R R B -

e Evaluate fall risk of all residents regularly to
understand their physical condition

AHEPTABT R EREIERR - T BRI B AN

¢ Arrange daily exercise for relevant residents to
enhance their muscle strength and balance
2 BE B BB R A RIRAL ) AN &1

¢ |nstall infrared bed-exit detectors at beds of
residents with higher fall risk which can sense
their motion when they leave the bed and notify
responsible staff immediately
= Bk R R BR B R B R3E L AL IMR R B RS © B %
Be T RIS & BN @ ANAERI B T
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Minimizing the Risk of Spread of Virus during COVID-19
HEEERSERERR /

In view of the spread of COVID-19 during the Reporting Period, we understand that our
residents, especially those who suffer from chronic illnesses and require frequent follow-up
visits to clinics may face a higher risk of getting infected. The Group is highly concerned
about the control of the pandemic and have implemented a number of stringent measures
with reference to guidelines issued by Social Welfare Department to enhance personal and
environmental hygiene in care and attention homes to minimize risk of spread of virus:

HAENRER((FEmX D RREHEEE SRRk BrREBEEBERRLFEE
THRRAEEERSNRRRR  AEBBNMHBRSERE  URELSENFHLN
el RS ERZERERR  MREANMREHE  SeNRESEEERAERE

e Conduct frequent sanitization
hns&fr & HE
¢ Maintain social distancing
MEFF LB B
e Do not allow families to visit our care and attention homes according to government

guidelines
KRBT - BIERBRD
e |nstall plastic boards at reception areas
PR R IR BIR
e Arrange designated wheelchairs for outward visits to clinics and sanitize those

wheelchairs with bleach upon return
ZHNBZ R EREERE - WEOREARBARESHE
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e Set up designated areas for residents and accompanying staff to take off
protective clothing after coming back from clinics
EoBRERER - HINEZRR B IR EBERRELE

e Arrange residents to conduct COVID-19 test and measure body temperature
T KETIROBIAMNEZ 828R

e Encourage residents to eat in their rooms and avoid gatherings
SIBERREREFARE  BLEE

¢ [nstall smartphones for residents to have video calls with their families when they
are not allowed to visit
AEBEFER ANE AR N R BE BB

To ensure our quality as well as health and safety management system has been well implemented
and maintained, we would set up targets for our care and attention homes and require our employees
to maintain high quality care services. Criteria of such targets include accident rate, satisfaction rate of
residents and families, mishandling of medicine etc. We would review the performance of each care
and attention home annually to evaluate whether they have met the targets and identify rooms for
improvement. During the Reporting Period, all care and attention homes have met the targets.

Besides, the Group has also set up the Quality Assurance Monitoring Committee which comprises of
representatives from our management, residents, families and independent parties. They play an
important role in monitoring the services of our care and attention homes, and provide valuable
opinions for continuous improvement. The Committee would conduct a thorough inspection at each
care and attention home to check its equipment and service quality. Due to the spread of pandemic in
the Reporting Period, the inspection was suspended. We would restart the inspection once the
pandemic is alleviated.

In consideration of our high quality and comprehensive care services, the Group has been accredited
under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme of the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology.
The Association would conduct a review on our care and attention homes to ensure they have
complied with its requirements. Criteria of the review include but not limited to: overall quality
management, nutrition, service attitude, risk management, food and environmental safety, handling of
medication, handling of excretion, feeding, data management, infection control, communication and
emotions of residents etc. to ensure we have implemented effective management system to provide a
safe, hygienic and comfortable environment for our residents. Moreover, representatives from the
Social Welfare Department would also pay regularly visits to our care and attention homes to ensure
our senior care services have meet applicable industry standards.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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SERBFARSMEFERAZ2EERBEAEBRIL  AMASHEEERSFTLER  BERZETHR
SEENEERE - BREREBILE BEARBWEE  EMESNTF - HHS5FaTEEHER
SNXRE - BRESERT I HFEESCENM T - RREHM - FRERSEIBER -

TI

Bruitzsh - REBKZ TEBERBERZES  ZEghEEE ki B%E%J;"&é“”*/\iﬁﬁ
RERFTAERK - SRS ETERTIRHERAMENE - ZE@SESERSETHE T
FrEREMRBEER - EXNHEMARE  KERBEHRELE - WASERBEMRERKE -

,_/_v,
B
ES

RERSERNE2ANEERY  AREEEEEEFEGNEELERETESIFE -
EHR R WHETTRE RS EEBE %%%ﬁl@%fﬁ /_IBEEA EEmEEE
RGEE  RREE RYLRRLE - EYRE - PORE - CEREIR RS
Kt RBHEEES  BARTMNEESERAINERERER 1%&575%3&1&5’\]1(1 BIEMETBEE o
AN HERNBEEHRARS RS - BREMANTEZEERBEFSITERLE -

Listening and Adopting Opinions BRENRMER

Being a service-centric enterprise, we always listen to and adopt opinions from residents and their
families so that we could continue to improve our service and strive for excellence. The aforementioned
Quality Assurance Monitoring Committee gathers representatives from residents and their families to
communicate with our management team and raise opinions in terms of our daily operations and
services. Their valuable opinions are crucial for us to understand residents’ needs and expectations by
putting ourselves into their shoes. We have also established a number of channels to gather opinions
from our residents, families, employees and other parties. They include:

ERARBARNEE  BAFARBURAEEIMERBHER  FRAGUAFENERSG - B
@HE e BEMBERFERZEeA ERANRBARERMNEEESFIEL BB REYEE
SENMBHENER  APRMAERANAR LS - TREMOFTEMAE - HPAIRRL T — RO
REWERR FEB BIZANER 8% :

e Residents’ families consultation e Case study meetings
EEE%\%HD u/—_j/\ 1.;2;%

e Telephone/email/mail e Opinion box
BiE BB B BRAME

e Activity evaluation ¢ Notice board
mERE BEHRIR

o Staff meetings e Daily communications
BEER HEEE

* Management evaluation meetings
ERERNEH

Any opinion or complaint collected from the above channels will be taken seriously and timely. In
addition, we would also conduct satisfaction survey each year by inviting residents and families to rate
on various aspects in terms of our senior care services. Such aspects include employees’ attitude,

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
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accommodation, nursing services, activities, meals
etc. During the Reporting Period, Residents’
satisfaction rate reached 92%, while families’
satisfaction rate reached 90%, in which both of
them have reached our service targets.

B R PR IRAE A B AR « Bl .
RASFNERARARARBETREENRS e
BEERELEBREOBBETTS  BEATEE  HF  E2RE 5D BAT - NS
MBS B 02% - MARBMNEE TMEEI00% - &L A BRI EIE -

Protecting Privacy {RFEFLRE

The daily operations of our care and attention homes involve a large amount of privacy data of our
residents, such as their names, phone numbers, addresses, identity card numbers, photos, medical
record, employment history etc. We understand that we ought to take up our responsibility to ensure
the privacy of such data and prevent data leakage to protect our residents. We strictly prohibit our
employees from disclosing any of residents’ personal data and other confidential information to third
parties without prior consent. We have set up Residents’ Personal Privacy and Dignity Policy,
guaranteeing that we would collect and handle their personal data in a legal and fair way. For hard-
copy document recording residents’ personal data, we would put them in locked cabinets with key
only kept by responsible personnel and home manager. As for soft-copy document, we have set
password and access right limit in the computers.

In terms of advertising and promotion, we may use photos and videos starring our residents for
promotional purpose. We would ask for their consent and they are required to sign on a consent letter
before we could use such materials to safeguard their rights.

Due to our business nature, intellectual property is not considered as a material issue of the Group.
Product labelling is also not applicable to the Group.

RENBEREESPMARERANEBLER  BEELS - B - U - HOERS - HH - BE
BRELES - BHMPEAEEABARERLENNEE  DEABERERRARERPIHFRR
BRPBEEETHEARERENBRATAE=TEERANEAEHREMERER - A2 RIRK
BARLENEEBER  BERMRSAQEMAFHITAREMEEMANEAER - RMASHE
RV A ME A B R SR A S BN SR 4F - SRR AR R T M RIRE - INEHE Fhe X+
7 I B R I AR B A Ko PRI AERR

HHERENES  RASEREARREANRBA MEREEEZA - ZHMIgREARELARERE
ERFTER  UREMFE R -

ENFMNEHNEE - MBERLIFARBNERNEE  MERSEENVERARANEE -
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Pine Care Smart

iR & RE

We understand that the senior care industry in Hong Kong is a traditional industry highly relying on
physical labour. As a leader in the industry, Pine Care strives its best to promote the development of
the industry and has devoted abundant resources into revolution and innovation by developing and
introducing high-tech systems to improve our service quality as well as management on residents’
health and safety such that our service quality can be enhanced. In the foreseeable future, we believe
that more advanced technology gerontechnology will be introduced to the industry, and hence we
would promote the concept of “Senior Care with Technology”, leading the industry to the age of
intelligence.

EETERNBBE AR ERMKELSH HINITE  BESTENRRE  NEKRERESDTER
FIEER - T NDEREE LA - HRUSIASZESRRER  BthkERBESR - R N7
FERREMZ2EIER  ERANREERSATERT - ROEHARLELZTERSETRATLE
LR - AR MBANER (S ] S BREETEERLRLEFR -

Encompass Intelligent System E&ER %

To improve the efficiency of our employees’ work and
management of residents’ data, we have been adopting
our self-developed Encompass Intelligent System that
records residents’ data, nursing details, check-ups, drug

records, social worker follow-up cases etc., allowing us
to understand their situation thoroughly and formulate

a more appropriate and comprehensive care plan and == -
treatment. Apart from that, the system can also largely
significantly reduce paper consumption to protect valuable natural resources to reduce waste at source.

AREBEMNTIERERMELELER @ HMsAEE B RKHEAEncompassE L E 4 * Bk
HER - EEFE  BY  EYisk I REERS  AERMEZEM THREALER - fITEE
BRENBEFEIRAE « Rtk 24N - ERTMARNBEERBERER - BRREZENRAEZR - ©%
JRERREE o

B e G 4R AR 4 ]
2021 F 1)

39



90

Facial Recognition Anti-Wandering System %% 55 #EE R 5%

Some of our residents are assessed with wandering
risk. In order to minimize wandering risk, we have
introduced an intelligent anti-wandering system in
some of our care and attention homes through high-
end facial recognition technology, and CCTV system
to monitor all the exist exits in the care and attention
homes, such that our care workers could easily locate
these residents and take immediate actions to assist

them. This system is capable of avoiding residents from wandering and causing accidents to ease their
families’ worries.

HREBH W AAEHERRORR - ATHEERBRRISE  BIRBEREIAT B
BERG  AASKESEANE  BAMMEARA ERRSSELAD REBATRSE
REANGE  NNBRREENTHRHEE - FATARESELEARNTELEI - &
RBEED -

Infrared Bed-exit Detectors & A AL Yh 4R 5k PR {278 28

Some of our residents have higher fall risk. We pay special
attention to the physical conditions of these residents
and have installed infrared bed-exit detectors at their
beds. The detectors can detect residents’ motions,
locations and temperature, and raise the alarm for any
abnormalities identified. It can notify care workers to go
to the residents and provide necessary assistance so as
to reduce minimize the risk of fall.

BN E DR A AR @B EIRR - AV RIBEE LR SR - R IR R EE KR AL
ARBEPR{ROBIZS - (RBIES T@QEUE%%%%E’JEED\METHMF‘  BEBBRESEELR - ETHRERE
EIE A BB MR MR R AR 15 8) - FEREMPIBBITEMBKANRER -

Motion Sensors Ej&EE =k fE 28

To ensure the safety of residents who are alone in the bathroom, Pine Care Group has installed motion
sensors in the bathroom of some care and attention homes. If a resident has lost his/her
consciousness in the bathroom, the sensor can notify our care workers immediately to provide
necessary assistance.

REREREBEEMAEZERNEZE - RERFHINRBORE A EALTKEEEERS - MEEAARKR
AKREHE - RIERGARBNEIES @ BOMERERELIRMH L) o
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Pine Care Green

RS

Pine Care is dedicated to pursuing a sustainable future, in the hope of bringing a greener and better
environment for our next generations. Due to our business nature, we do not have material impact on
the environment and natural resources, nor material emissions. Nevertheless, we are highly concerned
about the emissions and use of resources in our daily operations, and have formulated a series of
environmental policies and measures, guiding the employees of our care and attention homes to
implement such measures at all times, striving for minimizing the carbon emissions of the Group. We are
committed to complying with applicable environmental laws and regulations, including but not limited to
the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354), the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulation
(Cap. 354C) and the Waste Disposal (Clinical Waste) (General) Regulation (Cap. 3540). During the
Reporting Period, we were not aware of aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to environmental protection.

MR NER A FHEERAORK - BER N —HREKELRE - BREHIRT - ERBPINEBEE
BPFHERFEMRRERLRERNTZE - TNRBERBEN » LA - B+ DT R EEERR
EERNPFMERBRER - WHERRBERKEEER - EESRkEHE NE TRHZAEERREE
BRABNEERRENRIER - AR B TERRFRBENEREZRLAD - BREETRINCE
MERERD) (BREPIEIB4E) - (BEWRE (LBEY) (—&) R (FAEHF354CE) (B
MR E (BEED) (—&) RO (FEENEIB0E) - RBEHE - WAL TNHBERFREER
BRI ES RAT A ERRERITR ©

Waste Management BEEYEIE

Each care and attention home would generate non-hazardous and hazardous waste including other
general refuse, medical waste and chemical waste in daily operations. We have set up guidelines for
handling waste, guiding employees in care and attention homes to properly separate, store and handle
waste to avoid improperly handled waste imposing material burden on the environment. We have
appointed recognized chemical and medical waste recycler to collect and handle such waste. For drug
waste, we also appoint certified waste disposal and recycling companies to handle such waste. If any
infectious waste is generated, we would also handle it immediately. We have placed recycling bins in the
care and attention homes to separate waste diapers from other refuse. We will place different recycling
bins to separate different types of waste for recycling in the near future to reduce waste that poses a
burden on the landfill.

e B O 0 A
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We also strive to reduce waste at source to the largest extent. Since our care and attention homes would
purchase a large amount of ingredients for meal preparation on a daily basis, responsible staff would
adjust the purchase amount in view of residents’ eating habits and portions to avoid wastage. Besides,
as we understand that we may consume a large amount of paper in our daily operations with regards to
the industry nature, we have been adopting our self-developed Encompass Operation System to record
residents’ details, such as medical record, nursing plan, living habits, emergency case reports etc. Such
practice has largely reduced the reliance on paper consumption. Moreover, we would prefer the use of
recycled paper, double-sided printing, and encourage our staff to use reusable cutleries to reduce food
packaging.

ErenNAREESEE —RERY  BEEVINCEENSTAETLEZRERY - RMACHEEEY
BRIEES| RS EREBXEN T  MENEERERY UREEMENERENHYRFEXNEAE
o ZMZFEARATNCERBREMRERRE MRIB(CERBREY) - HINEEEY) - BITE
RAEAERNENEE RO ARRIEZFEZRY - NEHRBRRMREY - BMASRHERY -
HAERENE RWAERERKA 2 FHE - ZMIKESHE TR WA - AD RS K EKRAR
TEEREERY) - BSORIKERYEMERRIEKRNRTE

BPIBAMIREREE - AR HBEAERMENSEMS - HEE T2 REBERANRR B BN G
EFABRMEENE  URERORE « I/ EREMNERMEE RS EABE BT EREAER
iR o BT B KM HIEncompassE B R AL BT K EXRL - WRIE - BIERTE - £)581EB  BEX
EHMES o LR A KRRERPIERRAKRE - BIPMEEERABERRNERZH - WEHET
FANBRRBEANEARVEERYEE -

The waste emission data for the Reporting Period and FY2020 are outlined below:

¥R HfE & 2020 B FEVRBE R ) BE BRI T

FY2021 FY2020
2021815 202081

Non-hazardous waste EEREZEY)

Total amount generated 7.53 tonnes A MA 7.16 tonnes A MA
BWELAS

Intensity of non-hazardous 0.01 tonnes/occupied RCHE N/A i@ A
waste generated places AW, ZEbT & BN

Total amount disposed 7.53 tonnes A N/A 3 A
ZES

Other general refuse 7.53 tonnes ‘A N/A 3@

Hith—fREED
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FY2021 FY2020
202181 & 202081 &
Total amount recycled N/A T iEF 0.6 tonnes ‘A
ElE
Paper N/A 3 A 0.6 tonnes AMA
AR
Hazardous waste B EE &Y
Total hazardous waste 1.28 tonnes Al 0.78 tonnes A MA
generated
BELS
Intensity of hazardous waste 0.001 tonnes/occupied RCHE N/A 13 F
BEEEEYRE places AW, & EF &BEM

Note 1: Due to optimization of data collection system in the Reporting Period, the relevant data in both years cannot be directly compared. We would adopt a more comprehensive data
collection system in future years to ensure the consistency of data disclosed.

Note 2: The above environmental KPI data do not include service apartment of Patina Wellness.

210 RPIRBEHRECBFRERT - MRFHSIEL TEEFERLR - RIS R KRR FRBIF K E R TIA ERBAF R0 — B
22 _PMREHEITOER&FNREAEE
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Energy, Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions
RER ~ BER MR E RS HER
The energy consumption, air and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions of the Group can mainly be

attributed to the purchase electricity used for supporting the operations of our care and attention homes,
as well as company vehicles. The relevant data in the Reporting Period and FY 2020 can be found below:

AEERLRBF B ATTRRRE TR A BEONEES - ARAFAE - BRI
K 202081 #0ERRBRBE 0T ¢

FY2021 FY2020
202181 202081 F
Air emissions ER B
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) 31.00 kg AT N/A “NiiE A
RElLy
Sulphur oxides (SOx) 0.16 kg AT N/A i
REY
Particulate Matters (PM) 0.00 kg AT N/A 3 A

GHG emissions ;&2 ZE R & HEK

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 3,529.48 tonnes CO,e ‘Al —& N/A N3

and 2) U=
mE RPN E (FE R
E?2)
Intensity of GHG emissions 3.36 tonnes COZe/occupied N/A TiEF
BEREHENEE RCHE places AME— &1 iR E &
S RER SR
Scope 1 emissions (Direct 8.59 tonnes CO,e AME — &b ik N/A 1@
emissions) BEE
#HE1(EEHHR)
Scope 2 emissions (Indirect 3,629.48 tonnes COe A —%& 4,214 tonnes CO2e AME — &1t
emissions) {bhixE = ==

FE2 (RZEHR)

Energy consumption ;& Z 50 B Bk 5

Total energy consumption 8,768.07 MWh T 1&F F B N/A i
BERERRE
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FY2021 FY2020

202181 202057 ¢
Intensity of energy 8.36 MWh/occupied RCHE places N/A TiEF
consumption TREFTER,ZEREBEM
REREREEE
Purchased electricity 6,615.24 MWh & T FLES 5,084 MWh F1EF ELBF
HNIETE 7]
Towngas 2,152.83 MWh F{&F F B N/A 7N
B

Note 1: Due to optimization of data collection system in the Reporting Period, the relevant data in both years cannot be directly compared. We would adopt a more comprehensive data
collection system in future years to ensure the consistency of data disclosed.

Note 2: The above environmental KPI data do not include service apartment of Patina Wellness.

21 APIRREBREE RN ERG - MFE IR TREEBRILE © BB R KIRNER L A B R A R BRI R0 — 21 -
22 LMREHEL TR BT AREAEE -

The Group strives to optimize the use of energy in order to reduce our GHG emissions and thus our
carbon footprint. As a result, we have implemented a series of energy optimization measures in our care
and attention homes to promote the concept of energy reduction:

REERNBILEERBRELAB D IR PR EREEBEIUARFRYEL o Skt - IR B — R IR

BLEE - RISEEE

e Require staff to turn of air-conditioning if the room temperature reaches 25 degrees or above
2RETHREETE A LRI FRUSR

e (Clean the air-conditioners regularly to optimize its performance to optimize energy consumption
EHFRSRM - WRHEFEBIE - BB

e Prefer the use of LED lights
{85532 ALEDRRER

e Advocate our staff to turn off the lights during afternoon nap time, turn off part of the air-conditioning
at night and when residents leave the area

B R TAEFEREHERARANEREMNMER AR AL BERERT D <R

e Place notices in the care and attention homes to remind our staff to turn off electricity appliances and
conserve energy
P EREEETR - IR B TR ERME - Bi4ER

e Prioritize the purchase of energy-saving electrical appliances
BB E R

e B O 0 A
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We have also installed disinfection and deodorization machines and air disinfection machines, as well as
encourage planting potted plants in care and attention homes to improve air quality.

BT ERENE T ZEDESHRRBMERBIHE - YRR ER% - MEAEREE -

Participation in CLP Electrical Equipment Upgrade Scheme
SEPEH R BN E /

During the Reporting Period, we have participated in Electrical
Equipment Upgrade Scheme organized by China Light and Power
Co., Ltd. (CLP). The scheme provides subsidies to commercial
and industrial customers to upgrade their electrical equipment to
more energy-efficient models, in the hope of optimizing the use
of energy in a large extent.

RBEHRE - KSR T HESRMBR
RBEEMNIEEPRMED - RS
BSRIERARIZEBILERE ©

ENRER M TTARGTE - 5T &
KB AR BETREESRS -

4H§ 53
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Water Management Fi/Kk &

The Group consumes domestic water supplied by local water supply companies to support care and
attention homes’ daily operations. We did not encounter any problem in terms of water sourcing. Due
to our business nature, water consumption is not considered as a material issue. Nevertheless, we are
still alert about our daily water consumption and strive to introduce appropriate measure to save water.
For example, we have installed automatic faucets and throttles to minimize wastage of water. The water
consumption data during the Reporting Period and FY2020 are detailed as below:

AEBEHEEAN KRR RRENEERKERE BEEE R - RAERBERKRET EEE
TR - EREFINEREE - AAOERILIFEAZS - ERFUKRBEERMBERK T
e @RS OMAK - MK B/KEBMERSFABRDRIORE » #E BB A M20208 FH H
FOBRERURI T -

FY2021 FY2020
202181 202081 F
Total water consumption 53,185.76 m3 37 ;7 K 42,746 m® 32K

BAKE

Intensity of water consumption 50.70 m®/occupied RCHE places N/A TEH
RKEE MR RER & TEAL

Note 1: Due to optimization of data collection system in the Reporting Period, the relevant data in both years cannot be directly compared. We would adopt a more comprehensive data
collection system in future years to ensure the consistency of data disclosed.

Note 2: The above environmental KPI data do not include service apartment of Patina Wellness.
71 AR RE BRI EIRNE TR - BMF BRI TREEE IR ILE » B IR KIRNER BN R R B 1 R 0y — 21 -
i#2:  _FHMREEENT ERARETAREAETE -
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Pine Care Caring
UNEE P

Pine Care has always been a caring company and upheld the principle of “people-oriented” in the first
place of our operations. We pay special attention to providing a warm and supportive work atmosphere,
together with rewarding remunerations and benefits, adequate health and safety measures and career
development opportunities to our employees. Besides, we are also dedicated to contributing to the
community as a gratitude of their long-term support to the Group. We have initiated various community
programs throughout the years, gathering our resources and manpower to support the needy in society.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations relating to employment, occupational health and safety as well as labor standards,
including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485).

ERAERE  MIR—RARF [AAB/K] fESEE - RAISAZLDRERENLE X RET
RETSINFHIMEN - EANRRLEIEEMBEZERBE - 1IN RATRBHEELE - A
PISAERERAMEKH R - RAIZFRERZEALRED - BRRMANERMANENHLE LER
ZHA °

RNBEHRE - AEREL THEEEMNERNERER - BEERERL2ANMERBEERBER LRGN
B BRETARREE (EEKD) RFA8E (RFHIEATBREAIIEE) -
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Employee Overview ETH#IE

As of 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 466 employees in 11 senior care and attention homes.
The compositions of employees by gender, age group, employee category and corresponding turnover
rate by gender and age group are as follow:

120213 A318 » ARERE MRS E4662 8T - BTIEMR - Fiilil - EEAER K
MR RMT

Composition by gender &1 3|5
@ @ Total workforce E I Male
@mET emale
00 466 0000851 085

Composition by age group 2 F#7 #
Above age 50 Age 31 to 50 Age 30 or below
DEE)  somar . () mesom () aomesr

0000215<®®177s@@74

?
i}

Composition by employee category Z{E{EIE 52 #

Operation staff Corporate staff
@F “EET &9 h¥ET

B B A L A
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Overall turnover rate

R KR 4 4 6(y
. 0]

Turnover rate by gender &4 518 Tk &

Female Male
|==] ll\i
73

@ Zit

% 52.9%
42 .8% .J /0
Turnover rate by age group ZFRA R & THRAR

e

Age 31 to 50 Age 30 or below
) sizsom ) som=muT

©0049.2% 00 87.8%

Turnover rate by employee category #Z{E &8 3| 2 #

Operation staff Corporate staff
BEST £ TEET

o 1%
45.8% [ 40 170
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Respecting Employees’ Rights
BEEE TR

Being an equal opportunity employer, we always uphold the principle of equal opportunity, diversity
and anti-discrimination during each human resources-related processes, including but not limited to
recruitment, promotion, training and determination of remuneration and benefits. The Group would
recruit talents mainly through internal transfer, recruitment advertisements, Labour Department and
Employees Retraining Board. We welcome all suitable candidates to join our family regardless their
gender, age, family status or disability etc. We would rather consider their knowledge, skills, abilities and
other work-related factors. We do not allow any forms of workplace discrimination. If any discrimination
or harassment is identified against our employees or even residents, we would investigate into and follow
up with the case seriously. Confirmed cases will be followed by disciplinary action including reporting to
police and/or termination of employment contract.

We would provide employees with competitive remuneration packages as a gratitude to their hard work.
Their salaries are determined by their professional qualifications, experiences, work performance, service
years, job positions and market level. Apart from basic salaries, they are also entitled with discretionary
bonuses. The management will review employees’ remunerations to ensure they are competitive enough.
In addition, we also offer our employees with a number of welfare and benefits:

ERTERSET  BARARFTFERS  ZIUEMRERENRABTHAEANERBELE - 8
REARNIEE « &7 HIMBIEFMEAERN - AEEERFBAREE BRES - S TRNME
EE%%JII)%%%/\T o WEAPTA S BEAT AR - AmEMR - FiE - RERRSEERANR

MIREGEEEME - 517~ BENAREAME TERBR S © 31581081 —YIBHG IR - W0
%ﬁ‘fﬁﬁffﬂﬁﬁ,%\lﬁiliﬂiE’Jﬁﬁ%%ﬁ BPERERATLRE  WERBERETLRERD £
RRE R/ ILREAL -

HPRE TIRHEARF NOFMERMMAE THENENER - B THMABMANERERS &k T
tERE - FE - BUNTISKFEMGE BT EAFHM - BT SHRARBEL - EEESRTET
BN AR BB T 1 © ol - BT B TRE—RIINEH

Holidays and Leaves {E&} /
[ ]
.7 S
[“ ] 1 O SN,
Statut d - m
atutory an .
Re}%gay Public Holidays AnnﬁlTELieave l\/larrgEgE?Eé_eave
8 EERARBY :
e 3 7 R 6
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Holidays and Leaves f& /

@ @D ‘Jopnl

Maternal/ Work Injury Jury Leave Compassionate Leave
Paternal Leave Leave fEE S/ ZHiIR]E
ER/GER TER S -
Basic Welfare EZE | /
®
g
Mandatory _
Provident Fund Ins{u%reﬁagoe On%le é}ég /;tals
BIEE ” B
Awards and Other Benefits =42 &z g7 /
[ ]

gty P

Staff Rewards Staff Support Scholarships
ST Prclgram for Children and

o 8 T1EBhETE Grandchildren

THRESE

Apart from the above benefits and welfare, we are also highly concerned about employees’ sense of
belonging and affiliation. As a result, we have adopted different platforms, including meetings, suggestion
box, hotline, email, staff performance appraisals and notice boards to communicate with and collect
opinions from employees so that we could improve our labour practices and strive for excellence. We
also organize various employee activities from time to time to gather our employees together. In view of
the spread of COVID-19 during the Reporting Period, we could only suspend such activities as we put
employees’ health and safety as our first priority.

BT IALRER - HAIT o BERETNRBRMEBE - it - ZfIgEB8TRYE  BEgE =
RAE 2 B8 BETHEMGIZEMBARSEE TERTWEMMNER - ERASUNEER
R TEDED - BRAITTE NERERZEE RS FUMARE —Z - SEXNHEM AN RS HEE
B RERETIRELRZZ  RMAEEERETES -
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Caring for Employees’ Wellbeing
REETRE

Employees’ wellbeing is always of paramount importance for us. The Group is in strict compliance with
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong and other applicable laws and regulations
to provide adequate occupational health and safety measures as well as mental support to ensure
employees’ physical and mental wellbeing.

The Group has established a sound Occupational Health and Safety Committee together with “Code
of Occupational Health and Safety” and a series of well-rounded policies and measures to oversee
occupational health and safety management in a systematic way. The Committee would identify,
manage and review potential occupational health and safety risks, and strive its best to introduce suitable
measures to address these risks in order to minimize potential hazards imposed on our employees,
especially front-line workers who may be vulnerable to work injury and other risks in view of their daily
routine. During the Reporting Period, we have recorded 16 work-related injury cases being reported. We
have made compensations to the front-line employees involved. We would review on and improve our
existing “Code” to lower the occurrence of such work injuries in the future. In the meantime, we did not
record any work fatalities nor material work injuries, and did not identify material breaches of applicable
laws and regulations in relations to occupational health and safety.

HPREERETLRE - AREBNBTEREIEERN  BREEBRELZELEFRGED - BETR
HR B E R N 2 AR ODIR R - AMREMPIH & 062 -

AEBERIAVNBEREENLZEZES - WHF] (BERLZ2RERTR) KAEREEBRERER
ZeiE - REGHEN  BEEMENBENRBRERLRLZ2RAR - XYHAOERSBENER - BRBE
RBRYET LERATHEMHEMARS LEREMERNARE TAEKRNETSE - RBEH
A HPISEFI6R TIFEEN THEEW - RAESRETHE THELRE - ZfFIgRILBRET
A HEEEREBDHEB IESEN - I RFWLARSTAR TSR MEENTESH -
TORB A ENERBERE R Z2REERLRGIAIER -
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Highlights of occupational health and safety measures we have introduced in our care and
attention homes can be separated into the following aspects:

BN EmnBRER N L 2REEA T2 0 /R4 NEESE

Environmental Safety
RREZE

e Conduct fire drill and firefighting equipment inspection at least once
ayear

ROBFETNEREWREN ARE

Employees’ Personal Safety
BTEAZZ

* Require workers to wear suitable clothing and shoes in different work
areas

ERTFAMEUZEE T FEERE RE
e Require workers in kitchen to strictly follow relevant safety guide to
handle equipment carefully

2REFETENE TEBETHEEZ 285! - ZIAEEMAAERE

Implement bathroom safety guide to remind workers to keep
bathroom dry and clean

HETAER 258 - BEE TRISATERLZF

e Workers required for physical labour are vulnerable to work injury
while taking care of residents, therefore we arrange daily exercise for
them

EERNSYNE T ERBERANNER
s IERE  RMASRMLMAZHEER
EH

Provide lift-easy transfer belt and patient
lifting device to assist workers in lifting
residents with disability in walking to reduce
their physical effort and risk of getting sprain

R BIRBNTTEN MR A H) B TR K
mMB IR A8 58 - R E R
S

Hygiene
s

e \Workers may contact residents’ blood, excrement and other
secretion which main contain virus and bacteria, such that they
are guided to handle and dispose such substances carefully while
putting on appropriate personal protective equipment

BTAERSEENRANME - P REMD WY - EhaEs
Eiﬂiiﬁfa  RFERETEEREREEZS WY - WiE
RPN &3

Personal Health

(EPNE5

e Appoint social workers to provide mental support to employees
THM TREITREOERE
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Apply Stringent Pandemic Prevention Measures

=i

BRE R R

Under the pandemic, in view of our business nature, we

u
h

very best to establish and implement stringent and thorough
pandemic prevention measures in line with the guide provided
by Social Welfare Department and Department of Health so as
to minimize the risk of virus spread within our care and attention
homes. Such measures include:

ERIEHRE - ERERMNEHLEE - BRI ME T SmY
e ERARR - AR MBI RETSENEMEEZNTE
SIHIFT Y B e -E M 2 E P RIEE - BRI SRS ERER
SRERIK - IR -

B

nderstand that our residents and employees face a relatively
igher risk of infection, and thus we have been doing our

Require employees to conduct COVID-19 test regularly
ESRE TEHEX MRS

Require employees to conduct body temperature check and wear masks all the time
ERETiRERRIW AL EARIRME DS

Require employees to wear protective goggles while helping residents shower and adjust
the shower to lower water splash

23R8 T AR MEE B SR A ER/KERA

Require employees to wear personal protective equipment when accompanying residents
to clinic, including masks, protective goggles, protective clothing and hats, and require
them to take them off at designated area when they are back
ERETRRERIMEBLHFEEAEERE  BFEOS - 0k  REXKIE - I
Z KA APIEI B By PO 46 E [ 15 PR S s

A b R B
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Promoting Career Development

HBRE R

We understand that providing adequate career development and training opportunities to employees
is vital to their personal development as well as the Group’s development. All employees are granted
with promotion opportunities in determination of their work performance, skills, potentials, abilities,
work attitude, years of service, efficiency, communication skills and conduct etc. We would conduct
performance appraisal on a yearly basis in which self-appraisal, peer appraisal and bottom-up appraisal
will be performed to evaluate each employee in a holistic approach.

In addition to promotion, we also place great emphasis on training. Internal and external training courses
are arranged from time to time to get employees well-equipped. We would also provide subsidies for
advanced studies. For new-joiners especially front-line employees such as nurses, health workers, care
workers, kitchen workers and cleaning workers, we provide comprehensive orientation trainings to
make sure they have equipped with necessary work-related knowledge and skills before taking care of
the residents. Such trainings include infection control, occupational health and safety, emergency cases
handling, feeding, handling of medication, handling of wound, food safety and hygiene etc. Employees
are required to take regular examinations on the above training topics to ensure they are familiar with
relevant knowledge and skills.

Each year we would prepare a training calendar for better arrangement of training courses. During the
Reporting Period, training topics we have offered include but not limited to:

HPIFRRHENNBRER SIS EETEAMARER R - BETeRRETIERE - &
B BE BB TEREE - FE AR ERRIRTSESENHRE - RMSFSETENE
% BRREARZ - AR ZE TENZ  AEEFZETIRE -

BRTET BNt oEREIN - BTSRRI BiE;J||%E\E,§\IHTZ|J#i1%§E: Mg RHEE

BREETEE - HPIRMABEL LHAGETINEL - RIZE - #1EE8 - FREINFRI 1R

22 8 A SIS uJII FERAB 93 TTEEIT’EHIJﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlf’ﬁ*fﬂ%&& ot IR B R R RAE I - B

%&K&zxi \\\\\ SEWRIE  RR - EYRE BOEE  RVLEEEST  c EIFEHALA
EITEZ ﬁ@%ﬁﬂ PIZAZES AR B8 AN S B

RPFFESHEIEI AR AELHHEIIRE - RREHE - HIARBRERENRR

e Handling of medication e Handling of falling
SRR IR ZRE 2

e Use of restraint items e Deathbed handling
ERARY M ERAR B IR
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e Senior mental and social wellbeing e Nutrition and meal handling
REOE MR LENERRRIE

e Taking care of senior with communication ¢ Rehabilitation exercises
disorders BRES
B RIS b R TR

During the Reporting Period, the Group has arranged over 430 hours of training courses. The training
ratio by gender and employee category type are as follow:

REHE - AEERHHERIRA30/NRFHEIERIE - 8 TIRIERI MERERIZ 2 HEIL =0T

Training ratio of employees B T #yiZ3)|tL = /
[ ]
Male
B
Female
zi

Operation Staff
EEST

23.39%

H G 2 AR M R A
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Complying with Labour Standards

BT EERE

The Group puts a “zero” tolerance on the recruitment of child and forced labour. Our employment
practices are in compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations. During recruitment process,
we would verify employees’ identity documents to ensure they have met legal working age. Moreover,
we have clearly outlined necessary employment terms on the employment contract and other human
resources policies, including working hours, work location, remuneration, duties, shift arrangement,
leave, dismissal procedures etc. Front-line employees working in the care and attention homes would
work on shift. Some of our employees are imported workers. We recruit such employees through the
Supplementary Labour Scheme (“SLS”) of the Labour Department as supplementary to our workforce.
We sure that they have met recruitment requirements of Hong Kong and have valid work permit to avoid
occurrence of forced labour.

AEEHHREET NRFISFRN [T] ZRRA - HAINERFEEEBEEBENS AP - £HREB
B BMAEREE TN MERAXT  ERMAIEEIEE THEFEK < I ZATRERSHK
His AN EREFIHRRERGR - BRTERS - TR0  H - TESE - GTH - )
H BERES -G E TRRHII T - BN BETRBAST - HMIEES TEMNMAES T
ArERBEAS T - RAIBRESETAEENREERKLFABUILIERE @ BRLBERFED) -

Spreading Warmth to Community
O+t B EIEEE

The Group is devoted to giving back to community which is considered as one of our key stakeholders
that has shown unceasing support to us throughout the years. We have initiated various community
activities, gathering the Group’s resources and manpower for years, including one of our signature
programs, “Your Story e My Enlightenment” Community Story Series Project to showcase our dedication
in spreading warmth and love to groups in need.

During COVID-19, we were engaged were appointed by Social Welfare Department as provider of care
support services, including basic nursing and healthcare services such as health checking, communicating
with medical practitioners, assisting residents in using drugs safely, designing menus, assisting residents
in the use of tube-feeding, assisting them in doing simple exercises etc. and necessities to residents
especially senior in Decanting Centre in Cheung Muk Tau Holiday Centre for the Senior in view of our
high quality senior care services renowned in the industry.

Due to spread of pandemic, the Group has brought most of our charity programs to a halt with an aim
to guarantee the health and safety of our residents and employees. We would strive our best to re-
embark on such programs in order to make contributions to the community once the pandemic has
been alleviated.
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g BRAITARARBZNEEEEREMED -

AREZIERE  RABERTREEXSERINRERREEERY BEEHEBNERE  NEKRE
EAERTPONAEBTL - BEE  BRIREE  RHFEESRRSE - BREEANEE MMRERY - 20
BFERE  HEEARBE HYPERTLHEIRAZEY  RAEE - BEERETESR - HEM T
BEEDHE -

AERBER  AREEET RO 2mtBIURERANETIRENZE - RMISERBEM 2K
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HKEX Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Index

SERATIRIR - e R ERImEES

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIS”) Declaration Number
T EHE - C —MRIRER BB AE R 55, B9 HiE
A. Environmental B35
Aspect A1: Emissions BHEA1 : R
General Disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water P 91-97
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— MR
BRABERIMBERBHR - MKk THEEES - BERBEEZEEY
WEESEH :
@ BE : & \
(b) BFHEITABEARZENRBERELROINER -
KPI The types of emissions and respective emission
RASRAE data.
EIE A1 PR iR SR KRR HE R -
KPI Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity. .
RASAE BERBEERERTE - Pine Care Green
$ERE A1.2 TREARE
P. 92-95

KPI Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.
BABEAERL PMEABEEEENMRERTE -
HIZ A1.3
KPI Total non-hazardous waste produced and
FARAE K intensity.
EIEA14 MELBEERENEENTE -
KPI Description of measures to mitigate emissions
RASRAE and results achieved.
g% A1.5 faAURE BERUE BV 1R b S PR S AR o
KPI Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous P.91-97
AR AE wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and
EIZ A1.6 results achieved. \

MR EEREEREEYN L  REELS

B HE R TSR ©
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TESE  EH - —RIRERERETIER 55, B9 HiE
Aspect A2: Use of Resources EHEHA2 : ER{EH
General Disclosure
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials. P. 91-97
—RBE |
BERERER (BEIR  KEEMERME) BIBEE -
KPI Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
RASRAE XX in total and intensity.
B A2.1 RERZ SN EE K/ FEREERERERTE -
P. 97

KPI Water consumption in total and intensity. Pine Care Green
Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ@( ?@%%7k%&%§ ° T/A/?\:Zi@
$E1F A2.2
KPI Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
RASRAE results achieved. \
FE1E A2.3 i 2R AR am a8 SR P AS AR o
KPI Description of whether there is any issue in P.91-97
FARAE R sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
FEIZ A2.4 efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

fﬁiﬁiﬁ)@@)ﬂmﬁtﬂﬁfﬂﬂﬁ% - A RRFAK

Mannt &l RPT1GHER °
KPI Total packaging material used for finished products Not applicable
RABRAE N and with reference to per unit produced. to the Group’s N/A
HIZ A2.5 R MTAEEMENRERTEEEBMNE - business i

MV NN SEES
%
Aspect A3: Environmental and Natural Resources EHAS : RIERXRER
General Disclosure
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
—MRAKER
N= 2T A Wy g IR B 1 R By R e T A .
RIEBITALRARKAA REREAY BHEE Pine Care Green | 0. o
_ _— . o RERARE '

KPI Description of the significant impacts of activities
FARAE K on the environment and natural resources and the
1R A3.1 actions taken to manage them. B

BRI ARG R RAERNEATERD K

HEBEATENTE -

g i L <l AT
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance

indicators (“KPIs”)
T EEHE Bl —REBERERERUER

Section/
Declaration

2B

Page
Number

Bi&

B. Social #&

Employment and Labour Standards EE &% T &8

Aspect B1: Employment [EEB1 : {E{&

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

— MR FE

AR E - MBS RETT - TR S - B8 - FEHE -
1t ﬁ}iﬁﬁ%&ﬁiﬁﬂ B R ENE

(@)

(o) BFHEITABEATENEBEZRROINER -

Pine Care Caring
RERAE

P. 98-109

KPI \ Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
AR AR K group and geographmal region.
512 B1.1 gﬁm~ﬁ%@w FEHR IR RIS HIES S

Employee
Overview
BIHE

P. 99

KPI Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
RARAE RN geographical region.
EEBI2 | MR FRERRGENSIBERALE o

Not disclosed this
year

AREZWTHE

N/A
TEm

Aspect B2: Health and Safety EEB2 : @FEHZ 2

General Disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
— MR R
EARBLEE2TERERRERER2BELEEN
(@ Bk » &
(o) BTHETABEAZENHBERIROINESR

KPI Bt
FEIZ B2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
A TYERIR LT B A B R L 3% o

KPI
EiE B2.2

Lost days due to work injury.

AIEGREATIERS -

KPI
512 B2.3

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored.

Al PERAR B BB SR (R R B 22 245 1t DA AR EATT
NEERTTE °

Caring for
Employees’
Wellbeing
FREEE T&E

P. 103-105
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
T EHE - BH  —REBERERERUER - £l B
Aspect B3: Development and Training BHEB3 : %% /E &Iz

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—fE = Promoting Career

R EE BT IEBRE N MHE KRB - HEES - Development P.106-107

HEBBEER

KPI The percentage of employees trained by gender and

RN employee category. B

512 B3.1 BRMRRESRMNEISNZIEERDL
KPI The average training hours completed per employee . .

RASREE K by gender and employee category. >l>leoatrd|sclosed this N/A

g1% B3. ZHERIREEERED - SEEE TR TY ot TR A T N

El$ 832 ;i!g%/ij&1§§ﬁ )D]J J77 1%1EETE XDJ'EO:F/] Z’»‘EEEK?&E@ T}EFH
Aspect B4: Labour Standards EEB4 : % T %8|
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
r_el;tlnﬁgétéo preventing child and forced labour. Complying with
X
Labour Standards P. 108

(@) Eﬁzkﬁ K -
(o) BFHBITABEAZENHMERLROINER
KPI Description of measures to review employment
RASRAE XK practices to avoid child and forced labour.
$51% B4.1 S R E G E AR R E T KRGS T -
KPI Description of steps taken to eliminate such . .

RASRAE W practices when discovered. Neo;rd|sclosed this N/A
EE B4.2 i 7E 232 AR B U JEBR B B B U T ERER B 25 é,( ERE TS N iE A
'%AET% ® Xﬂz ER

g i L <l AT
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page

indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number

TEHE - BH - —REENRERERUER 55, B9 BB

Operating Practices & ZE 184/l

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management EEB5 : {{tfEdi & HE

General Disclosure

Pohqes on managing environmental and social risks of the supply Partnership

chain. o e P.78

AR ke

BIEMEENIRE L g RRECE -

KPI Number of suppliers by geographical region. Not disclosed this N/A

BEER iR B DR HEREE - year R

512 B5.1 RNFEI KRR

KPI Description of practices relating to engaging

RASRIE N suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices . .

$61E B5.2 are being implemented, how they are implemented Neo;rdlsclosed this N/A
and monitored. %EﬁﬁT\?ﬁ?ﬁ T iE A
1A RIS B R IE R 0B Bl - mEE TR RIE G = )
HEFMEE - URBBEMNNMITRERTEA -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility BEB6 : ERE1T

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy Pine Silverage

matters relating to products and services provided and methods of NS P. 79-88

redress.

— MR

AEAPTREERMBGENRERLZS - BS  RERLBSENAR

RITER -

(@) BUSR : &

(o) BTFHBEITABEAZENHBERLROINER

KPI Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject ~ Not applicable

BASRIE N to recalls for safety and health reasons. to the Group’s N/A

512 B6.1 EENEEXERAHT AL REREHRMEAER business e
WH B D NEANAEE
ES

KPI Number of products and service-related complaints Not disclosed this N/A

RASRAE K received and how they are dealt with. year i

#5153 B6.2 RN EmERBEIRFEE AREEH7E RNFREIWTIKFR
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEHE - BH - —REENERERUER -0 2l BB
KPI Description of practices relating to observing and Not applicable
FRAE protecting intellectual property rights. to the Group’s
51% B6.3 it R 4 o K (RPE AR ERE B RIS D) - business N/A
NERARKER
S
KPI Description of quality assurance process and recall Not applicable
RASRIE RN procedures. to the Group’s
1% B6.4 S 20T B2 REmBIWIET © business N/A
NEANAEE
E
KPI Description of consumer data protection and privacy
FRARAE RN policies, how they are implemented and monitored. Protecting Privacy P 88
$51% B6.5 faE & & BRMRE RALBECGE - ARMBERITR TLESRE '
Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption EEB7 : R&E)5
General Disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—MRIRER
BRI AR - B1R - BGFRERER
(@ BE : &
(o) BSFHBEITABEARZENEREEZLRONER -
KPI Number of concluded legal cases regarding %?g%?gd Integrity P.77-78
FRAE corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
512 B7.1 employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERAANEEIT AR EEREWEEENET
FARMHEE RFABR -
KPI Description of preventive measures and whistle-
RASRAE XK blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
EIZ B7.2 monitored.
F P E iR e R R AR - AR T RER
7.3
g i L <l AT
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) \ Declaration Number
FTEHE  EH - —MREERBERESUER 55, B8 Hif
Community #&

Aspect B8: Community Investment EHEBS : 1 EBIRE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

Communltles vyhere Ithe issuer opergtgs :ahd to ensure its activities Pine Care Caring )
take into consideration the communities’ interests. N P.108-109
—QT)}ZE'E < 58 &=

B ESHEREREEMTMEFTSENBREAER I ER

A F 2= I BUR o

KPI Focus areas of contribution. Not disclosed this N/A
RASRAE RN B ERERE - year g
512 B8.1 RNFEIW KR

KPI Resources contributed to the focus area. Not disclosed this N/A
A EZTHEEMBHAEIR(PEERH) year T
512 B8.2 REEIW TR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
gL

The directors of Pine Care Group Limited present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, whilst its major
operating subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of senior care services.

The business review required under Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
under review using financial key performance indicators and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” (pages 10 to 12) and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” (pages 13 to 25) of this annual report, and a
description of the environmental policies and performance is set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 54 to 116 of this
annual report. These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

An analysis of the revenue and operating segment information during the
financial year is set out in note 6 and note 7 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements respectively.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

A list of principal subsidiaries, together with their places of incorporation and
particulars of their issued ordinary share capital and principal activities, is set
out in note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit of the Group for FY2021, and the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021 are set out in the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 146 to 149 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company attaches great importance to returns to investors and maintain
the continuity and stability of its profit distribution policy. According to the
dividend policy adopted by the Company, the Board would consider the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company, as well as other factors
the Board may consider relevant, before declaring or recommending
dividends.

NEKREEZEBERANESREEREERER
20213 A31 B ILFE 2 K EBIZIRE MWK ([4R
AHBHRE]) °

ETREHREBEE
AARMEIBEEDAREZR  AREELENS
RARREFRERE 2R -

REEBRAGOIMKRSBERMNERLDRE 2158
AEEEHNEERKR R THAPERZMHEL - EA
MBERRBEEEZIMALEENEBEFANKEAR
RNEBEBAERRREENIER  BERAFHRY
[EREHRE N FE10E12B) R ERETmENHT (5
132 258)  BIREGK RERBHME R AFERE
S4ZE116EM [BIE - t G REAHRE | - ZETW
BHARNIEEGRE] 2—BH -

MR E R K 8 D BB R e D AT 2 B ER
AP MARMEL 6 RHFET -

FEHBA A

TEMBRARMIIE  EREFMAIIEREE
TEBRAREZEBOFE  BREEHBHHRE
Fi3E40 ©

P

AR @ R 2021 BF B AR [E H035 FIl o AN SR B A 2021 £ 3
RAB1BMEEHBIRAR  BREAERE1462
149 B MR G T HE -

IR BIBR

RAFRFFHERKEE R WRFNE D BB
EVEE I RARE M - RIBAR RRME B S EER -
BN SR BURR S AT E B R B8 FIik
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A e WA R 2 )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EE L

DIVIDEND

As the business of the Group is expected to undergo rapid expansion and
development, adequate working capital is required to be reserved for its
projects development. As a result, the Directors do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the FY2021 (FY2020 final dividend: HKO0.68 cent
per ordinary share of the Company).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2021 annual general
meeting of the Company (“2021 AGM”), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 24 August 2021 to Friday, 27 August
2021, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that all share
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23
August 2021.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the consolidated financial position
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2021 is set out on
page 232 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

We treasure our relationship with the key stakeholders which comprise
customers, employees, bankers and suppliers, and we are able to maintain
our sound relationship and obtain continuous support from the key
stakeholders so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable development.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
gL

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For FY2021, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were approximately 45.8%, while the sales attributable to the
Group’s largest customer during the year under review were approximately
44.7%.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
during the year under review were approximately 45.0%, while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier during the year under review were
approximately 12.8%.

Save for Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, the former Chairman of the Board and executive
director and existing substantial shareholder of the Company, who was
beneficially interested in 6.8% of the issued shares in the Group’s third largest
supplier, none of the directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued shares) had an interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers for
FY2021.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company during the year under review are
set out in note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Movements in the
reserves of the Group are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
March 2021 amounted to approximately HK$149.7 million (2020: HK$155.9
million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year under review amounted to
HK$3,000.

BANK BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2021 are set out
in note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year under review are set out in note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

TEHERAREF

R0 BBFE - AEEERE S HEBEL
45.8% - 07 8 M B K % 5 10 0 B 4F O 16 B B 40
44.7% °

AEBRTAREBRRODBEFAGERBELZED
45.0% - T 7R 5= B S OA (R 70 [0 R AF A R FB 40
12.8% °

R0V HHEE - RARBNEFTG TR LRATE
ERBEBIERRBCEEENARE 2 E=KH#
ERMBE BT T IR 6.8% W Em MBI - HE
BEf HETBMEARETARR(BESHRAELSZ
NE%HARBDHEITH) RAKENERHER
SEP AR

et & A ok fe
ARD IR BLRESE R B BB R & B TS R K
38 AEEMBHEEZHRUNGA BREHE -

RATN2021E3A31 B Al DR EHELD
149.7 BEBIT (20204 : 1559 EMBTT) °

ErRBERE

MR PI SRS (A DR MA I 4 I
B E W SORTE A D AARIL A H R AR
HIERBEHRY -

B3
AR E R B R R 2 3B 3,000 7T ©

RITERK
AEER 20214 3 731 AORITEREBERRGS
A REM 25 -

M~ =R R B
ARERDEFANONE  BERREZ 2
BAGAMBREME14 -

15

e 2 WA R A

2021 F 1) 119



120

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EE L

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year under
review are set out in note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed below, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
under review or subsisted at the end of the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 January 2017. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options
to the eligible participants to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, but are not limited
to, (i) any employee or director of any member of the Group or of any company
in which the Company holds, directly or indirectly, an equity interest (the
“Invested Entity”) (including any full-time or part-time employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive director); (ii)
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (iii) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (iv) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant an option to eligible
participant(s) to subscribe for the shares of the Company at an exercise price
and subject to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme. The offer of a
grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee to
the Company. Unless otherwise determined by the directors and stated in the
offer to a grantee, a grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum
period nor achieve any performance targets before the exercise of an option
granted to him/her.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified by the
directors of the Company to the grantee thereof, and in the absence of such
determination, from the date of acceptance of the offer of such option to the
earlier of (i) the date on which such option lapses under the relevant provisions
of the Share Option Scheme; and (ii) the date falling 10 years from the offer
date of that option.
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The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in accordance with the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant is subject to the shareholders’ approval
in general meeting with the participant and the close associates of such
participant (or his/her/its associates if the participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting.

Each grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). Where
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director, or any of their respective associates, would result in the
Company’s shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares of the
Company in aggregate and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of offer) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
general meeting.

The exercise price of share options is determined by the Board, but shall be at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board
lots of the shares of the Company on the date of offer of the option; (i) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company'’s share.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years commencing on
the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 86,400,000 shares,
representing 10% of the Company’s shares in issue on the date of listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and approximately 9.57% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of this report. No option has
been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year under review and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Yip Keung (Chief executive officer)

Mr. Yeung Ka Wing

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching

Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei (resigned on 19 October 2020)

Non-executive directors
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong
Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert (resigned on 19 October 2020)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony

Mr. Lam Cheung Wai (appointed on 19 October 2020)
Mr. Wong Kam Pui (appointed on 19 October 2020)

Mr. Wong Kit Loong (appointed on 19 October 2020)
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (resigned on 19 October 2020)

Dr. Wong Ping San John (resigned on 19 October 2020)
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing (resigned on 19 October 2020)

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Cheng Wai Ching, Dr. Tang Yiu Pong
and Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony shall retire by rotation at the 2021 AGM. All of
the above retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management of the Company
are set out on pages 26 to 34 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has
a service contract with the Company that is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the directors. The
remuneration of all directors is subject to regular monitoring by the
Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate. Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions” and note 36 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any director or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme operated by the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, neither at the end of nor
at any time during the year there subsisted any arrangement to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and the objects of or one of
the objects of such arrangement are/is to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance (including those for provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders) has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year under review.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions (the “CCT”), details of which are set out below in
compliance with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(A) Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement
A tenancy agreement (the “Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement”) was entered
into between Zhejiang Pine Care Yada Elderly Services Limited
(“Zhejiang Pine Care Yada”, a subsidiary of the Company) as lessee and
Zhejiang Yada International Rehabilitation Hospital Co., Limited
(“Zhejiang Yada International”) as lessor.

Date: 29 November 2017
The term of the tenancy: 1 December 2017 to 31 December 2027

Upon expiration of the term of the tenancy, Zhejiang Pine Care Yada
has the first right to renew the lease.
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Premises being leased: Pursuant to the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement,
Zhejiang Yada International agreed to lease to Zhejiang Pine Care Yada
the whole of Third Floors in Buildings C1 & C2 of Zhejiang Yada
International Rehabilitation Hospital, Wuzhen Town, Tongxiang City,
Zhejiang Province, The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), with a
total floor area of approximately 7,190 square metres (equivalent to
approximately 77,400 square feet) (the “Zhejiang Premises”) for setting
up residential care home for elderly. The Zhejiang Premises is of great
convenience to the elderly residents to obtain medical support, which is
ideal for establishment of a quality elderly residential care home and

enables the Group to strengthen its branding in the Mainland China.

Basis of pricing: The rentals under the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement
are determined with reference to and taking into account (i) the
prevailing market rental of similar properties with similar business nature
in nearby locations in Zhejiang, the PRC; (i) the location of the Zhejiang

Premises; and (iii) the expected inflation rate in future.

Rental: The rental for the Zhejiang Premises on an annual basis from
years 2018 to 2021 is RMB3,019,800 (the “Annual Rental”). In order to
support the development of the business of Zhejiang Pine Care Yada,
Zhejiang Yada International and Zhejiang Pine Care Yada agree that:

(i) For the period from 1 December 2017 to 31 December 2017:
rent-free period, but property management fees and utilities fees

shall be borne by Zhejiang Pine Care Yada;

(i) For the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018: 20%

of the Annual Rental;

(i) For the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019: 50%

of the Annual Rental;

(iv)  For the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020: 80%

of the Annual Rental;

(v) For the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021:

Annual Rental; and

(vi)  For the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2027: the
rental (on annual basis) shall increase from the Annual Rental by

8% every 2 years.

The above rental does not include property management fees and
utilities fees (including water, electricity, heating, gas, telephone, data,

cable television charges, etc.).
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Annual Caps: The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement, which are determined based
on the rental to be received by Zhejiang Yada International in respect of
the tenancy, are as follows:

For the year ended/ending 31 March
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2019 20194 880
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2021 2021 4F 2,700
2022 2022 4 3,240
2023 20234 3,430
2024 2024 4 3,500
2025 20254 3,700
2026 2026 4 3,780
2027 2027 £ 4,000
2028 (up to 31 December 2027) 2028 F (HEZ= 202712 A31H) 3,000

The total amount of rental payable for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to approximately RMB2,567,000.

Yada International (HK) Limited (“Yada HK”) is a substantial shareholder
of Pine Care Yada Elderly Services Limited, which is a subsidiary of the
Company. Yada HK and Yada Healthcare Industry Development Co.,
Limited (“Yada Health”) are fellow subsidiaries of Yada International
Holdings Limited and Zhejiang Yada International is a subsidiary of Yada
Health. Accordingly, Zhejiang Yada International is an associate of Yada
HK and therefore a connected person of the Company at subsidiary
level. The entering into of the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 November 2017.

HE2021F3A31 HILFEMEMNHESERE
#45 AR 2,567,000 7T °

HEEREEEB) BRARTHERLD
BARFMEBEARMRKEERERBERA
AIMETERER HEFTBERMEERFEERXS
BRERAR(THERE) RREREEES
RARKERMERF - MANTIEERRS
HEEE A B LR - Bt 3T HEE R
RIGERBOBE QT - WM AR DR K
BAREBENEEAL - FINIES A
BRARBR ETRAE AT THRERM

RHHBHNRARR BB R2017F 11 529

SE: N

A e WA R 2 )
2021 F R

125



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EE L

(B)

Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement (the “Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement”) was
entered into between Patina Wellness Limited (“Patina Wellness”, a
subsidiary (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company) as lessee
and Everhost Limited (“Everhost”) as lessor.

Date: 13 April 2018

The term of the tenancy: 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2028

Premises being leased: Pursuant to the Patina Wellness Tenancy
Agreement, Everhost agreed to lease to Patina Wellness the building
named “Patina” and situated at 18 Junction Road, Kowloon City, Hong
Kong, excluding 30th Floor and the flat roof together with 2 carparks,
with a total floor area of approximately 84,000 square feet (the “Patina
Premises”) for setting up and operating residential care home for the
elderly, clinic, service apartments, clubhouse and restaurant.

The Patina Premises will enable the Group to expand its business in
Hong Kong for the operation of an upscale community for the senior
with the concept of an “Integrated Senior Wellness Hub” to expand its
business coverage to active seniors who require a lower level of care
compared to traditional RCHE residents, while at the same time, widen
the breadth of its service offerings for this emerging market segment.

Basis of pricing: The rentals payable under the Patina Wellness
Tenancy Agreement are determined with reference to and taking into
account (i) prevailing market rents for comparable premises in the area
where the Patina Premises are situated; (i) the location of the Patina
Premises; and (iii) the expected inflation rate in the future.

Rental: Details of monthly rental for the Patina Premises (exclusive of
rates and management fees and all other outgoings) are set out as
follows:

(i) From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2022, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,000,000 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher;

(i) From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,320,000 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher; and
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(iii) From 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2028, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,691,200 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher.

Rent-free period: Everhost shall grant to Patina Wellness a rent-free
period of not more than 3 calendar months commencing from 1 April
2018 for carrying out renovation and decoration works within the Patina
Premises, provided that such rent-free period in respect of the 79
service apartments on 7/F to 29/F of the Patina Premises shall cease
on the date on which Patina Wellness commences business at that
portion of the Patina Premises.

Annual Caps: The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement, which are determined
based on the rental to be received by Everhost in respect of the
tenancy, are as follows:

For the year ended/ending 31 March
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HK$

BT
2019 20194 23,208,600
2020 20204 24,000,000
2021 20214 24,000,000
2022 20224 24,000,000
2023 2023%F 27,840,000
2024 20244 27,840,000
2025 20254 27,840,000
2026 20264 32,294,400
2027 20274 32,294,400
2028 20284 32,294,400

The total amount of rental payable for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to approximately HK$24,000,000.
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At the time when the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement was entered
into, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing was a substantial shareholder of Patina
Wellness. The late Mr. Tang Shing Bor, the father of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing,
was beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Everhost.
Accordingly, Everhost was an associate of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing and
therefore a connected person of the Company at subsidiary level. The
entering into of the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 April 2018.

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing has become a substantial shareholder and an
executive director of the Company. Based on the relations mentioned in
the above paragraph, Everhost remains an associate of Mr. Tang Yiu
Sing, but becomes a connected person of the Company at issuer level.

Master Management Service Agreement

A Master Management Service Agreement was entered into between
the Company and the Grantors in respect of the Company’s provision
of management services to manage and operate for the Grantors any
one or more of the RCHEs, senior care facilities, serviced apartments,
hotels, guest houses, restaurants, clubhouses and any other
establishments (including establishments under development) owned
and/or operated by any of the Grantors, either jointly or individually,
from time to time (the “Establishments”).

Grantors are referred to as Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, the late Mr. Tang Shing-
bor, Dr. Tang Yiu Pong and any other member of the Tang family and/
or any funds, fund managers, companies, joint ventures or other entities
controlled, or owned as to 30% or more, by the Tang Family and/or any
funds, fund managers, companies, joint ventures or other entities which
the Tang Family has a material interest and/or any associates of the
Tang Family, as defined under the Listing Rules. The Grantors, Mr. Tang
Yiu Sing and the late Mr. Tang Shing-bor are substantial shareholders
of the Company. The late Mr. Tang Shing-bor is also the father of Dr.
Tang Yiu Pong and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, both of whom are the directors
of the Company. Consequently, the Grantors are regarded as
connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules and therefore, the Master Agreement and any transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected transaction
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Date: 24 November 2020

Term: 3 financial years from 5 March 2021
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Subject matter: The Company may from time to time, during the term
of the Master Management Service Agreement, separately enter into
individual management service agreements with the Grantors on agreed
terms to manage and operate the relevant operations of the
Establishments for the Grantors, subject to certain conditions.

The proposed scope of services to be provided by the Company under
the management service agreement includes, but not limited to,
preparing annual budgets, sourcing of operational supplies,
management of the respective operation staff, preparation and
implementation of sales and marketing plans and promotions,
overseeing the overall operations of the Establishments, maintaining the
quality and standard of the respective operations and generally
improving sales revenue and gross operating profits as a whole or such
other related matters regarding improving sales revenue and gross
operating profits that the parties therein shall agree from time to time.

Pricing: The management fees for the transactions contemplated
under the respective management service agreements shall comprise
of: (a) the basic management fees; (b) the marketing fees; and/or (c) the
incentive management fees (only applicable if there is gross operating
profits for the relevant Establishments).

The Company adopts the principle of cost plus a reasonable margin,
which is expected to be not less than 8%, for the management services
to be provided to both the Grantors and independent third party
customers and hence, in any event the terms and prices offered by the
Company to the Grantors will be no more favourable than those offered
to independent third parties for the same or similar type of services.
Also, the Company will take reference and benchmark of the pricing
and terms of management services provided to properties of sizes and
locations similar to that of the Establishments in order to assess the
fairness and reasonableness of the pricing of the basic management
fees charged by the Company. The Company considers that the “cost
plus” basis allows the Company to recover its cost with a reasonable
margin of not less than 8% which is a better benchmark than a fixed
percentage of revenue. The marketing fees shall be calculated based
on an one-off HK$4,000 for each residential care place established by
the Company. The standard rate of the incentive management fees
(subject to adjustments, to be agreed between the Company and the
Grantors, based on the different locations of the Establishments) shall
be calculated based on 2% to 8% of the gross operating profits of the
respective Establishments managed by the Company.
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The Grantors may impose a separate license fee if the Establishments
are or will be operated under a brand or group owned by the Grantors
and/or if the Company makes use of any registered trademark or
goodwill of the Establishment in its operation of the Establishment. The
license fee may be based on nil to 2% of the gross operating profits.

Annual Caps: The total Management Fees under all the Management
Service Agreements for each financial year shall not exceed the follow
Annual Caps:

(i) for the financial year ending on 31 March 2021: HK$4,800,000;

(i) for the financial year ending on 31 March 2022: HK$36,100,000;
and

(iii) for the financial year ending on 31 March 2023: HK$87,300,000.

The total amount of Management Fees for the year ended 31 March
2021 amounted to nil.

Through leveraging the Group’s brand and expertise to provide the
aforesaid management services to Grantors will enable the Group to
replicate the business for various market segments at a faster pace.
The Group can also formulate similar asset light model to provide
management services to different property owners in Hong Kong and
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

The transactions contemplated under the Master Management Service
Agreement are of a recurrent nature and will occur on a regular and
continuing basis in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company. In order to regulate, inter alia, the relevant transactions
relating to various individual agreements between the Company and the
Grantors, and for the purpose of administrative convenience, the Master
Management Service Agreement offers flexibility for the entering into of
further individual agreement(s), if any, and/or renewal of various existing
individual agreements, which is considered beneficial to both the
Company and the Grantors.

Details of the Master Management Service Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 24 November 2020 and 26
January 2021 and the circular of the Company dated 17 February
2021.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company reviewed and
confirmed that the CCT had been entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) according to the agreements governing such transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company were engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the CCT
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the directors of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred
to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

EEREETHRAERRSG - HER
NRESF 2B RKR

2021 €3 A31 8 » AARESHNAR B AR
E(TERBFFLBEEMNTESRBERNDE
XVED) P B AR AR R E 5 LB &0 5% 352 15
REFEZECMKBBEETAEMNEARF R
BERZ AT 2 BR D - MR RESFOER AR WDT ¢

Interest in ordinary shares of the Company (other than RANTEBROERS BEREKSTET
pursuant to equity derivatives): BN :
Approximate
percentage*
of shareholding
Name of director Capacity/nature of interest Number of shares in the Company
fEA D B RER
EEpE B RmitE R EE BRBED
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing Interest held by controlled corporations 272,496,000 (L) 30.18%
BRA Sk RPEE AR (Note 2) (FfzE2)
Beneficial owner 14,040,000 (L) 1.56%
EmAAA
286,536,000 (L) 31.74%
Mr. Chan Yip Keung Beneficial owner 1,888,000 (L) 0.21%
BREESE S & EREAA
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Interest in the physical settled equity derivatives of the
Company:

Name of director Capacity/nature of interest

AA AT ENEERAITE T AR |

Approximate
percentage*
Number of of shareholding

equity derivatives in the Company

1EEARRER
EEnA 51 Rty BRALTETA#E BROBE D
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing Beneficial owner 31,608,000 (L) 3.50%

HRALE EnliE A
Notes:
1. The letter “L” represents the director’s long position in the shares/equity

derivatives of the Company.

2. These shares were held by Starcorp Limited (for 224,176,000 shares) and
Smartbase Investments Limited (for 48,320,000 shares), corporations wholly
owned and controlled by Mr. Tang Yiu Sing.

3. Mr. Tang Yiu Sing and Pine Active Care Limited (“Pine Active Care”) entered into a
call option deed, pursuant to which, among other things, call options was granted
giving Mr. Tang (or his nominee(s)) the right to require Pine Active Care to transfer
to him up to 31,608,000 shares.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares/equity derivatives
involved divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March
2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed minimum public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

(Note 3) (FfzE3)
B 5E

1. FEILIRREBRARARY, BAITE TR
78 -

2. ZERMNEFRALEZERERIEFOHAF
Starcorp Limited & Smartbase Investments Limited 7
RI#E7H 224,176,000 I A% 1 2 48,320,000 A% 17)

3. B 12 5 5t 4 £ Pine Active Care Limited ([ Pine Active
Care]) BEFT U RIEHIERE - Bt - (HPEHE)E
S (SR B A) B RIS A - WM TRRZK
Pine Active Care [f % 8% % i % 31,608,000 B & 17

* ERAADLLIEMSRE R MATE TAESER
LAARRAR]R 2021 43 A31 BB ZTRMHEE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTSAND  =ZERERMRDRIEERHA 2 ERZK
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING RE

SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the following parties (other than the directors or chief ~ 7202193 A31H M & H(ARRESZTHREE
executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in the shares or ~ TTEA BBRIN AR BIRED SiABBE R () Fh A B0
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests ~ $EMAIRIEEH MBI E(EHI FE 33612 R EFE 2 1
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and ~ #H &M ARG AR R AEERSSA R

as the Company is aware:

Number of shares (L) Approximate

RO#EW) Equity percentage*

Beneficial Corporate Family Concert  derivatives (S) Total  of shareholding

Name of shareholder owner interest interest party (Note 8) interest  in the Company

R

FTETA(S) AR FRER

BR#E/ 28 BEREFA DR RkEE  -RTBAL (FizE8) BHEAH BRBAL*

Smartbase Investments Limited 48,320,000 - - - - 48,320,000 (L) 5.35%
(Note 2) (Hi7E2)

Starcorp Limited 224,176,000 - - - - 224,176,000 (L) 24.83%
(Note 2) (Hi7E2)

Century Fortress Limited 130,800,000 - - - - 130,800,000 (L) 14.49%
(Note 3) (Fi5£3)

Great Canton Investments Limited 103,678,000 - - - - 103,678,000 (L) 11.48%
(Note 3) (#f7E3)

Tang Shing-bor (deceased) (Note 3) 9,000,000 234,478,000 - - - 243,478,000 (L) 26.97%

BHOR (B4 (F133) (Note 3) (ff1££3)

Pine Active Care Limited 135,304,000 - - - 31,608,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%

(Note 4) (it 4) 31,608,000 () 3.50%

Silverage Pillar Limited - 135,304,000 - - 31,608,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%

(Note 4) (Bif5E4) 31,608,000 (S) 3.50%

Silverage Pine Care Limited - 135,304,000 - - 31,608,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%

(Note 4) (Ffi3E4) 31,608,000 () 3.50%

Yim Ting Kwok 4,568,000 135,304,000 - - 31,608,000 139,872,000 (L) 15.49%

EEE (Note 5) (Fii#E5)  (Note 4) (FizE4) 31,608,000 (S) 3.50%

Cho Wing Yin - 135,304,000 - 4,568,000 31,608,000 139,872,000 (L) 15.49%

Bkt (Note 4) (FiiEE4) (Note 5) (FifEE5) 31,608,000 () 3.50%
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Number of shares (L)

Approximate

RO#EWL Equity percentage*

Beneficial Corporate Family Concert  derivatives (S) Total  of shareholding

Name of shareholder owner interest interest party (Note 8) interest  in the Company
R

FTETA(S) TEARDFRAER

BR# s,/ 4% BERERA DR REER  —BTBAL (HizEs) BHEAE BRBAL*

Ng Kwok Fu Alex - 135,304,000 - 4,568,000 31,608,000 139,872,000 (L) 15.49%

REE (Note 4) (FiiF4) (Note 5) (Fi7+5) 31,608,000 (9) 350%

Suen Mi Lai Betty - 135,304,000 - - 31,608,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%

jie3 (Note 4) (Fi5T 4) 31,608,000 () 350%

Yim Billy Pui Kei 320,000 135,304,000 - - 31,608,000 135,624,000 (L) 15.02%

e, (Note 4) (Fi5E4) 31,608,000 (S) 3.50%

Yim Edwin Pui Hin - 135,304,000 - - 31,608,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%

i (Note 4) (Fi5E4) 31,608,000 () 3.50%

Lock Hiu Yan Crystal - - 135,304,000 - 31,608,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%

BER (Note 6)(#7£6) (Note 6) (fifit6) 31,608,000 (S) 350%

Cheung Sui Wa Scarlett - - 135,624,000 - 31,608,000 135,624,000 (L) 15.02%

RIndE (Note 7)(Pii3E7) (Note 7) (Fi5%7) 31,208,000 (S) 3.50%

Chu Lai King - 135,304,000 - - 31,608,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%

FER (Note 4) (Fi5E4) 31,608,000 (S) 3.50%

JL Investments Capital Limited 69,000,000 - - - - 69,000,000 (L) 7.64%

(Note 9) (FifT9)

Lau Chi Yuen Joseph - 69,000,000 - - - 69,000,000 (L) 7.64%

Jmz (Note 9) (Fiiz£9)

Notes: i sE -

1. The letter “L” represents the substantial shareholder’s long position in the shares 1. FRILIARRTEREARATROGHIGFE  MF
of the Company, whereas letter “S” represents the substantial shareholder’s short [SIREFTERERARATIRALTE T EHARE ©
position in the equity derivatives of the Company.

2. The above interests of Smartbase Investments Limited and Starcorp Limited were 2. Smartbase Investments Limited & Starcorp Limited &)

also disclosed as the interests of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures”.
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3. The late Mr. Tang Shing-bor passed away on 14 May 2021. Century Fortress
Limited and Great Canton Investments Limited are corporations wholly-owned
and controlled by the late Mr. Tang Shing-bor. Accordingly, the late Mr. Tang
Shing-bor was deemed to be interested in these shares held by Century Fortress

Limited and Great Canton Investments Limited.

4. These shares are held by Pine Active Care, which is owned as to 90% by
Silverage Pine Care and 10% by Silverage Pillar. Silverage Pine Care is in turn
owned as to an aggregate of 74.25% by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Ms. Cho Wing Yin
(spouse of Mr. Yim Ting Kwok), Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex, Ms. Suen Mi Lai Betty
(spouse of Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex), Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin and
Ms. Chu Lai King (senior management of the Company); whereas Silverage Pillar
is in turn owned as to an aggregate of 93.58% by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok and Mr. Ng
Kwok Fu Alex. Therefore, Silverage Pine Care, Silverage Pillar, Mr. Yim Ting Kwok,
Ms. Cho Wing Yin, Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex, Ms. Suen Mi Lai Betty, Mr. Yim Edwin
Pui Hin and Ms. Chu Lai King are deemed to be interested in the shares of the

Company held by Pine Active Care pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

5. Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex and Ms. Cho Wing Yin entered into the
Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking on 7 September 2016, pursuant
to which they would vote as a group (by themselves and/or through companies
controlled by them) at the shareholder and/or board levels. Accordingly, Mr. Ng
Kwok Fu Alex and Ms. Cho Wing Yin are deemed to be interested in these shares
held by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, based on the said acting-in-concert relationship

pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

6. Ms. Lock Hiu Yan Crystal is deemed to be interested in these shares/equity
derivatives of the Company through the interest of her spouse, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui

Hin.

7. Ms. Cheung Sui Wa Scarlett is deemed to be interested in these shares/equity
derivatives of the Company through the interest of her spouse, Mr. Yim Billy Pui

Kei.

8. Pine Active Care and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing entered into a call option deed, pursuant
to which, among other things, Pine Active Care has granted to Mr. Tang Yiu Sing
the call options right to require Pine Active Care to transfer to him up to
31,608,000 shares. Based on the relations set out in note 4 above, these
substantial shareholders were deemed to have the short position which Pine

Active Care has pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

9. JL Investments Capital Limited is a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by
Lau Chi Yuen Joseph. Accordingly, Lau Chi Yuen Joseph was deemed to be

interested in these shares held by JL Investments Capital Limited.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares/equity derivatives
involved divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March

2021.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no person, other than the
directors whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the usual
course of business are set out in note 36 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. These related party transactions constitute de minimis continuing
connected transactions of the Company that are exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of directors was
interested in any business apart from the Group’s business, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 28 October 2019, Pine Care Elderly Home Development Limited (“Pine
Care EHD”, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and certain
subsidiaries of the Company as borrowers entered into a facilities agreement
(the “Facilities Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited as lender, pursuant
to which certain loan facilities, comprising a term loan in an aggregate amount
of HK$350,000,000 have been granted to Pine Care EHD (in which
approximately 97.2% and 2.8% of the loan amount will be matured on 28
January 2025 and 28 February 2025, respectively).

The Facilities Agreement together with a revising banking facility letter issued
by the lender in June 2020 has, among other things, imposed a specific
performance covenant on Mr. Tang Yiu Sing to maintain as the largest single
shareholder of the Group as well as maintain control over the management
and business of the Group. Failure to comply with the aforesaid covenant by
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing will constitute an event of default, and the lender shall have
the right to declare the term loan has become immediately due and payable,
and any undrawn balance of the term loan shall automatically be cancelled
and no longer be available to Pine Care EHD to be cancelled and/or all or part
of outstanding amounts under this term loan, together with accrued interest
and all other sums payable to be immediately due and payable.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or in
existence during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company and its associated
companies is currently in force and was in force throughout the year under

review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (consisting of the four independent non-executive
directors of the Company) has reviewed with management of the Company
the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young had acted as the auditor of the Company for FY2020. At the
EGM on 13 April 2021, the Company has passed a special resolution in
removing Ernst & Young and an ordinary resolution in appointing
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for FY2021 were
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the 2021 AGM. A resolution will be
submitted to the 2021 AGM to seek shareholders’ approval on the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Pine Care Group Limited
Tang Yiu Sing

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 24 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

B 37 A% S i e

pwc

To the Shareholders of Pine Care Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Pine Care Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 146 to 231,
which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

33 7 A% B 2 (A

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matter that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

o Impairment assessment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

ERVER
HMEREEESHM RS EMOCEBRAERD
EITERR c RAEZZERN T RENEECELR
= I REMREGA VB MERAENEE] P
1R — AR -

HPEE  RPIMESHBREREERT R B
REMNERREER -

By %
REEEEMASRAN(EESAMBEERST
ADATERE TR AR S5E - ¥
[EIT Rl MR B B R (T

BRETSEIR
RRBSTASRBRMNERHE  RAHAH
FAMBRRNEFTZR/EENSEH - ELFHE
ERMBAEREAMBRRALH AT RRETR
BE - KM T EHELERERBUNER -

BMER T HER M BERES AT

. AR ERT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNAEREBEETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

R R E AL

Refer to notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements
FE2MEAM B mRMEE4 %20

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying value of the Group’s goodwill
amounted to HK$33.8 million in the consolidated statement of
financial position, which arose from the acquisition of companies
principally engaged in the provision of elderly home care services.

R2021F3A31H - BEEERGEMBHRARTNEEREE
/%33,800,000/87C - DELBWETIENFRHALERERED

NS
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Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill included:

BMEEREREFENERTEE

° Assess the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and the
judgement involved in management’s impairment
assessment of goodwill;
FRERMEFTIREEENIEE RE R EEREREN Y
KE)HIET - SR EREREUARE S =R

° Understand and evaluate management’s internal controls
and processes in determining the assumptions adopted in
the goodwill impairment assessment;

TR R E R B B R ER G TR B RR A R EBE
AR



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

FIEE TS IE (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAWETNNREBEERTSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

BT BB T (4F)

Management is required to perform a goodwill impairment
assessment at least on an annual basis. For the purpose of
performing impairment assessment, goodwill is allocated to the
cash generating units (“CGUSs”). The recoverable amount of the
CGUs is the higher of value-in-use calculations which are based
on discounted future cash flows and fair value less costs of
disposal calculations relating to the CGU with reference to the
external valuation performed by a third party property valuer
(“Valuer”) on the underlying properties of the CGU. Management
concluded that no impairment provision was required on the
Group’s goodwill at 31 March 2021.

ERERE LEEETHEREN G - HETRHENENE - &
BNOBEERSEFEN([REELEM]) - REEEBMAA]
WEEHEAEABERATERLENETNERSE  MEREBE
SEDERBBEARBERE  MRSELEEUEBRNAAEBER
HEXNRFHUNL2EE=MEREM(HEMDHREEES
LEAERE Y EEITH N E - ERER R - 720213 A 31
H#zast ESENHEATRAERE -

We focused on this area as the goodwill impairment assessment
made by management involved significant estimates and
judgements, including revenue growth rates, discount rates and
the fair value of the underlying properties in determining the
recoverable amount of the CGUSs.

HMIEFRULERE - TEREEBIEHNEBREN S RER
et RAE - BERETHR S E S B MG S R H RS
RE BREREAVENIARE -

o Obtain from management the goodwill impairment
assessment and test the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations;

WEREESHBREN  WARFENEELEREN

o Involve our internal valuation experts in the evaluation of the
appropriateness of the methodology and the reasonableness
of the key assumptions used including revenue growth
rates, discount rates and fair value of the underlying
properties with reference to historical trend and market
data;

HMMABAEER2ZR/EBYL RIS  TEAA
FEMBEEERARER (BERRERE - MR ERE

BYENRAE) SR
o Evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer;

AL fREMNERE - e RFHM

o Evaluate the sensitivity of a reasonably possible change in
the revenue growth rates, the discount rates and the fair
value of the underlying properties on the recoverable
amount of the CGUs; and
AN RIS RE MRERABEYEAABENSIEA S
PUMEELEFMATRESENRRE &

o Assess the disclosures on the impairment assessment of
goodwill, specifically the key assumptions that had the
most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of the CGUSs.
AHEEEREENRE  CESHETReEE BN
A Bl A RERNZENMRMRR

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions used in the goodwill impairment assessment were
supportable in light of available evidence.

RIBPRATTEE 7 - RIMERAERENEPE AN ERER
BAEBEIH -
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2021 F 3

141



142

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

33 7 A% B 2 (A

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Tsang Nga Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2021

(If there is any inconsistency between English and Chinese versions of this independent
auditor’s report, the English version shall prevail.)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

fon o R 2 %

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #%20214F3H31HILF/E

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
st FET FHET
REVENUE U= 6 245,706 217,363
Other income and gains EAb A R iz 6 477 476
Amortisation b 3| 16 (3,092) (8,093)
Depreciation e 14 (56,841) (33,689)
Staff costs B I (88,328) (99,524)
Property rental and related expenses YRS REBRAY (6,906) (6,620)
Food and beverage costs Rin MR R AR (9,561) (8,471)
Utility expenses UNGEE4753 (6,893) (7,095)
Supplies and consumables e HFE S (7,565) (6,724)
Repair and maintenance HERIRE (3,151) 2,732
Multidisciplinary fees and related expenses &% & B AR < (10,189) (12,223)
Hygienic and cleaning expenses BERBRFAY (1,270) (1,235)
Other operating expenses Hhag e (11,324) (14,224)
OPERATING PROFIT R 41,063 22,209
Finance costs EURID RN 12 (14,543) (4,764)
Share of loss of a joint venture HME—EEEbEREE 17 (15,838) (323)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRB AR R 8 10,682 17,122
Income tax expenses FRS iR 9 (7,468) (3,546)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR £ R 3,214 13,576
Attributable to: AT &R -
Owners of the parent [STNEIEZEUN 5,860 13,584
Non-controlling interests IR (2,646) 8)
3,214 13,576
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ISTNGE” 2 =N
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENTS EhERER 13
Basic and diluted ERREE HKO0.6 cent #Bfll HK1.5 cents /&1l

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

1 A T W A 3R

»a E .

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #%2021F3H31HILF/E
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih2mEKA

Other comprehensive income that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations attributable to non-controlling
interests and others

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

BTEnERAHERDHRE
B HMEEA

SRR R R R IR B BN TS
EAEMEN ZR L HEAM
R IR ER DB EEES

Hb 2wy A () :

BREBIINEBEENER 28R
FEHMBEZEKRA

FEZHBARE

VAT & T3 R4
[SFNSIEZZS PN
FERERR M 2

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
3,214 13,576
226 841
236 (763)
462 78
3,676 13,654
6,096 14,129
(2,420) (475)
3,676 13,654
o i AR AR A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A 7 SR SR Dl R

As at 31 March 2021 R202143H31H

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
st FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 14 772,663 819,278
Intangible assets mAE 16 3,093 6,185
Investment in a joint venture R—HERELENEE 17 5,565 21,403
Prepayments, deposits and TERNRIE - S REMBERFIE
other receivables 19 6,899 6,808
Goodwiill FEE 20 33,833 33,833
Investment in insurance contract IR G KRR E 21 3,261 3,143
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBE E 29 6,222 6,200
Total non-current assets ERBNVEERTE 831,536 896,850
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from a joint venture U —FEEEDERIE 17 21,976 8,921
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 18 6,708 5,521
Tax recoverable BEEERE 1,226 1,389
Prepayments, deposits and AR -« BE REMERFIE
other receivables 19 15,901 2,930
Cash and cash equivalents BekIREZEEY 22 49,687 27,767
Total current assets MENEELATE 95,498 46,528
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables & S ENIE 23 2,426 2,029
Other payables and accruals Eith 5 R IERHE A 24 15,592 18,977
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITIER 25 84,648 408,574
Lease liabilities fHEaE 15 25,837 20,877
Tax payable FES BT 7,130 5,521
Total current liabilities mEBERE 135,633 455,978
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (40,135) (409,450
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBES
LIABILITIES 791,401 487,400

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

B B IR Dt 2% (#8)

As at 31 March 2021 R202143H31H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the parent

Issued capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Tang Yiu Sing
RS
Director

BE

FRBEE
FTRRITER
HERE

HAO R FOR R A B
EERIAAE

FERBEELEE

BEFHE

R
BARREEAEGER

B2EITRA
G

FEiE AR pE i

i

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTHET FHET
25 518,287 190,677
15 50,243 70,817
24 5,444 5,044
29 13,240 14,211
587,214 280,749
204,187 206,651
26 9,029 9,029
28 191,180 191,224
200,209 200,253
3,978 6,398
204,187 206,651
Chan Yip Keung
BREEE
Director
EF
B E 2 R A R A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
f 7 B A 5 ) 3R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #%20214F3H31HILF/E

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREE AR
Share Exchange Non-
Issued  premium Merger Other fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve  reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
B&fT K E2R FER

ke EER  AHEE  AfERE  BRE REX it it ERAR
Note  HK§000  HKS'000  HK$000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i Tér Tz TExz TEx  TEx  TEx  TEm  TER  TER

(Note 26) (Note 28)
(F=E26) (= 28)
At 1 April 2020 R202054R18 9,029 148,770 33,798 2,432 (486) 6,710 200,253 6,398 206,651
Profit/loss) for the year FERTH/(B8) - - - = = 5,860 5,860 (2,646) 3,214
Other comprehensive income/ FEAMZE
(loss) for the year WA/ (B8) - - - - 236 - 236 226 462
Total comprehensive income/ FERANN/
(loss) for the year (BR)2E - - - - 236 5,860 6,09 (2,420) 3676
Final dividend RERE 30 - - - - - (6,140) (6,140) - (6,140)
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3R318 9,029 148,770 33,798 2432 (250) 6,430 200,209 3,978 204,187
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(CONTINUED)
fr o7 B 4 5 B 3 (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & 220213 H31HIFF/Z

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATERAEE
Share Exchange Non-
lssued  premium Merger Other  fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Total
captal account feseve  reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
[RES TRi3 Bk 3R

Bx EER  AGEGR  AtEER  9EE  RELH @t BE ERER
Note  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEnr  TEr TET  TEn TER

(Note 26) (Note 28)

(fit5E26) (fitzk28)
At1 April 2019 R2019E4A1H 9029 148770 33798 1591 (190) 7210 200,208 6,873 207,081
Profit/loss) for the year EERH/(F8) - - - - - 13584 13584 @ 13576
Other comprehensive income/ FEAMZE

(loss) for the year WA/ (Bi8) - - - 841 (296) - 545 (467) 78
Total comprehensive income/ EERAMA/(BE)

(loss) for the year et - - - 841 (206) 13584 14,129 (75 13,65
Interim dividend RS 30 - - - - - (7,042) (7,042) - (7,042)
Final dividend FERE 30 - - - - - (7,042) (7,042) - (7,042)
At 31 March 2020 H202053 317 9029 148770 33798 2432 (486) 6710 200253 6398 206,651

s LA MR AN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

maBlameR

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #%20214F3H31HILF/E

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation
Change in cash surrender value of
insurance contract
Provision for long service payments, net
Share of loss of a joint venture

Increase in trade receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Increase in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Interest received

Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings paid
Interest elements of lease payments

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment
Increase in an amount due

from a joint venture

Net cash used in investing activities

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Note
BieE
RETHHABRERE
R 5 A1 A
PR IR T
B RS A 12
FLS WA 6
¥ BERRETE 8
CAREERE 8
3 8
REBREONERRRBES
6
RERG AR BEFR
DiE—REEEREEE 17

B 5 YR IEE
BNFOR - ZE kAR
(gm),md
B 5 RN FIRE
HENFIa R EAER
OB /48

RER/RE
BEREBMEH
B E
HRRITERSHME
HENFOFEED
RERBMSHREFE

REFBAERERE
BEVE BELREREB

FEW — & & B FEFRIAL

RERBMARSFE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
10,682 17,122
14,543 4,764
(1) O
15,285 8,449
41,556 25,240
3,092 3,093
(118) (60)
400 1,444
15,838 323
101,277 60,374
(1,187) (3,270)
(12,812) 423
397 37
(3,385) 5,221
84,290 62,785
(6,689) (4,903)

1 1
(12,150) (19,322)
(2,393) (2,650)
63,059 35,911
(6,870) (22,932)
(13,055) (8,818)
(19,925) (31,750)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(CONTINUED)

o Bl i B A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #%2021F3H31HILF/E
Note
i
Cash flows from financing activities BRETHREESHE 31(b)
New bank loans HRITER
Repayment of bank loans BERITER
Dividends paid BRRE
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAL I
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEB AR SFE
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESESEYEM
cash equivalents (D)8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FORERREEEY
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERSBHTE
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXRBEERBLEEY
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBREESENERAI
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTHER

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

20,000 64,000

(16,316) (58,265)

(6,140) (14,084)

(18,120) (19,024)

(20,576) (27,373)

22,558 (23,212)

27,767 50,879

(638) 100

49,687 27,767

49,687 27,767
s LA MR AN 153
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 it e B ik

31 March 2021

2.1

202143H31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Pine Care Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of
the Company is G/F, 1 Koon Wah Lane, 68-72 Yuk Wah Street, Tsz
Wan Shan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in the

provision of senior care services.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$409.4 million primarily due to the classification of a term
loan of HK$346.5 million (“Term Loan”) as current liability resulting from
the breach of a loan covenant (“First Covenant”) following the change of
the controlling shareholder of the Company during February 2020.
Subsequently in April 2020, the Group failed to comply with a second
covenant (“Second Covenant”) of the Term Loan following the
suspension of the trading of the Company’s shares due to insufficient
public float for more than 14 consecutive trading days. The lending
bank of the Term Loan subsequently revised the Term Loan facility
letter in June 2020 which replaced the First Covenant with a new
covenant that Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, Chairman of the Company, shall
remain as the largest single shareholder of the Group as well as to
maintain control over the management and business of the Group. On
12 October 2020, with the resumption of trading in the shares of the
Company, both First and Second Covenant breaches were remediated
and the Term Loan has been reclassified to non-current liability
according to its contractual maturity.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$40.1 million. Included in its current liabilities were mainly
lease liabilities of HK$25.8 million and interest-bearing borrowings of
HK$84.6 million which included revolving bank loan facilities of
HK$39.95 million and a bank loan of HK$9.6 million which is not
contractually due within the next twelve months from 31 March 2021
but classified as current liability due to the bank’s overriding rights to
demand repayment.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 EEEE @)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors have
given careful consideration of the liquidity and performance of the
Group, various investments and capital expenditure plans and the
available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group has
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern. The
Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management which covers a period of twelve months to 31 March
2022. The Directors have taken into account of the following
considerations in assessing the sufficiency of working capital
requirements for the next twelve months:

RGERESTBRERE  RAHEAEERE
FRANMBERFELCZR EEERE
EEAEENRBHESLRR - BETRER
AR R AERBARHBRANRNE
KR -EECEHNEREREREEZ 20224
3A31R12{E A BREMAEER SR ETAR -
BEENTEARRT AR EES R RNE
EREREFEATEERE :

1. the cash flows generated from its operations; 1. HISBSIRERE
2. the expected roll over of revolving bank loan facilities of 2. TEHLBECUERERSBREITENRRE

HK$39.95 million with similar terms and the loan of HK$9.6
million will be paid according to the contractual repayment
schedule; and

3. the availability of new banking facilities and unutilised credit
facilities of the Group.

Based on the cash flow projections and taking into account reasonably
possible downside changes to the cash flow assumptions in the cash
flow projections for the twelve months ending 31 March 2022, the
expected completion of new banking facilities and the continuous
availability of existing banking facilities, the Directors consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due in the coming twelve months from 31 March
2021. Accordingly, the Directors of the Company consider it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment in
insurance contract which has been measured at cash surrender value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

39,950,000 7T LA % 9,600,000 7T
ZEFEBRIEENEFEFRRMN &

3. AEETHRANIRTEE RADA
fEmE -

RIEIR &M ETER RE KRB ZE 20224 3 A 31
HEtZEANBREeREBANNRERE
B EE R TTEE)  BETACHTIRTT
BMERAFENSHEERITHE  EFRA
REBEARMMNEELSMEHEBH202143
A31Bist AR+ @A BN EET -
Bt RRRIEFRARFELCEEERE
FEMBRRESE -

WEHBREDBEEEGAMAG(EE
SR ARG DARB 2 EEFBREER(F
BHBREER ) (B REREEEHER
HHEA - FEEHEN(EESTEND R
2B  BEARGIHRARBBRRGZ
BEAEMER - WEFBHRRDREEL
RAERE - EIRRRESEEFEZRE
BHRERI - BRATHAIN  WEHMH R
RIABT(TEBETD 25 MAESETH
BEREOZTIT

o i AR AR A
2021 F 3

155



156

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

(@)

Amendments to standards effective in the
current accounting period

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

Definition of Material

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and Interest Rate Benchmark

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Reform — Phase 1

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business
Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework

Financial Reporting 2018  for Financial Reporting

The adoption of these amendments to standards does not have
any significant change to the accounting policies or any
significant effect on the results and financial position of the
Group.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

202143H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Early adoption of amendment to standards

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16
“COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions” from 1 April 2020. The
amendment provides an optional practical expedient allowing
lessees to elect not to assess whether a rent concession related
to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees adopting this
election may account for qualifying rent concessions in the same
way as they would if they were not lease modifications. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all
of the following conditions are met:

. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
due on or before 30 June 2022; and
. there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

The early adoption of the amendment does not have any effect
on the results and financial position of the Group.

22 SRR ZEBHREE @

(b)

REHRMER WSS

AEBE H2020F 4 A1 BERF RN
EBPBHREERFE 165 (EFTA) 57
AERRSHEERSRE] - EF]IRMHE
ARAMAITIEE AL - EETAEAR
REERESEEREBHEEBT £
AR BT EITIE - B
HEBERABATZAEREASESRT
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TEBGESRIERT « 4 eEEARER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e o0 Wik (%8)

31 March 2021 20214#3H31H
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c) New standard, amendments to standards and
interpretation not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group
The following new standard, amendments to standards and
interpretation have been published which are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

HKFRS 17

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9

Insurance Contracts®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current®

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use®

Onerous Contract — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform Phase 21"

and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

Annual Improvements Annual Improvement to HKFRSs

2018-2020 Cycle®

Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common

(Revised) Control Combinations®
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
(2020) Statements — Classification

by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause®

M Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

@ Effective date is to be determined

® Effective for business combination for which the acquisition date is

on or after the beginning of the fist accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e 2P Wik (%8)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c) New standard, amendments to standards and

interpretation not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group (Continued)
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new standard, amendments to standards and
interpretation and does not expect that they would have any
significant impact on its results and financial position.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements, which have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated, are set out below:

(@) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31 March.

(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which controls is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group (refer to note
3(b)).

Intra-group balances, transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

202143H31H

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continued)

U]

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 3(n)(iii)).

Joint venture

Investments in joint arrangements are classified either as
joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has rather
than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement
and determined them to be a joint venture. Joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

(i)

Joint venture (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investments in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. For equity
accounting purpose, accounting policies of the joint
ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all

business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments

or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for

the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities

assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The

Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired

entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or

at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the

acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in

the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in

profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021
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202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(©)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 3(n)
(iii)). The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs (see Note 3(j)).

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of

property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets, less

their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line

method over their estimated useful lives at annual rates as

follows:

Land and buildings, Over the lease term
including right-of-use assets

Furniture, fixtures, other 14%-30%

equipment

20%-33%

Over the shorter of lease term
and 10%-20%

Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents buildings and renovation
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and available for intended
use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021
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202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable. Lease payments
to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions. The Group determines the incremental
borrowing rate by using recent third-party financing received with
adjustments specific to the term of the leases.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-

(d)

()

value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an

expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a

lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor

is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease term. The respective leased

assets are included in the consolidated statement of financial

position based on their nature.

Intangible assets

U]

(ii)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 20. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments (note 7).

Goodwill impairment is described in note 3(n)(ii).

Licences

Purchased licences are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

(f)

U]

(ii)

Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognises trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, deposits and borrowings on the
date on which they are originated. All other financial
instruments are recognised on the trade date, which is the
date on which the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability (unless it is trade and
other receivables without a significant financing
component) is measured initially at fair value plus, in the
case of an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs of financial
assets or liabilities carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit
or loss. Trade and other receivables without a significant
financing component are initially measured at transaction
price.

If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade payable and accruals are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or FVTPL. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes
its business model for managing financial assets.
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202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(f)

(ii)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Trade and other receivables, including balances due from
group companies are classified as financial assets at
amortised cost. All other financial assets are classified and
measured at fair values.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") and FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair
values. Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVTPL
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
profit or loss. Trade and other payables, including
balances due to group companies, interest-bearing
borrowings and convertible bonds are classified as
financial liabilities at amortised cost. The Group does not
have financial liability measured at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(f)

(iii)

(iv)

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial
asset. The Group enters into transactions whereby it
transfers assets recognised on its consolidated statement
of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In such
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised
in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under HKFRSs, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the
Group’s trading activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

202143H31H

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on
hand, demand deposits with banks, and short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group.

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises different types of revenue, as follows:

(i) Revenue from the rendering of senior care services and
provision of health care services is recognised when the
services are rendered over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because of customer simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group.

(ii) Revenue from the sale of senior care related goods is
recognised at a point in time when the control of the
goods was transferred to the customers.

The period between the transfer of promised goods and
services to the customers and payments by customers
usually is within one year, as a result, there is no financing
component which requires adjustment of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

If the payments by customers exceed the services rendered, a
contract liability is recognised as receipts in advance on the
consolidated statement of financial position. If the services
rendered exceed the payments by customers and unconditional
rights to contract consideration to date, a contract asset is
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i

0)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,

is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale or complete.
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202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively. Current tax is the
expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. The carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available. Additional
income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the entity
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met: (i) In the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or (i) In the
case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

1) the same taxable entity; or

) different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar. The Company’s functional currency is Hong
Kong dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(m)

Translation of foreign currency (Continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair values are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Related parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

2) has significant influence over the Group; or

()] is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

202143H31H

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Related parties (Continued)

(i)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third parties.

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in ()(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(8)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets

(n)

U]

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for lifetime
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables. For
bank balances, and deposits and other receivables for
which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowances
are measured as 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECLs are the
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are
the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months). In all cases, the maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e 2P Wik (%8)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(n)

U]

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs and presentation of ECLs in the
consolidated statement of financial position

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.

They are measured as follows:

° financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive);

o financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated

future cash flows;

o undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group if the commitment is
drawn down and the cash flows that the Group

expects to receive; and

° financial guarantee contracts: the expected
payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts

that the Group expects to recover.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(n)

U]

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs and presentation of ECLs in the
consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the
loss allowance is charged to profit or loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use
calculation. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(n)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

o right-of-use assets;

. other intangible assets;

o investment in a joint venture; and

o investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

o Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use calculation. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)
o Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

o Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), who are the
executive directors of the Company for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(P)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made.

Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of reporting
period.

(i)  Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as
a liability when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within
12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when they are settled.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

3

202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(r

(iii)

Pension plans
Pension plans are classified into defined benefit and
defined contribution plans.

Pension costs for defined benefit plans are assessed using
the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the
cost of providing pensions is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income so as to spread the regular cost
over the future service lives of employees in accordance
with the advice of the actuaries who carry out a valuation
of the plans. The pension obligation is measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows using
the interest rates determined by reference to market yields
at the end of reporting period based on high quality
corporate bonds with currency and term similar to the
estimated term of benefit obligations. All actuarial gains
and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they
occur, in other comprehensive income.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year incurred.

Pension costs are charged against the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within staff costs.

The pension plans are generally funded by the relevant
group companies by payments from employees for
contributory plans.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value

where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be

received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised

in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with

the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government

grants are deducted in reporting the related expenses, when

appropriate.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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202143H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Investment in insurance contract

The Group invests in a key management insurance contract,
which contain both investment and insurance elements. The life
insurance contracts are initially recognised at the amount of
premium paid, and subsequently measured at each reporting
date at its cash surrender value. Changes to the cash surrender
value at each reporting date will be recognised in profit or loss as
“other income and gains”. In the event of death of the insured
person, the surrender of the policies, or the policies mature, the
investment will be derecognised and any resulting gains/losses
will be recognised in profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the consolidated financial

statements are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group

makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates

and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying

values of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

()

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. For the purpose of performing impairment
assessment, goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units.
The recoverable amount of the cash generating units is the
higher of value-in-use calculations which are based on
discounted future cash flows and fair value less costs of disposal
calculations relating to the cash generating units with reference
to the external valuation performed by a third party property
valuer on the underlying properties of the cash generating units .
The Group is required to make estimates and judgements on
revenue growth rates, discount rates and the fair value of the
underlying properties in determining the recoverable amount of
the cash generating units. Further details are given in note 20 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e o0 Wik (%8)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is an indication that an asset (including the right-of-use
assets) may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the Group
makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the

normal course of the Group’s businesses. The Group’s exposure to

these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices

used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
joint venture, and cash and cash equivalents. Management has a
defined credit policy in place with general credit terms ranging
from O to 30 days in respect of goods and services provided.
The exposure to credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk from
customers receivables as the customers’ bases are widely
dispersed, except for a single external customer which accounts
for approximately 87.4% (2020: 85.4%) of the total trade
receivables.

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables was
determined using the simplified approach based on individual
assessment of each customer. Expected credit loss allowance
was estimated based on the assessment of probability of default,
recovery rate, exposure at default, the historical credit loss
experience, historical payment pattern and adjusted for forward-

looking information on macroeconomic factors.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

202143H31H

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group also assessed the loss allowance on deposits and
other receivables by individual assessment on 12 months’
expected loss basis as there had been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. These assets are continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the counterparties,
taking into account past experiences, forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors and other factors. As at 31 March
2021 and 2020, the loss allowance for deposits and other
receivables was immaterial.

Amount due from a joint venture are in the “Performing” category
with investment grade ratings. This asset is continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the counter party,
taking into account past experiences, forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors and other factors. As at 31 March
2021 and 2020, the expected credit loss rate of amount due
from a joint venture was assessed to be close to zero, the loss
allowance for amount due from a joint venture was immaterial.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly placed with good credit
quality financial institutions so the credit risk is considered to be
low. No loss allowance had been provided under general ECL
assessment. The exposure to credit risks is closely monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group carries out regular review to
minimise exposure to credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of the trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021 20213 H31H
5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 5 B¥EREEREMIANLR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) IERE )
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RENVEEERE

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient EENRBESRRERIEHTITEN
cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of e ﬁﬂ?ﬁiﬂ’\]ﬁﬁ(é‘%{éﬁ REzEE
committed credit facilities and its compliance with lending EEBEELNHEBTER HEN o A
covenants. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance EEREZAEBEFER: Jr§'1a AL
between the continuity of funding and the flexibility through use SIFE T HEEE 2 EAFE - B
of interest bearing borrowings. As disclosed in note 2.1, certain H2APTH T EEEEECE TREMN
measures have been taken by the Directors to mitigate the BB ANEBFMEENREE SR
liquidity pressures faced by the Group. As at 31 March 2021, the 71 R2021F3A31H  AEEE K
Group has available unutilised borrowing facilities of ) A & XA & 4 /12,238,0007% JT
approximately HK$12,238,000 (2020: HK$20,000,000). Details (20204F : 20,000,000/ 7T) ° $RITHE K
of bank borrowings are set out in note 25. The following table FIBEEHNMEE25 « TRIIRANEBHIE
shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s non- TESHEBERNREHRNBT AL
derivative financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period, HIER - TR A RIS RE (B
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows EEREOF RS (EZE)BERE
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates EIR A BN ER R R E A F B30 B

or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting EETEANZNREHESEH -

period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
At 31 March 2021
1202153A31A
Carrying
Total amount in
On demand contractual the statement
or within Between Between Over undiscounted of financial
1year 1and2years 2and5years 5years cash flows position
REREES AHAEE REBRRR
—FR gt —EEf BBRLE HEeRELE THRESH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThERL T T#x TEx FEL FEL
Trade payables EV AN 2,426 - - - 2,426 2,426
Lease liabilties Tﬁ‘*ﬁ & 24,631 20,362 25,072 7,898 77,963 76,080
Other payables and accruals HibER BN EABR 14,640 - - - 14,640 14,640
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ﬁ BRI 80,704 89,887 413,903 57,131 641,625 602,935
122,401 110,249 438,975 65,029 736,654 696,081
186 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(b)

()

Liquidity risk (Continued)

On demand
or within

5

Between

1year  1and2years

FERREERSMIENAR
B

(b)

BB EME)

At 31 March 2020
R202053 1318

Carrying
Total amount in
contractual  the statement

Between Over  undiscounted of financial

2and 5 years 5 years cash flows position

REREER ANAEE  RNEBIRRE

—£R —EZF “ERE BARE FRenELE THRELE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T Tin Titn Titn Titn

Trade payables BHRERFE 2,029 - - - 2,029 2,029
Lease liabilities MEARE 23,238 24,014 36,779 14,674 98,705 91,694
Other payables and accruals HEtENTEREAER 18,340 - - - 18,340 18,340
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T B ER1TE T 416,947 141,060 53,682 5,621 617,310 599,251
460,554 165,074 90,461 20,295 736,384 711,314

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk principally relates to
the Group’s bank loans which are based on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate or the best lending rate. The Group
mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the movements in interest
rates and reviewing its banking facilities regularly. The Group has
not used any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

Apart from the foregoing, the Group has no other significant
income-generating financial assets or interest-bearing financial
liabilities. The Group’s revenue, expenses and cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

(©)

MZRER
REEFANE 2 F R E R T R EAREE
REBRITEERELAZEFERE
SEMIRITERER - ALEEBE Y
YRR RN E B NEMERITRE
AP B o 7 S [ 30 4% {5 PR (AR ) =
2 BRA SR A R @

B LB oh - AR SR B0 M E A EE AR MR
MEASREENTSERERE A%
EEWA - X RBSRERBETR

TSHEEBYE -

o i AR AR A
2021 F

187



188

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

2021%#3H31H
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 5 B¥EREEREMIANLR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B )
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FI=EEPBs &)
Effective interest rates analysis BERRED T
In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing R ANESREERTESREE
financial liabilities, the following table indicates their effective ms @ FTRERNERRERROEER|
interest rates at the end of the reporting period: K
Total Effective interest rate
FLE ] BERFI=
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000 % %
Interest rate risk Fl 2= 2 By FHT FBIT
Floating rates: FENH
Cash at banks FHRRITHER S 27,767 0.00 0.00
Interest-bearing borrowings FHEE® 602,935 599,251 0.90-2.75 2.00-4.05

As at 31 March 2021,
been 25 basis point higher/lower, which was considered

if the interest rates on borrowings had

reasonably possible by the management, with all other variables
held constant, the profit after tax for the year would decrease/
increase by HK$1.3 million (2020: HK$0.5 million) as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2020.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

5

202143H31H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(d)

()

Currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly conducted in Hong Kong.
Therefore, the Group has no significant exposure to foreign
currency risk, and hence the Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the
Company and benefits for other stakeholders of the Group, and
to support the Group’s stability and growth, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholders
return, taking into consideration the future of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or new debt financing. The Group made no changes
to its capital management objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the year. The capital of the Group comprises equity and
borrowings in consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 5
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Capital management (Continued)
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 25) =+ ER1TIE X (Mi3T25)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERREEED
Net debts FEE

Total assets AEMTE

Gearing ratio BAEBELE

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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B

e) BELEE#®)

REERRNEERBLERWT

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FET
602,935 599,251
(49,687) (27,767)
553,248 571,484
927,034 943,378
59.7% 60.6%




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e 2P Wik (%8)

31 March 2021  20214#3H31H
6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6 Yz~ EMERA KRR
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: NEBKZEI DO :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Revenue from contracts with customers EEGHWE
Rendering of senior care services RELERE R REZEERS 206,458 182,962
Sale of senior care related goods HELEREEE R 26,972 23,878
Provision of health care services RHEERERS 12,276 10,523
245,706 217,363
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHRE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) oI E R
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiETT
Timing of revenue recognition: Weas T AR D BRE )
Goods transferred at a point in time BEmRE—REER 26,972 21,878
Services transferred over time PR BE R 82 218,734 195,485
Total revenue from contracts with customers % P & #4821z 245,706 217,363
s LA MR AN

2021 & 3}
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021 20214E3/H31H

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS contived) 6 Wiz5 ~ EUR A R UKES ()
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEESHURE (&)
(i)  Performance obligations i) BEHREE

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Rendering of senior care services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered in which the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group.

Sale of senior care related goods

The performance obligation is satisfied when the Group delivers
the goods to the customers and the control of the goods is
transferred to the customers.

Provision of health care services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered in which the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group.

BFHAASEROEENERRMNT

e EL & REEEEIRY
X E ER R RS ER RETT - B
IR 522 [0 AR W B R £5 P R 5k (1 22 (1L 1 )

S o

E\

HELR AR R R
BAOBREEAREERTF RN EMER
BEEMETIRER TEPEET -

TEH EFIRIZIRTE
BB ER R RIGESER FETT - B
By 22 P [0 B W BB £58 P R SR [ B2 (1 O

Vg

S o

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining M3A3H PEEF#ELHET (K

performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied (excluding those related to the contracts with an
original expected duration of one year or less) as at 31 March are
as follows:

BHISEBDRELN) XS ERS BRI
T ERERERHAMAS —FHIAT
BB AERE)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
Amounts expected to be recognised BHEERAARELERE R
as revenue of rendering of senior RERBRBBEN SR -
care services:

Within one year —FR 110,687 105,417
After one year — & 110,688 210,835
221,375 316,252

As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
those unsatisfied contracts which have an original expected
duration of one year or less is not disclosed.

MEBPEREEREASRAAFT
AEBRBESE=REHABME R —F A
THRBEHNGHNR S TR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (contived) 6 Wz ~ MU KU (2)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EREHNE#E)

(i)  Performance obligations (Continued) iy BHNEEE)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining FEEAB A — F 1R R AWE 2 DB E T
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised as HENETNRFERCRETERE
revenue after one year related to senior care services, of which EEREEEREER  HEBELHSEER
the performance obligations are to be satisfied within three years. =EXNET DR EFBREHETFNA
All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to the BEMXZ ZERESEEREN —FRE
remaining performance obligations are expected to be RERT WEZSHEIABFEANER
recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed B -

above do not include variable consideration.

Other income and gains Hg A R &=
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
Other income Hiug A
Bank interest income SRITFBUA 1 1
Rental income e WA 358 389
359 390
Gains Y=
Change in cash surrender value of REBEEARRRIESEEEE
insurance contract 118 60
Others HAith - 26
118 86
477 476
s LA MR AN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

7

202143H31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the provision of senior care services. Since
this is the only operating segment of the Group, no further operating
segment analysis thereof is presented.

The Group’s revenue was derived primarily from its operations in Hong
Kong during the year and the non-current assets of the Group were
mainly located in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of HK$109,747,000 (2020: HK$100,152,000) was derived
from the Hong Kong Government under the Enhanced Bought Place
Scheme of HK$107,915,000 (2020: HK$100,152,000), and the
provision of care support services and necessities to persons in
decanting centre of HK$1,832,000 (2020: Nil), which amounted to more
than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

8

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of goods and consumables sold

Depreciation on owned assets
Depreciation on right-of-use assets — land
Depreciation on right-of-use

assets — buildings

Amortisation
Less: Amount capitalised

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit service
— Non-audit service

Staff costs:
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions
Provision for long service payments
Directors’ remuneration

Net of:
Government grants®

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Change in cash surrender value of
insurance contract

BEEEMMBRERKA

BEEENE
EREEE — THME
EREEE — BFONE

B
o BEAMEE R

T B8 5 B
— Bk
— JEERR

BITRA
TERHS
BIREFTEIHR
RHRTE N SR B R
EEHH

AR -
BB

TRAHERENEN
HERR

RRAEHHERR S
EEE

# Various government grants have been received for the welfare of the
elderly in the Group’s elderly home care centres and Employment Support
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund. There are no unfulfiled conditions

or contingencies relating to these grants.

BRI AIEF
REEEBR T AT mﬁ?’F‘JTJ,@?D B/ GGEA) AT &
THBER -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
17,126 15,195
15,285 8,449
18,644 18,644
22,912 21,729
56,841 48,822
3,092 3,093
= (15,133)
59,933 36,782
1,150 1,390
334 330
110,871 104,049
4,147 3,667
400 1,444
1,082 1,588
116,500 110,748
(28,172) (11,224)
88,328 99,524
= 241
(118) (60)

¢ EAEErERE RERN R RVEE
& [RBEZE FTBIURZ IRIRATH ) © 5
EAMZSHBNAN G RRAEE -

A A M A R 2 ]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

9

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the
year of assessment 2019/2020. The first HK$2,000,000 (2020:
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25%
and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

Current — Hong Kong BIER — &H
Charge for the year FAFRZ
Underprovision in prior years BAFEREBETR
Deferred (note 29) IRAE (F7E29)
Total tax charge for the year FABIERZ B

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Frig®i
EBFNSHEERFARBBEL 2 HrTER
it A LA 16.5% (2020 4F © 16.5%) K Bt R &f
REE HAEE-—HEHBRRRIN  ZQ
T A A B IE AR 2019/2020 5% 4 F & £ %
MASHMERHINEE  ZMNBARE
2,000,0003% 7£ (2020 4 : 2,000,000 7T ) &
JERF R F128.25% M KT - R T ERR
i 38 I BIl3% 16.5% B Bt R 40 FH -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
8,384 5214

77 40
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

9

202143H31H

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the

statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority

of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax

rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate to the effective tax

rates, are as follows:

Profit before taxation
Share of loss of a joint venture

Tax at the applicable tax rates

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax loss not recognised

Tax loss utilised from previous
periods

Adjustments in respect of current
tax of previous period

Tax effect of two-tiered profits
tax regime

Tax reduction

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate

B A A
DME—HaEEBE

AR R E IR
BERTIA
ORISR
REERZBIFEE
BESRZEBARBER

BT 2 BIAAM IR

(FEE
NSRRI 2 R E
e

BAREEERTEFER
WIAR

9 FE#H»)
BAD T REAZD U B R TR R A
SRS AR T R R EE A R B BLAT R A
BIERY  RREEH R EORIERLY
B ROEFAR R ST R R Y ER W
—F :
2021 2020
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
T T
10,682 17,122
15,838 323
26,520 17,445
3,935 14.8 2,878 16.5
(2,775) (10.5) (10) 0.1)
5,215 19.7 1,438 8.2
1,334 5.0 - 0.0
- 0.0 (295) (1.7)
77 0.3 40 0.2
(165) (0.6) (165) 0.9
(153) (0.6) (840) (1.9
7,468 28.2 3,546 20.3

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of HK$1,334,000
(2020: nil) in respect of losses amounting to HK$5,410,000 (2020: nil)
to carry forward against future taxable income due to uncertainty in
utilising the unused tax losses, of which, HK$5,191,000 (2020: nil) will
expire up to and including 2026 (2020: N/A).

HNMERARBARBEROTHET T A%
& 3 £ 3£ 1,334,000 7T (2020 4F + =) M /&S
BRERELEREEE - HF5191,000% 7T
(2020%F : T)BREZE2026F (BIEE F)
(20204 : “TNE ) BAFIEIE] -

A A M A R 2 ]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10 EERFEITHAEH N
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed RIE EHRE - FEDQAEHE383(1)@a)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the b)) OEOHERAR(HEESFEZER) B
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies PIZEoEBIHETE 2 FNES N FE 2T A BHH
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as nr
follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHETT
Fees e 344 481
Other emoluments: HAibBi & -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREMERN 720 1,074
Pension scheme contributions BRIREBFHEIE 18 33
856 1,107
1,082 1,688
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BUIEHITES
The fees and pension scheme contributions paid to independent FRLAFIBLIFAITEENES LR
non-executive directors during the year were as follows: REtEEZIMT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang® BEERE: 44 84
Dr. Wong Ping San John# | 44 80
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing® BEKIELe 44 84
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony® R it 80 2
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai" MEFEE" 36 _
Mr. Wong Kam Pui HigmEE" 36 _
Mr. Wong Kit Loong" mORE A" 36 _
320 250
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FABEEN TE L IENTESHEA
non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil). M (2020 + &) »

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10 EERFETBAEHM @
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and b) HITES FHTEERTE
the chief executive 1ITHAE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e 2ER ERE
e BYEF ST et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET FET
2021 2021 4
Executive directors: WiTES :
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing® SRR LS = = = -
Mr. Chan Yip Keung® PREEsR A - 720 18 738
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing® BRI ES - - = =
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching® EPAE IS A S - = = =
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei* B 24 = = 24
24 720 18 762
Non-executive directors: EMITES :
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong® R LS - = = -

Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert® & {# 1% Jg 4= ¢ = - - _

24 720 18 762

P O S A 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e o0 Wik (%8)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10

REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and
the chief executive (Continued)

2020

Executive directors:
Mr. Yim Ting Kwok®
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei*
Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin®
Mr. Chan Yip Keung
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing®
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing®
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching®

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex®
Mr. Lam Yat Hon®
Mr. Tang Yiu Pong®
Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert®

EERFETHAEHFMH @
(b) HITEE  FHTESERFE
THAB#)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
e RMK BIRE
we EYEF| FEGE “Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
20204
HITES
BREBI AL 48 - - 48
BUME S E 48 162 2 212
BOE A 48 - 2 50
PR 258 5L 4 - 720 18 738
BB S - - - -
BREF &S - - - -
BB S S - - - -
144 882 22 1,048
EHITEE :
REEEEC 48 192 240
MiRELE 48 - 50
BRI A S - - - -
EHEEEES - - - -
96 192 2 290
240 1,074 24 1,338

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive directors and
the chief executive (Continued)

# Mr. Chan Yip Keung was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company with effect from 19 October 2020.

* Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei is the former chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Yim resigned as director and the chief executive
officer of the Company with effect from 19 October 2020.

@ Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin, Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex
and Mr. Lam Yat Hon resigned as directors of the Company with
effect from 23 March 2020.

$ Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, Mr. Yeung Ka
Wing, Mr. Cheng Wai Ching, Dr. Tang Yiu Pong and Mr. Wong Kin
Chun Gilbert were appointed as directors of the Company with
effect from 23 March 2020.

Mr. Lam Cheung Wai, Mr. Wong Kam Pui and Mr. Wong Kit Loong
were appointed as directors of the Company with effect from 19
October 2020.

& Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert, Mr. Liu Kwong Sang, Dr. Wong Ping
San John, Dr. Liu Yuk Shing, resigned as directors of the Company
with effect from 19 October 2020.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

10 EERFETHRAEHFMN =)

(b)

HITES  FHTEERTE
THAE #®)

# PR 508 55 4 B 2020410 A 19 A #E
AR ARTIREE -

* BB RS EBARRARIITBE - B
A B 2020910 A 19 AR BT AR
AIEERITREH -

e BEBRLLE BHEEE REEL
4 R IRIE S B 2020 3 A 23 H
REHIAARIES -

B PR s - BREKE  BREL
£ EBEEAE - BB RERE
&% £ B 20203 A23 A iR ER T
BARRES -

" MEE AL B AERTHER
4 H2020F 10 19 A REZ T AR
NAESE -

& Hi@eik  BEESRE  BETILE
4 BEKIETH2020F10 A19H
RERBTIAARES -

FR TEEEHTETHRASHER
R B B AT BN 0 2 BF -

o i AR AR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

11

20219F3H31H
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11 hEEeFHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year include one director FANRELESTMEEBIE—REE (2020
(2020: one director), details of whose remuneration are set out in note F:—REFR) HFEMNFBH R LXK
10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the non-director, 10-ERXN - IFEENTZTMEE NI L
highest paid employees are as follows: BT ¢
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUREVET 3,300 3,279
Pension scheme contributions RIKSEHEIfR 72 72
3,372 3,351
The number of the non-director, highest paid employees whose FMBRATISEZIFEETSaHEE AR
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: R
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 %7 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T = 1,500,000 7% 7T 1
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or any of the non-director, highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office nor

has any director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

12 FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITERFE
Interest elements of lease payments HENROFEHD
Total interest expense FlEFZ e
Less: Interest capitalised B BERMEFE

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$5,860,000 (2020: HK$13,584,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 902,880,000 (2020: 902,880,000)
in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 as the Group
had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during these years.

12 BFFERAR
BHSH AT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT
12,150 19,322
2,393 2,650
14,543 21,972
- (17,208)
14,543 4,764

13 ARAEEREFAEARGER

=]

FREARNSEIRART]

BRESTEA

EhFE R %IJ5,860,000,% 7 (2020 4F :
13,584,00078 70 ) K F W E 87735 8 I hn ik F
5#7902,880,0000% (20204 : 902,880,000/%)

| s
=TEH o
al 7+

M 7R 5= @ A E £ 2021 FF K% 20204 3 A 31
BItEEYEDETEEHES LR - HIF
EHAMEYNERERBFSEIEHAR -

A A M A R 2 ]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2021 021E3531R
At 1 April 2020: RONELR18:
Cost A

Accumulated depreciation ~ EHTE

Net carying amount EETE
Additions RE
Depreciation provided FNATERE

during the year
Transfer 8
Exchange realignment EREE

At31 March 2021, netof 2021534318 -
acoumulated depreciaton  JIBRZ5HTE

At 31 March 2021; RONEIAINE:
Cost s
Accumulated depreciation ~ B51H7E

Net carying amount HETE

14 Y% - RERZ®
Right-of-use asset Owned asset
fEREEE HE&E
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and other Motor ~ Construction

Land Buildings Sub-total Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Sub-total Total

fih - 2R
1# | £ gt BF HELE AR fE ERIE it st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TEn TEn TEn TR TEn TEn TER

(note 1) (note 15)
(&£ 15) (W& 15)

598,810 105,734 704,544 148,968 87,149 48,021 667 19,331 304,136 1,008,680
(76,530) (21,729) (98,259) (1,370) (51,124) (38,328) (321) - (91,143) (189,402)
522,280 84,005 606,285 147,508 36,025 9,693 346 19,331 212,993 819,278
- 409 409 - 16 25 1,290 5,209 6,870 7,219
(18,644) (22912) (41,556) (4,99) (8,164) (1,745) (380) - (15,285) (56,841)
- - 5 - 19,331 - = (19,331) - -
- 1,595 1,595 - 1,352 - - - 1,352 2941
503,636 63,007 566,733 142,602 48,560 8213 1,256 5,209 205,930 712,663
598,810 107,738 706,548 148,968 107,848 48,286 1,957 5,208 312,358 1,018,906
(95,174) (44,641) (139,815) (6,366) (59,288) (40,073) (101) - (106,428) (246,243)
503,636 63,007 566,733 142,602 48,560 8,213 1,256 5,209 205,930 712,663

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021

202143H31H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14 M2 - BWERRE @)

31 March 2020

At 1 April 2019:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 31 March 2019, et of
accumulated depreciation

Effect of adoption of
HKFRS 16

At 1 April 2019 (restated)

Adattions

Depreciation provided during
the year

Transfer

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2020:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s land and buildings with a total carrying
amount of HK$633,969,000 (2020: HK$657,133,000) was pledged to

0E3A31A

R19F4A18:
e
EithE

FESE

Ra019%3A318 -
NRgiE

RivEEEBRE
ElZ65HTL

RA0E3A3E
ARZTE

R00E3A318
s
EithE

FESE

Right-of-use asset QOwned asset
RRELE REEE
Fumiture,
fixtures
Leasehold and other Motor ~ Construction

Land Buildings Sub-total Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Sub-total Total

i $ER
1 G4 gt BT HERE LU RE ERIR 5t a5t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TERL TERL TERL TERL TEn TER TERL TER TER TERL

(note 15) [note 15)
(it 15) (Rt 1s)

- - - 251,112 85,743 47844 667 86,672 472,038 472,038
- - - (68,142) (45,826) (36.462) (189 - (140618 (140,618)
- - - 192,970 30917 11,382 479 86,672 331420 331420
- - - 192,970 39,917 11,382 419 86,672 331,420 331,420
540,924 105,117 646,041 (164,177) - - - - (164,177) 481,864
540,924 105,117 646,041 28,7193 39917 11,382 479 86,672 167,243 813,284
- 2,209 2,209 o 1,406 177 - 53,690 55,273 57,482
(18,644) (21,729 (40373 (1,152) (5,298) (1,866) (133 - (8449 (48,822)
- - - 119,957 - - - (119,957) - -
- (159) (159) - - - - (1,074) (1,074) (2,666)
522,280 84,005 606,285 147,598 36,025 9,693 346 19,331 212,993 819278
598,810 105,734 704,544 148,968 87,149 48,021 667 19,331 304,136 1,008,680
(76,530) (21,729 (98,259) (1,370) (o1,124) (38,328 (321) - (91,143 (189,402)
522,280 84,005 606,28 147,598 36,025 9,693 346 19,331 212,993 819278

secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 25(b)).

B —RERTTIEE (52 25(0)) ©

A A M A R 2 ]

2021 & 3}

R2021F3A31H A BEEMBEAS
633,969,000/ 7T (20204F : 657,133,000/ 7T)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e o0 Wik (%8)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

15 LEASES 15

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and buildings
used in its operations. Leases of land and buildings generally have lease
terms between two and fifty-five years, except for some with lease
terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets, including buildings, outside the Group. Extension and
termination options are included in a number of building leases across
the Group. The majority of extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

(@) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April 2020 7R 2020%F 4 A1 BMEREE
New leases WHEE
Interest elements of lease payments HERREF S F 5
Payments (E
Exchange realignment bE 5 A #
Carrying amount at 31 March 2021 720214 3 A 31 HWIEAE
Analysed into: DR

Current portion BERER 5>

Non-current portion JEBNERES S

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 5(b) to
the financial statements.

206 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

HE

REBEREBEA
FEBEREEBLEEMAZZEALHEET
FEHAHEAN - THREFHHEHER—
BNF_E2R+HF HEHEHR12EARK
AT R/ SEBREEsETHERIN - —
gmE  AERETAAREEAIIALES
EAEHEEE(BEET) AEEZEE
FHESREARKLERE - FHOKR
DIEM T & DR R E T A AEE (IS H
HA)ITHE -

() HEEE
HEAENRRERFNEZSHNT

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
91,694 110,312
409 2,209
2,393 2,650
(20,513) (21,674)
2,097 (1,803)
76,080 91,694
25,837 20,877
50,243 70,817

HEBBENRES T B IRR MR
5() #FE ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

15 LEASES (Continued)

16

15 #HE @)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEAFEMBAA (&)
(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (b) REZRNBIEBEEENSELOT :
are as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Interest elements of lease payments HENFHFEEHD
(included in finance costs) (Gt ARERKA) 2,393 2,650
Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets ~ FAEEEHTESH 41,556 40,373
Less: Amount capitalised D= W N k= - (15,873)
Expense relating to short-term leases with HTHEEHMNIA31 A
remaining lease terms ended on or ZBIERE G BT E AR X
before 31 March = 241
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBERERM AR 43,949 27,391

The total cash outflow for leases in the year is HK$20,513,000

(2020: HK$21,915,000).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2020, net of accumulated amortisation
Amortisation provided during the year

At 31 March 2021:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

FREEMNE SR T EEE A 20,513,000

7T (20204 : 21,915,000 7T) °

16 EEEE

Cost at 31 March 2021, net of accumulated amortisation 7220213 A 31 B#IA AN - 3k 2Ty

Licences
i
HK$°000
FHxT
2021 %53H31H
M20204E3 A31 HX%2020F4 18 :
RN 15,464
ZETHEH (9,279)
BRTEFE 6,185
20204 4 A1 HARKA « Bk RET#E 6,185
FRE R (3,092)
3,093
R2021F3A318 :
PR 15,464
RETHEH (12,371)
BRTEFE 3,093
s LA MR AN

2021 F
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31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2019, net of accumulated amortisation
Amortisation provided during the year

Cost at 31 March 2020, net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 March 2020:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

16 EFREEE®)

20203 A31H

R20194E3 A31 B KR2019F4 A1 8 :
B AR
Rty
BREFE

R2019F 4 A1 BRI » 0Bk 2FH#H
F R

R20204F 3 A 31 HMRCA « 0Bk 25T# 5
MR2020E3A31 8 :

BRAR

REtiEH

AREHE

Licences
he R
HK$'000
FET

15,464
(6,186)

9,278

9,278
(3,093)

6,185

15,464
9,279)

6,185



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE/DUE FROM

A JOINT VENTURE

17 R—HEE&
S EIIE

pos

LhERE RN/

(@ Investment in a joint venture (@ M—EBEEERE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Cost of investment in a joint venture R—REaELERERAR 21,726 21,726
Share of losses AhEE (16,161) (323)
5,565 21,403
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: REFSLOXEHBUOT :
Particulars Place of Percentage
of issued registration Nature of Measurement  Ownership of Voting Profit  Principal
Company name shares held and business  relationship ~ method interest power sharing  activities
=2l TR RER
ARER ERTRGFE XM BEEE SRR BERER ER AMERR  FEER
Patina Wellness Limited HK$42,600,000 Hong Kong Jointventure  Equity method 51% 50% 51%  Investment
holding
HREEARAT 426000008  BE aELE BRA REER

The above investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by the

Company.

Summarised statement of financial position

Assets EE
Non-current assets SEmMBIAE
Current assets MENEE
Total assets BEE
Liabilities =N
Current liabilities UEN=E
Total liabilities waiE

Net assets EEFE

iR —REZEEEREMARAME

BE -
AR REE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
257,378 285,909
11,939 3,095
269,317 289,004
(92,993) (62,613)
(258,405) (247,037)
10,912 41,067
mEEEEAE R LA

2021 F



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE/DUE FROM

202143H31H

A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

17 A—REELERE EHR—
SEMERE )

(@) Investment in a joint venture (Continued) (a)

Reconciliations of the summarised financial information presented

to the carrying amounts of the investment in the joint venture are

as follows:

Net assets at beginning of the year FEEFE

Loss for the year FEFHE

Net assets at end of the year FRNWEEFE

Shared by the Group AEB DL

Interests in a joint venture REEDENER

Summarised statements of comprehensive income

Loss before taxation Sl !

Taxation I8

Loss and total comprehensive FEEBENEEERERE
loss for the year

Share by the Group of loss and AEESHFEBEREER
total comprehensive loss for the year Ei84asa

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the

financial statements of the joint venture, adjusted for differences

in accounting policies between the Group and the joint venture.

210 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R—RBEELERE @)

REJMBEANRERAREGELERE

FEHSRENERIT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT TET
41,967 42,600
(31,055) (633)
10,912 41,967
51% 51%
5,565 21,408
FEWBERBE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
(31,055) (633)
(31,055) (633)
(15,838) (323)

BEHRBREEEETBEREMET
MEEE - U AEEEASDET
B BRERELHBPE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE/DUE FROM 17 R—RBIa& ¥R E R —[
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) EENEFE®
(b) Due from a joint venture (b) EREELERIE
The amount due from a joint venture of HK$21,976,000 (2020: AAREEBREEENRER—HE2D
HK$8,921,000) included in the Group’s current assets is FXIE 21,976,000/ 7T (2020 4F : 8,921,000
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The financial BT AE - B NERENRER
HZ= 2021 F 520203 A31 HILFE -
RIEE BT R EERF O - B —MA

o

impact of expected credit losses on the amount due from a joint
venture under HKFRS 9 is insignificant for the years ended 31

March 2021 and 2020. AERRFANTEHREEEBNTHTE
WAREK -
18 TRADE RECEIVABLES 18 B ZEWFIE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHRT FHT
Trade receivables Z 2 ENGRIE 6,708 5,521

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the NIMEER B EWRFTIEREZ[ LR

BERBENREOTIT

reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Within one month —@ARA 3,062 2,792
One to two months —ZMEA 2,770 2,337
Two to three months ME=MEA 266 290
Over three months BB =1EA 610 102
6,708 5,521

The financial impact of expected credit losses for trade receivables
under HKFRS 9 is insignificant for the years ended 31 March 2021 and

HZE2021F K 2020F3 A31HILFE - &8
ISR ERE oS B 5 BB HIE

2020. EEBNYBZELTEKX
The carrying amounts of trade receivables are mainly denominated in B REWFENERAEEIENETTE &
HK$ and approximately their fair value. HARBEREE -

o i AR AR A 211
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2021 20214¥3H31H

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments (Note) T FRIE ()

Deposits b

Other receivables H fth FE U R IE

Current portion included in prepayments, BNERER 5 (FH ATERTZRIE
other receivables and other assets H A EBRIA R =M B E)

Non-current portion FERNERER 5>

Note:

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$5,813,000 (2020: nil)
prepaid for an acquisition of an equity investment.

The financial impact of expected credit losses on financial assets
included in the above balances is insignificant for the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020.

Financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for
which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts. As
at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables are mainly
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NI - RERAMERRIA

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
10,045 1,232
11,774 8,062
981 454
22,800 9,738
(15,901) (2,930)
6,899 6,808

BT -

EHREE-BERBREKEFENEMRELY
5,813,000 7T (20204 « &) ©

HZE 2021 F % 2020F3 A31 HILFE » 5t A
PRGNS REENBREEBENITE
FELTEK -

bl AR FT L B A B NP 4 HRIE A9 R0 8%
RERFIE R EBRIERR - R2021F Kk
2020 3 A31H ' BEBRBELTEAKRE -

Be REMERZORMREEE AT
B BEARERE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

31 March 2021  20214#3H31H
20 GOODWILL 20 HE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost BN 33,833 33,833
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE = -
Net carrying amount BREFE 33,833 33,833
Impairment testing of goodwill [EENEAERE

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
business combinations is allocated to the cash-generating unit of senior
care services operated by Gericare Centre and Ruby International with
a carrying amount of goodwill of HK$31,300,000 and to the cash-
generating unit of senior care services operated by Hinta Enterprises
with a carrying amount of goodwill of HK$2,533,000 as at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of Gericare Centre
and Ruby International has been determined based on a fair value less
cost of disposal calculation whereas, the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit of Hinta Enterprises has been determined based
on value-in-use calculation covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections of the cash-generating unit in the value-in-use
calculation of Hinta Enterprises is 11.7% (2020: 12.6%).

The cash flows of the cash-generating unit of Hinta Enterprises are
projected using revenue growth rate of 3.0% (2020: 3.0%), during the
five-year period. The cash flows of the cash-generating unit beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 1.8% (2020:
1.8%).

BURERISE M S 7202143 A 31 B %2020
F3A31B  BREKEHAESZAED
EEREZEEPLRABLBBAMGEELTE
b g Ko B IR AR 7% g B AR E 18 /231,300,000
BILMIREEESEM - UWRBRDEATLEE
ZEReLREREEEREBEREEA
2,533,000 LIRS EA B - LUEITRE
BRI -

REEZRLRABABEBEMNESEEEM
WA E SR IRE AR BRI ERAFTE
EFE - MBRPEMNRSELBMAAIKE
SRENBESREEEHENAFHERE
BETEET - LA 8B ADENFEREER
ReELBNMNRSREBUMRABHTA
BhIRER A511.7% (2020 4F : 12.6%) °

REFHE BRACENRSELEBEMMNE
£ R B A 3.0% (20204 : 3.0%) Ky YL x5 18
REEA - BeELSBNRAFHEEOHE
LR E THE F1.8% (20204 : 1.8%) 11 &
REH -

o i AR AR A
2021 F 3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 March 2021

20

2021%#3H31H
GOODWILL (continued) 20 BHEwW)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) EERERI ()
Up to the date of this report there were no reasonably possible changes BHEARERY  FlFRIFrEREEES
in any of the key assumptions mentioned above that would have BRALEE WP BALENREESEMND
caused the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of Hinta YRS EENEEEE -
Enterprises to be less than its carrying value.
For the cash-generating unit of Gericare Centre and Ruby International, MREEEZDPODRABSABRBENIRESELSE
the management has determined the recoverable amount of the cash- uUms EEECLEMEBITARAGM
generating unit based on the fair value less cost of disposal calculation BEELSBEMMEEYERLNINBEER
relating to the cash-generating unit with reference to the external S REBERSEABNOAALERLEKAK
valuation report issued by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited on the underlying HEETIRSELBMNAN IO SEE -
properties of the cash-generating unit.
Detailed parameters of the underlying properties in the cash-generating REEZRLDRAESELBEBHESELASEMND
unit of Gericare Centre and Ruby International are as follows: HEAMENFA2ENOT ¢
2021
Fair value of Relationship of
the underlying Valuation Unobservable unobservable
properties Techniques inputs inputs to fair value
HEY%EZ FHBE FUBEEHARE
ARE [ERKDS WMABE HAALEWBER
HK$’000 Unit price
FET BuERK
Gericare Centre and REEZDP LR 327,400 Direct HK$12,500 psfto  The higher the unit
Ruby International A8 A B comparison HK$38,800 psf price, the higher
— Residential care — RERE HELR HBFHR the fair value
home for the elderly 12,5008t BENUEEES -
EBF¥YAIR 2ALEHES
38,800 /& T

Based on management’s assessment, the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units exceeded the respective carrying amounts.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

21

22

INVESTMENT IN INSURANCE CONTRACT

21 MMREBENHRE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Insurance asset REREE
At 1 April R4A1H 3,143 3,083
Change in cash surrender value of REEHMERRRSEEED

insurance contract 118 60
At 31 March MR3HA31H 3,261 3,143

Notes: BiRE -

(a) The Group entered into a life insurance policy with an insurance company
to insure an executive director. Under the policy, the Group is the
beneficiary and the policy holder. The carrying value of the life insurance
contract represented the cash surrender value of the insurance contract.
This insurance contract is denominated in United States Dollars.

(b) The Group’s investment in insurance contract with a carrying amount of
HK$3,261,000 (2020: HK$3,143,000) was pledged as security for the
Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2021, as further detailed in note 25(c)
to the financial statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHER

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are mainly
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value.

@  AEBEE-FRBRAFTIFRRE - MR
B—EZHMTEFR - RIBEZRE  FEEARR
BAFREFEA - ASRREHVWETE
ERRENNERRESER - ZRREHN
XEatE ©

(0) MR20214F3A31H K& B k@ E A
3,261,000 7T (2020 4 : 3,143,000/ 7T ) £9
RBENREEEBIEAREBRITERD
BR - E—SFBREHR M RERMEE25 () °

22 BERBESEEY

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR TET
49,687 27,767

FRAIRITORSRE BRITERMEEF
B RBMEF R - |RITEBRFRREER T
BT BB KRR SR ERTT o

RekReEBYNEEETENETE
WERERERE

o i AR AR A 215
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e o0 Wik (%8)

23

24

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within one month

—EAR

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have

payment terms of 30 days.

The carrying amounts of trade payables are mainly denominated in HK$

and approximate their fair value.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables
Accruals

Contract liabilities (note)
Long service payment

Portion classified as current liabilities

Non-current portion

EAf R 5 R0
fERt &8
BHEE )
KRB

FERBE D

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have average payment

terms of one to three months.

The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals are mainly

denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value.

Note: Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance as
at beginning of the year is HK$637,000 (2020:Nil).

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

23 EFEMNRE

RI|ERR - BHRNFRREZAMHE

BVERIR DMTIAT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT TET
2,426 2,029

BHENKEBETFHHNE - AR —REB30

H e

IHARERE -

24 HMEAREREFTEN

BHRENFENREETZETTAE I
N

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
3HA31H 3H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
7,716 8,329
6,924 10,011
952 637
5,444 5,044
21,036 24,021
(15,592) (18,977)
5,444 5,044

Hip BN AE  FONFRR—=

=@A -

Hih BN SRR EFERNREET 28

JLEHE - WEHEDAERE

M st AFHNANARERNERARER

637,000 7T (2020 4F : &) ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

25 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25 FTEBITERK
2021 2020
Effective Effective
interest ~ On demand/ interest On demand/
rate (%) maturity HK$°000 rate (%) maturity HK$'000
BRER/ BBk
BRFIE (%) EJ)- TEr  BBRAE%) El TR
Current e
Bank borrowings — secured  $R{T{E % — HHEH 0.9-2.75 2021 84,648 2.00-4.05 2020 408,574
Non-current FEnE
Bank borrowings — secured SR{T{ER — HiLHE 0.9-2.75 2022-2036 518,287 2.00-3.80 2021-2035 190,677
602,935 599,251
Notes: BieE -
(@) The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. (@) AEERIBITERABITEHE °
(b) The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a mortgage over certain of (b) 7N 2 @ #Y 5R 17 1 3R DA BR T 48 fE 1 2021 &
the Group’s land and buildings, which had an aggregate carrying amount 3A318 4% /633,969,000 JT (20204 :
as at 31 March 2021 of approximately HK$633,969,000 (2020: 657,133,000 7T) 2 AN EEE T Lt RIEF
HK$657,133,000) (note 14). PEHRAR (BIFE14) ©
(€ Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a pledge over the () AEBEMETRTERARBER2021F3
Group’s investment in insurance contract with a carrying amount as at 31 HA31H 43,261,000/ 7T (20204 : 3,143,000
March 2021 of HK$3,261,000 (2020: HK$3,143,000) (note 21). BIL) 2 NEBRB A NIRE EER (T
21) ©
(d) Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are jointly guaranteed by certain (d) AREBHETRITERBARBBE TH B
subsidiaries of the Company. AR FEEELR -
B E 2 R A R A 217
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

25

26

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(e) The amounts payable of the bank borrowings are analysed as follows:

Bank borrowings:
Within one year or on demand
In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive
Beyond five years

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:
902,880,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

RITER
—FAFIRERER
FEF
E=ZRF(REEEMRT)
BBRF

26

JEIE ¢
5,000,000,000 f& & AR EH &
0.01 BT EA

2ETRER
902,880,000 iz & Ax HI B
0.01 BT & iBAR

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

current and prior years.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

sTERITER )

Bt - ()
(€) RITEREOERRBADITT
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$000
TET THET
84,648 408,574
143,200 138,244
372,539 48,373
2,548 4,060
602,935 599,251
€N
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
50,000 50,000
9,029 9,029
ARBBRARAFEFRBEFELEES o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

27

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of motivating eligible participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with such eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the directors, including independent non-executive directors, executives
or officers of the Group, full-time or part-time employees of the Group,
and advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such
other persons who, in the sole opinion of the directors, will contribute or
have contributed to the Group. The Scheme became effective on 23
January 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue of the Company immediately following
completion of the Company’s initial public offering, i.e. 86,400,000
shares. The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under the share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

27

BT a8l
ARRRABRETE(TRE])) EEXD
AERZEE[AEBNGRETEARRER
ME - BARSI REEREIEER/AEE
RERRIFHEMNZEAER2HEE LN
Hph NERERFIHENEBBE - 513
MEER2RESEES (BEBYIFNTE
=) AEETBRARKSARE - AEEZ
BokBEERER BHRA HE® F
B nHERhES2RRARBEREHAE
EFEHEMOEREMAL - FEIB2017F
1ABRBAERN  BRIERTTHHEHET &
ABE RREEFERTF -

R IR AT B AT 8L 5 B a0 FE IR AE AT o8 R M9 AR 19
BERAXTSBAZBEAR G XAHE
ERNENERAB D EITRMAER10%
186,400,000 f& % 153 o B 1T AR R 5T &1 5% H
B RITE 2 FTARITEREARE M AT 8 T LA
BITHRMNEE LRTEBBARARTRE
BTN EI30% I+ —EAHR - 1R
B BINBRIET RSN E BB EEHET
WRMHE R ERANIREE BARAR B 8T
BRADEI1% o (E IR 1t 1% LR A REARIE R
EHRE - BRBRERSEREAE -

MEE - ARFAE2THRABREERRK
HOEMBEARDERE BBELELBLIE
MITESHME - I BEEMAARRTE
BRFBIIFRITEELHEMBEARLH
BB - NEM T AR BHANEBBARA
IREHTRON0I%XEAEBEIZELE
BALRBMNERAE) SNoBESEEL A
R E E BRI

RARAZINE BT ZRBARER - &K
HERENZOATRNERE2E AE21AR
EWe RHNBRETEHAESET I
RETHBHEMAR ERERNBREEY
BHEA +HEZBEm

o i AR AR A
2021 F 3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors, but
must be at least the highest of () the Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, no options
have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

28 RESERVES 28
(@ Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(b) Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the
reorganisation of the Group in the prior years.

29 DEFERRED TAX 29

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE BB R ERH
consolidated statement of financial position BEERIAE E
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE AR R IERA
consolidated statement of financial position BLEHIEAE
220 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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BRETE
EEAMTERETER  EETRERT
BB EENARARMRERESH A
BT ()RR TRGREEEHA
B FTRAER 5 A 2 BB Mg ¢ R i)
A A FRRAP RO EE o

PR B IR T A AR R B SN R
RE LIRRAOFER -

MNZEWBREEM B - HEE KBS
VASRIR A fo] BB A o

Ei]

(@ A&H
AEBREARBEFENHEESER
HEHRUBMERNGEEEREERF

ES 7K

(b) EOHEME
ADHEERTE A R BB T BMAR A

2 -
IR

A28 ) ) R SRR £ AR A8 4 P 48
BiEE -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
6,222 6,200
(13,240) (14,211)
(7,018) (8,011)




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P v (480)

29 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

30

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are

as follows:

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019

Deferred tax credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

Deferred tax credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year

At 31 March 2021

DIVIDEND

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 &, E 202043 A31 HIFEE

of HK0.68 cents (2019: HKO.78 cents) per fully

paid ordinary share

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 & ZE 202143 A31 BIFFEE >

of nil (2020: HK0.78 cents) per fully paid
ordinary share

Total dividend paid

29 IRIEBIIA (4)
RERN - RERBEERBENEHOT :
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
Tax losses depreciation Total
wERE
HIEEE BBEMEENE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT FAT
MR20194F3A31 AR 2,769 (12,488) 9,719)
MR2019F4 A1 H
FANFFAGFEBRRY 1,103 605 1,708
RIS
R2020F3A31H X 3,872 (11,883) (8,011)
2020 4 A1H
FANFFAGFEBRRY 356 637 993
IRAETIE
R2021F3A31H 4,228 (11,246) (7,018)
30 KB
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
REARR B ARSI Bk
0.68 71l (20194F : 0.787%1L) 6,140 7,042
FHREERGETEBRAT
(20204F : 0.78381L) - 7,042
BB BT 6,140 14,084
B E 2 R A R A

2021 F
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31 GEBHSHRERMEE
OF CASH FLOWS

(@ Major non-cash transactions (@ FEIFREXRS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of- FR - NEBG T REFHHELTHE
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$409,000 and HK$409,000, ZIEAEEERTBEAENIERSEM
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for land and 5 Bl /409,000 7T % 409,000% JT
buildings (2020: HK$2,209,000 and HK$2,209,000, (2020 4F : 2,209,000 7% JT & 2,209,000
respectively). BIT) °
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) METHEEMNEGENLHER
activities
Lease Bank Dividend
liabilities borrowings payable
HEAE RITHEM EARE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAET FA&T
At 1 April 2019 R2019F 4 A1 H 110,312 593,516 -
Changes from financing cash flows FtEIR & REEH (19,024) 5,735 (14,084)
Other changes: H s
New leases FHEE 2,209 - -
Interest expense FERX 2,650 - -
Exchange realignment (IR (1,803) - -
Final dividend REARR B - - 7,042
Interim dividend FHEAAR B - - 7,042
Interest elements of lease payments 78 & 15 3k 9 K 2. 5615 (2,650) - -
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 91,694 599,251 -
Changes from financing cash flows &R & REEH) (18,120) 3,684 (6,140)
Other changes: Hihgrs)
New leases e 409 - -
Interest expense FEFAX 2,393 = -
Exchange realignment IE 5 2,097 - -
Final dividend REARR B - = 6,140
Interest elements of lease payments 8 & < 7% &9 71 2. 2815 (2,393) - -
At 31 March 2021 7202143 831 H 76,080 602,935 =
299 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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32

33

34

35

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

32 FIAREE

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at the end of the AREBRBEPRITESKSKAEBE -

reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33 EEEM
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s interest-bearing EERFUERAEEMNTERITERZIASE
bank borrowings are included in note 25 to the financial statements. BENF BN BERERMF25 -
COMMITMENTS 34 EIE
The Group had the following capital and other commitments as at the RiEEIR  NEFEE 5)E KN & E i
end of the reporting period: ¥
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Contracted, but not provided for: ERTXU{E M R B
Unlisted Investment FELTIEE 9,688 -
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35 TRTHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments MERRSEN e TAMEREBENT ¢
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHERAIENER IR
— Trade receivables — BZEWIE 6,708 5,521
— Financial assets included in deposits and — st A e R E b B GIER
other receivables CREE 18,568 8,506
— Due from a joint venture — ER—FEEEPERIE 21,976 8,921
— Cash and cash equivalents — REeENMREZEY 49,687 27,767
96,939 50,715
Investment in insurance contract RREEHNERE 3,261 3,143
100,200 53,858
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBEBAIENSRBTA
Trade payables B SR 3RE 2,426 2,029
Financial liabilities included in other payables ST AE fth FE T FIE
and accruals EAtERNSREE 14,640 18,340
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 602,935 599,251
620,001 619,620
A b ] N
s LA MR AN 223
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e o0 Wik (%8)

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a)
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions
with related parties:
Note
g
Rental income from a company REERAR RIS 2
controlled by controlling UNCIp 3L N
shareholders
Rental payment to a company Biz e EzRgivd
controlled by controlling NCIEI NP AN
shareholders (i)
Note:
(i) The rentals were determined at rates mutually agreed by the
relevant parties.
(b)  The compensation of key management personnel of the Group (b)

for the year represented the directors’ emoluments as disclosed

in note 10 to the financial statements.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

36 BAEASRZ

BB IR EM A D R S5
AR EITA TR S

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

= 324

83 -

() TSR ARG E R L REE -

REETE2EIRASRNFERNFHEY
BMEME 0PI RBEZEEHE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 H R Wit Gk (4)
37 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

37 WEHKRENH

PERIOD

On 10 May 2021, Pine Care Titanium Limited (“Titanium”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the subscription
agreement with ETS Group Limited (“ETS”), a related company of the
Group principally engaged in the business of providing comprehensive
multi-media contact centre services, contact centre system and
financial services, to subscribe for the zero coupon convertible bonds
(“CB”) of ETS for the principal amount of HK$9.5 million due two years
from the date of issue. Upon full conversion of the CB at the conversion
price of HK$0.608, a total of 15,625,000 shares of ETS will be allotted
and issued to Titanium, representing approximately 5.29% of the issued
share capital of ETS as enlarged by the issue of the shares. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10 May 2021.

On 21 May 2021, Elegant Dear Limited (an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a lease agreement with a third
party in respect of the leasing of the lobby on ground floor and the front
(or southern) portion of the first, second and third floors of No. 1
Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for use as the operation of
care and attention home for the elderly or other related lawful
commercial uses by the Group commencing from 7 August 2021 and
expiring on 6 August 2025 (both days inclusive) at the rent of HK$1.7
million per month with certain renewal options upon the expiry of the
four years fixed term.

2021 F5 4108  ARRIMEZEHB AR
MBI BR AR ([ER]) BAREEAEEE
RElZBASEERAF(Z@EA] - 214
EREZ2HUZHEEBERORYE - BER
DRF RV IERBEER) ;] L RE W - AR
8 5B A4 384 9,500,000/8 T * BETTH
HR TR R I T B R E 5 ([ AT Ak
&% 1) o IRIPZ(E 0.608 75 7T K B R A 3 R
EHE - BrREKELEE 174 15,625,000
B S BEBRD  (RAEBITIRD IR 5 i@ a
O EITI AL 5.29% » BRIEE @ F2HARQ
AIHEA2021 F5 A10 B A% »

W2021F5 8218 - HEBRAA (AAQA
WEE2ENBAR) BE—R2F=ARHEEE
BINBEEEEEIRMEAE U182
B RIEATHE(SEmE) B AIEREE &R
TERIBAEBAEEMBEE EHER
BRI E W h2021E8 A7 AR
BEE2025F8AcHER(BREEEMK)
& A4S A1,700,000/8 7T © ARMNFE T
REmEZESR TERREE-

o i AR AR A
2021 F 3
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COMPANY

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Non-current asset
Investment in a subsidiary

Total non-current asset

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from a subsidiary

Total current assets

Net assets

Equity
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

Less than HK$1,000

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FRBEE
R B RRNRE

FERBDEELE

RBEE
RekAeEEY
FEW —FEIFT 8 A B 3RIA

MBEERR

BEFH

R

BEITRAR
e (M)

AN

9\

38 ARRNAHBEAMRT

2021
HK$’000
FET

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P (480)

ARRERROFTBHRRARER AT

2020

HK$°000

TET

12 12
158,762 164,903
158,774 164,915
158,774 164,915
9,029 9,029
149,745 155,886
158,774 164,915
71,0008 7T



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

39

38 AN THMBAMRE @)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: fisT -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RATREEEEOT ¢
Share premium Retained
account profits Total
BRBRER BT “st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHT
At 1 April 2019 M2019F 4 A1 H 148,770 - 148,770
Profit and total comprehensive FEBMNRE2EBALE
income for the year - 21,200 21,200
Interim dividend S EEEESSE - (7,042) (7,042)
Final dividend KRR & - (7,042) (7,042)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 M2020F3 A31 A &
2020 4 A1 8 148,770 7,116 155,886
Profit and total comprehensive income FEEHEM N 2 A 458
for the year - - -
Final dividend REARE B - (6,140) (6,140)
At 31 March 2021 #2021 3 A31H 148,770 976 149,746

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 24 June 2021.

39 #tEKIRE
A EHEAN2021F6 A24HEE ST E
MR RET)E o

g i o L

AR 2w
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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40

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Issued
ordinary

40 BHEMEBAANER
ARREEWERROFEEMT :

Percentage of equity

Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
it 2ET ERREMN
DNEER R ERERAK ERBEAL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE R
Pine Care Health Initiative British Virgin US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited Islands (the “BVI")
RERTES E REER
((RBREXES])
Prime Health Holdings Limited  Hong Kong HK$98,418,468 - 100 Investment holding
FRRER AR AT EE 98,418,468 57T KREZR
Pine Care Elderly Home Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited and provision of
management
services
DEREERERBRAR Bk 40,000,000 77T REERRIR G
EERHB
Pacific First Limited Hong Kong HK$1,070 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
REFFRRR Bt 1,070 7T Rtz ERE Rk
REEERS
Besting Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$120,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
AEEEFEAF EE 120,000/ 7T RtzERER
REEERS
Hinta Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
(“Hinta Enterprises”) services
VNI 21N B 10,000/ 7C RitezRe Rk
(MERE%E]) REEERY
Fitbest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
BEARAT R 500,000/ 7T Ritezhak
REEERS

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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A 5 e e P v (480)

40 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40 BEMBARNER®

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary Percentage of equity
Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
MR 28T ERREMN
NCIECE: EE R ZERE BEADL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE &
Masswell Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
Limited services
BEEERBRRQA B 10,000787C Rtzzhs Rk
RAEEBERK
Gericare Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of senior care
(“Gericare Centre”) services
REEZPOERAF B8 100% 7T Rt Ehs Rk
(MRiZEZFL]) RERE RSB
Fitgarden Limited Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
BEERRAF o 2,500,000 7T MERE
Mainfield Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property investment
BIBER AR B 28T MERE
Chun Fai Development Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited
EEERBREAA &BE 100,000/ 7T MERE
Grant Smart Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited
BRZ#RARLRA B 10,000 % 7T MERE
Wellfield Properties Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
Development
BEEERERA A B 10,000/ 7T MERE
Ruby International Hong Kong HK$5 - 100 Property investment
Investment Limited
(“Ruby International”)
AEABFKREBRAA B 58T MERE
(TAIEREE])
A % AR A R A 229
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40 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Continuec) 40 BEMBARINER @

Place of Issued

incorporation/ ordinary Percentage of equity

Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
A 2RT A E L
DNRIARE —ES$iE EERAK EEAEDL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE 5%
Manchester Rehabilitation Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of rehabilitation
Services Limited and physiotherapy
services
ST ERRS B 18T REEERYE
BRAAE A RS
Witmart Design & Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of repair and
Construction Co. Limited maintenance services
B REEETE 5 28T REBERRERS
BRAE
Fully Trend Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
MARBRAT BE 10,0007 7T MERE
Pine Care Elite Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
R EERR A o 10,000/87C RiteERE Rk
REFERS
Pine Care Elegance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
IR IEE B R AR 5 10,000/87C REER
Grand Prosper Holdings BVI Us$3 - 100 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited
HBRELHS 3ETT REER
One Affinity Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EERLES 17T REER
Lorient Holdings Ltd. BVI US$1 - 100 Property investment
HBRELHS 1%7T MERE
Tsuen Wan Elderly Care Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
Services Limited services
EEEZRBARAT o 10,000/87T RiteERE R
REEERS

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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40 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40 BEMEBELATNER #)

Place of

incorporation/

Issued
ordinary

Percentage of equity

Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EMARL 28T ERREMN
NEER —ESiE EERA BRmEI TEER
Direct Indirect
HE &
Pine Care Point Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
UN:y RN Bk 100/87T Ritezhe Rk
REEERY
Pine Care Yada Elderly Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 - 51 Investment holding
Services Limited
RiREEEEZRBEERRR  BE 14,000,000 7T REER
Zhejiang Pine Care Yada the People’s HK$12,000,000 - 51 Provision of senior care
Elderly Services Limited* Republic of China services
(the “PRC")/
Mainland China
TR EEERE hEAREME 12,000,000 7T Rt Ehs Rk
BRAF (T+ED,/ REERRG
B AR
Giant Success International Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100 Property investment
Holdings Limited
(“Giant Success”)
REEREBRABRAF B 1,000 7T MERE
FNEN
# Registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprises under the PRC law. # RIFFEEEAMAINEBEDE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

ERNTESERRUFANREELETATE
HERAREEEFESZERID KB
RE-EBERR AFMEGHEBRARSE
BleHmERBRITE -

A A M A R 2 ]
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

S 5 B2

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Revenue

Profit before tax from continuing

operations
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing

operations
Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Net debt
Gearing ratio

Note: Gearing ratio is measured by the net debt (representing interest-bearing bank
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) over total assets (representing

Wy i
REFEEEEBN
B 25 B )
PSRRI
REFHBEELEBD
F R A
FEEF

Btk
ARBEBEFEA
SRR R

HEERRBDAE

FRBEE
RAEEmITHE AR
e
FEER R

REAE

FER

BERMELE

current assets and non-current assets).

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Year ended 31 March
BZE3ASMIALEE

A g
i \m¥%E

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
245,706 217,363 186,782 170,688 177,286
10,682 17,122 15,150 18,915 17,387
(7,468) (3,546) (1,690) (2,509) (4,956)
3,214 13,576 13,460 16,406 12,431
3,214 13,576 13,460 16,406 12,409
5,860 13,584 13,435 16,418 12,409
(2,646) 8) 25 (12) -
Ra IEAROR
As at 31 March
A3HAB1H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FAT FHET FAT
831,536 896,850 787,906 697,554 240,988
95,498 46,528 56,840 82,241 184,308
135,633 455,978 76,061 38,011 52,128
791,401 487,400 768,685 741,784 373,168
587,214 280,749 561,604 533,665 164,959
200,209 200,253 200,208 203,231 208,209
3,978 6,398 6,873 4,888 -
204,187 206,651 207,081 208,119 208,209
553,248 571,484 542,637 459,826 2,585
60% 61% 64% 59% 1%
MisE : BEABLERDRFER (BT BRITERINBRRE
RESEBYIBRAREE(BRBEERFEREE

E)HE -
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